42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261

& 36302262
Map'e Leaf Power Limited e« 92-042-36368721
Sep 18, 2023
T MLPL/NEPRA/02/23

The Registrar
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY LICENSE 25 MW SOLAR POWER
PLANT

I, Sohail Sadig, Executive Director (Finance) being the duly authorized representative of M/S
Maple Leaf Power Limited by virtue of [BOARD RESOLUTION / POWER OF ATTORNEY] dated 15
June 2023, hereby apply to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the grant of
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY LICENSE to the M/S Maple Leaf Power Limited pursuant to section | of
the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997.

| hereby certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and
submitted in conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021,
and undertake to abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations. | further
undertake and confirm that the information provided in the attached documents-in-support is
true and correct to the best of my knowledge and no material omission has been made.

A [BANK DRAFT No. B.C No. 5510155 dated 18 September 2023 in the sum of Rupees 1,117,318/
(Rupees One Million One Hundred Seventeen Thousand Three Hundred Eighteen

Only) being the license application fee calculated in accordance with Schedule 1l to the National
Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and
Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021, is also attached herewith.

Regards,

For/or on behalf M/S Maple Leaf Power Limited

Signature:
Name: Sohail Sadi i
Designation: Executive Direc for (Finance)
Company Seal:
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2. Schedule Il {(Regulation 3(4){a}(A)(e)

2.1

Information relating to:

(i) Location {location maps, site map, land).

(ii) Technology, size of the plant, number of units.

(iii) Water source at site for maintenance.

(iv) Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities.

(v) Project commencement and completion schedule with milestones

(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans.

(vii)  Plant characteristics (generation voltage, frequency etc.
{viii}  Control, metering, instrumentation and protection.

(ix) Estimated Capacity Factor at site.

(x) Degradation Factors.

3. Schedule Il {Regulation 3{4}{(a){D)

3.1.
3.2.

3.3.
3.4,
3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.
3.9.

Relevant feeder maps Number of consumers and expected load.

Consumer class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and
voltage level.

Tariff categories of consumer classes to be served.

Demand and consumption pattern on different time periods.

Procurement Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation and/or
long-term and short-term PPAs, as the case may be).

12-month projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected sale
of units for each consumer category.

5-year Investment Plan indicating schemes/models/framework for undertaking
supply of electric power (including frameworks for providing non-discriminatory
services and acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service territories).

Training and development procedures and manuals.

Information relating to:

(i) Proposed service territory.
(ii) Billing and collection procedures (including provisions for remote
metering).

(iif) Ability to access consumer metering systems and other
services/equipment.

(iv) Emergency provisions and protocols.

{v) Basis of common services for commercial and residential consumers and
their allocation thereof.



PROSEPECTUS
Maple Leaf Power Limited
Introduction:

Maple Leaf Power Limited (“the company”) was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 October 2015 as
public limited company under the company’s ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017}. The
company has been established to set up and operate a 40 megawatt coal fired power generation
plant at Iskandarabad, District Mianwali, Punjab, Pakistan for generation of electricity. The
Company’s registered office is located at 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore. The principal objective of
the company is to develop, design, operate and maintain the electricity power generation plant
and in connection therewith to engage in the business of generation, sale and supply of
electricity. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (the
holding company). The ultimate parent company is Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited.

The company was granted electricity generation license (No. SGC/119/2016 dated December, 20
2016) under Section 16 of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Eiectric
Power Act 1997 (the “NEPRA ACT”) by National Electric and Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).
The company entered into a power purchase and steam purchase agreements with holding
company on 04 July 2017 and 31 October 2019 respectively which are valid for 20 Years.

MLPL is currently setting up 10 MW and 15 MW MYV Solar Power Plant at its existing generation
facility, Iskandarabad district Mianwali. Major equipment {Solar Panel} of the aforementioned
plant is being purchased from “Jinko Solar” and inverter and data logger from “Huawei” which
are Chinese organization with market presence in many countries.

The total project cost is expected to be around be Rs. 3.34 billion (11.517 million USD, PKR/USD
rate of 290) and will be financed through 40% own generated funds (Equity) of the Company and
60% Debit.

Salient Features of Solar Power Plant:

Project Location : Iskandarabad near daud Khel dist. Mianwali

Rated Power Generation Capacity : 25 MV

Proposed Covered Area : 28 Acre (10 MW) and 42 Acre (10 MW)
approximately

Construction Period : 11 months

Source of water : UG Water Tank

Source of Power : Solar PV Panels

Air pollution abatement : Renewable Energy



¢,

Proposed Investment:

The expected cost of the solar power plant is 4.00 billion rupees which is being financed from
own-generated Funds.

Social and Environmental impact:

Overall, while solar plant offers several environmental advantages such as renewable energy
generation and reduced greenhouse gas emissions and will reduce about 18,250 tons CO2
emission, it is crucial to consider and address potential social and environmental impacts to
ensure sustainable and responsible development, some of the key positive impact are following;

e Renewable Energy Generation

¢ Job/Employment Creation:

e Energy Access:

¢ Land Use and Biodiversity:

e Less Water Consumption:

e Community Engagement and Consultation
¢ No Solid Waste

Since the project has been commenced on a reserved area and no human settlements exist within
Km of the selected site, construction related impact is not expected to extend to the community.
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II.

IT1.

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
--10:--
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
--10:--
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

The name of the Company is “MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED”.

The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the Province of the Punjab.

The objects for which the Company is established are:-

I.

To carry on all or any of the businesses of generating, purchasing, importing,
transforming, distributing, supplying, exporting and dealing in electricity and all
other forms of energy and products or services associated therewith and of
promoting the conservation and efficient use of electricity and to perform all
other acts which are necessary or incidental to the business of electricity
generation, transmission, distribution and supply subject to permission from
NEPRA.

To identify, design, develop, construct, acquire, procure, manage, manufacture,
operate, maintain and own electricity generation station(s) using conventional
and non-conventional fuel/energy resources (including natural gas, oil, coal,
solar, hydel, wind, bio-mass or any other energy resources whether indigenous
or imported), fuel/energy resources supply chain and storage systems, water
desalination plants and related facilities, power grid stations, transforming,
switching, conversion, and transmission facilities, cables, overhead lines, sub-
stations, switching stations, tunnels, cable bridges, link boxes, heat pumps and
plant and equipment for combined heat and power schemes, together with such
other activities as are necessary to carry out the foregoing,

To carry on the business of an electric light company in all its branches and in
particular to construct, lay down, establish, fix and carry out all necessary cables
and wires, and to generate, accumulate, distribute and supply electricity to
private and/or public consumers including national grid and to light cities,

1



towns, streets, markets, theatres, buildings and places both public and private
subject to permission from NEPRA.

To carry on the business of electricians, mechanical engineers, electrical
engineers, suppliers of electricity for purposes of light, heat, motive power or
otherwise and of manufacturers and dealers in all apparatus and articles required
or capable of being used in connection with the generation, distribution, supply,
accumulation and employment of electricity or any light power or any power,
which can be used as a substitute thereof which, is or may be useful, convenient
or ornamental, and to carry on any other business of a like nature.

To carry on all or any of the business of trader, importer, exporter, supplicr,
distributor, designer, developer, manufacturer, installer, filter, tester, repairer,
maintainer, contractor, constructor, operator, user, inspector, re-conditioner,
improver, protector, remover, hirer, replacer, importer and exporter of systems
and things incidental to the efficient generation, procurement, transformation,
supply and distribution of electricity.

To acquire by concession, grant, purchase, barter, license either absolutely or
conditionally and either solely or jointly with others any land, building,
machinery, plant, equipment, privilege, right, license, trademark, patent, and
other movable and immovable property of any description which the Company
may deem necessary or which may seem to the Company capable of being
turned to account, subject to any permission as required under the law.

To purchase or acquire, protect, prolong and renew, whether in Pakistan or
elsewhere, any patent right, invention, license, protection, concession, and the
like which may appear likely to be advantageous or useful to the Company and
to manufacture under or grant license or privilege in respect of the same and to
spend money in experimenting upon and testing in or improving or seeking to
improve any patent, invention or right which the Company may acquire or
propose to acquire.

To purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire, apply for or otherwise acquire
and hold for any interest, right, privilege, land, building, easement, trademark,
patent, patent right, copyright, license, machinery, plant, stock-in-trade and any
movable and immovable property of any kind necessary or convenient for the
purposes of or in connection with the Company's business or any branch or
department thereof and to use, exercise or otherwise turn to account any
property, right and information so acquired, subject to any permission required
under the law.

finance certificate, musharik 1 trust certificate, mutual fund
ation and securities issued or



11.

12.

17.

authority, supreme, municipal, local or otherwise but not to act as an investment
company.

To engage in reforestation and other works relating to pollution abatement and
to acquire land for this purpose,

To form new entity or entities, and enter into joint ventures for the purposes of
the business of the Company.

To enter into any arrangement with any government or authority, supreme,
municipal, local or otherwise that seem conducive to the Company’s objects or
any of them and to obtain from any such government or authority all rights,
concessions and privileges which the Company may think fit desirable to obtain
and to carry out, exercise and comply with any such arrangement, right,
privilege and concession.

To adopt such means of making known the products and business o
Company as may seem expedient and in particular by advertiseme
publicity in the press or otherwise, exhibitions, publication of bogks
periodicals and by donations.

To conduct research and incur expenditures for the purposes and objects
Company's business.

To establish subsidiaries or associated companies, firms or entities and to carry
on business in any part of Pakistan or in any part of the world, and to take such
steps as may be necessary to give the Company such rights or privileges in any
part of the world as are possessed by local corporations in such location.

To ascertain the tariff for bulk supply that will secure recovery of operating cost,
interest charge and depreciation of assets, redemption at due time of loans other
than those covered by depreciation, expansion projects, payment of taxes, and
reasonable return on investment, to quote the tariff to bulk purchaser of electrical
power, and to prefer petition to the appropriate authority for approval of the
schedule of tariff and of adjustment or increase in its bulk supply tariff, where
desirable or necessary.

For the purposes of achieving the above objects, the Company is authorized to:-

a. purchase/import raw materials and allied items required in connection
thereto in any manner the Company may think fit;

b. do and perform all other acts and things as are incidental or conducive to
the attainment of the objects of the Company;




18.

19.

20.

c. open an account or accounts with any bank or banks and to pay into and to
withdraw money from such account or accounts,

d. borrow and arrange the repayment of money from banks/financial
institutions or any lawful sources whether in Pakistan or elsewhere and in
such manner as the Company may think fit, including the issue of
debentures, preference shares, bonds, perpetual or otherwise charge upon
the whole or any part of the Company's property or asset, whether present
or future, and to purchase, redeem or payoff such securities;

e. putits assets as collateral on behalf of the holding company for the purpose
of any financing obtained by the holding company.

f. purchase, hold and get redeemed shares, debentures, bonds of any company,
financial institution or any government institution.

To guarantee the performance of contracts, agreements, obligations or discharge
of any debt of the Company in relation to the payment of any financial facility
including but not limited to loan, advance, letter of credit or other obligation
through creation of any or all types of mortgages, charges, pledges,
hypothecations, on execution of the usual banking documents or instruments or
otherwise encumbrance on any or all of the movable and immovable property
of the Company, either present or future or both and issuance of any other
security or surety by any other mean in favor of banks, Non-Banking Finance
Companies (NBFCs) or any financial institution and to borrow money for
purpose of the Company on such terms and conditions as may be considercd
proper.

To support and subscribe to any charitable or public object including donation
to charitable and benevolent foundation and any institution, society, or club or
for any purpose which may be for the benefit of the Company or its employees,
or may be connected with or for the benefit and welfare of any town or place
where the Company carry on the business, to give pension, gratuity, to extend
benefits of provident fund or any other contributory scheme on behalf of the
Company, or charitable aid to any person who may have been Directors of or
may have served the Company, or the wives, children, other relatives or
dependents of such persons to make payments towards insurance, and to form
and contribute to provident and benevolent funds for the benefit of any such
person, or of their wives, children or other rglats dependents.

e
o ?aﬁ‘s"a%\ .
s 1. KL ore % X, .
To create any reserve fund, sinking fyfid, insurance fund’or any other special

fund whether for depreciation or for Qcﬁai NANSRIng, fmproving, extending
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21.

22.

23,

24,

25.

26,

IV,

To distribute any of the Company’s property among the members in specie or
in any manner whatsoever in the event of winding up of company.

To deal with the surplus monies of the Company not immediately required in
such lawful form as may be thought expedient,

To pay all preliminary expenses of any kind and incidental to the formation and
incorporation of the Company out of the funds of the Company.

It is declared that notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing object
clauses of this Memorandum of Association nothing contained therein shall be
construed as empowering the company to undertake or to indulge in the business
of banking company, investment, NBFC, leasing, managing agency, payment
sales receipt scheme and insurance business directly or indirectly as restricted
under the law or any other unlawful operation.

Notwithstanding anything stated in any object clause, the company shall obtain
such other approval or license from the competent authorit as mdy be required
The company shall not launch multilevel ‘'ma§

schemes.

The liability of the members is limited.

Billion only) divided into 600,000,000 ordmary shares of Rs 0/- (Rupees
Ten only) each with powers to the Company from time to time increase,
consolidate, sub-divide or otherwise re-organize the Share Capital of the
Company and to divide the shares in the Capital for the time being into
several classes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984,

The Clause V substituted and approved by the Members in Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 07, 2016.




We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being formed into * w

a Company, in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we respectively agree to take the number
of shares in the Capital of the Company as set opposite to our respective name(s).

, Nationality Number of
Name and Surname Father s,l with any . Residential Address | sharestaken | .
(Present & Former Husband’s Occupation . Signature
in Fult) Namein Full | Former (in Fuld by each
Nationality subscriber
Mian Tariq Sayeed | pMian (H
Saigol Muhammad Pakistani Industrialist [ 12-Main Gulberg, One
CNIC # 35200- Sayced Saigol Lahore.
5293106-5
Mian Tau{‘ique Mian House No. 1, 0l
Sayeed Saigol Muhammad Pakistani Industrialist | Kohinoor Colony, Onc
CNIC#37405- Sayeed Saigol Peshawar Road,
0436841-7 Rawalpindi.
Sayeed Tariq Saigol 01
CNIC#35202- Mian Tarig Pakistani Industrialist 12-Main Gulberg, One
0560944-1 Sayeed Saigol Lahore.
. 01
Waleed Tariq One
Saigol Mian Tarigq Pakistani Industrialist 12-Main Gulberg,
CNIC#35202- Sayeed Saigol Lahore.
8546058-7
Mian Danial. House No. 1, 01
Taufique Saigol Mian Faffiqu Industrialist | Kohinoor Coleny, One
CNIC#37405- Saye i \ Peshawar Road,
7481343-9 i Rawalpindi.
Syed Mohsin Raza / 01
Nagqvi Sved Business House No. 208-B, One
CNIC#352025- H}lllssain : Executive Street No, 5, Cavalary
155530-7 > e fﬂﬂ}‘jﬁ Ground, Lahore
Arifljaz Mian liaz Pakistani Business House # 113-X, 0l
CNIC#35201- Ahmcgl i Exccutive Phase-3, D.H.A., One
4540213-7 Lahore Cantt,
Maple Leaf Cement Pakistani Company 42-Lawrence Road, 999,993
Factory Limited Lahore Ninc Hundred
CUIN# 0001107 Nincty Nine
through its nominee CER COPY Thousand
Syed Mohsin Raza Nine Hundred
Nagvi Nincty Three
CNIC#352025-
i ‘ R OF COMPANIES
155530-7 éﬂ?“o N OFFICE, LAI?ORE
v is not valid for purpos of Bailiotal Number of 1,000,000
e C: m:i:l‘lll“';:f ;Enkl may verify conpn! v "‘“’"S res Taken One Million
- | necountop l-. sk portal launched by the BETK
Dated this 8" day ofjOctob89tshP :

Witness to the above Signatures:

Full Name:

Signature :

Occupation :

NIEFT

Full Address:

National Institutional Facilitation

Technologies (Private) Limited

5™ Floor, AWT Plaza, L I. Chundrigar Road,

Karachi.
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

L RELIMINARY
1. TABLE “A” Not to Apply
The regulations in Table ‘A’ in the First Schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984
shall not apply to the company except so far as the same are repeated or contained in
these articles.

2. DEFINITIONS

. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms used in these articles shall have the
meanings set out below:

(a) “Articles” mean these Articles of Association as originally framed or as from
lime to time altered by special resolution.

(b) “Board” means the group of directors in a meeting duly called and
conslituted or, as the case may be, the directors assembled at a board.

(©) “Company”” means MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED.
(d) “Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
cstablished under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan Act, 1997.

(e) “Directors” mean the directors for the time being of the company including
alternate  directors and, subsequently elected pursuant (g -Eowm Qjes

() “Dividend” includes cash dividend, dividend in species j

(g) “Electronic” includes electrical, digital, magnetic,
electro-chemical, wireless or electromagnetic technolog

(h) “Electronic Transactions Ordinance” means the Elec
Ordinance, 2002,

6)] “In Person” includes attendance and/or voting at a meeting, personally or by
video or telephone-conference or other facility whereby all the participants of
the meeting can hear and / or see each other unless expressly staied otherwise
by the directors.

Gy “Instrument of Transfer” includes transfer deeds.



(k) “Issue of Capital Rules” mean Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996.

()] “Member” means a person whose name is for the time being entered in the
register of members by virtue of his being a subscriber to the Memorandum
of Association of the company or of his holding by allotment or otherwise
any share, scrip or other security which gives him a voting right in the
company.

(m) “Memorandum’ means the Memorandum of the company as originally
framed or as from time to time altered in accordance with law.

(n) “Month” means calendar month according to the English calendar.

(o) “Office” means the registered office for the time being of the company.

P “QOrdinance” means the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or any modilication or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

(@ “Proxy”’ includes an attorney duly constituted under a power of attorney.

) “Record” includes, in addition to a wrilten or printed form, any disc, tape,
sound-track, film or other device in which sounds and / or other data is
embodied so as to be capable (with or without the aid of some other
instrument or machine) of being reproduced there from in audible, legible or
visual form.

(s) “Register’ means, unless the context otherwise requires, the register of

cq &l
members to be kept pursuant to section 147 of the Ordinance.

(t) “Registrar” means a Registrar, defined in section 2(1)(31), performing the

£ Bt p g
duty of registration of companies under the Ordinance.

(u) “Regulations” mean the rules of governance of the company made by the
board from time to time.

(v) “Seal” means the common or official seal of the company.

w ection” means section of the Ordinance.
“Section” t f the Ord

x) “Sign™ and “Signature” unless otherwise provided in these articles, includes
respectively lithography, printing facsimile, “advanced electronic signature”
which is capable of establishing the authenticity and integrity of an electronic
document, as defined by scction 2(e) of the Electronic Transactions
Ordinance, and names impressed with a rubber or other kind of stamp.

y) “Special Resolution” means the special resolution of the company as defined
in section 2(1)(36) of the Ordinance.

INTERPRETATION

In these articles, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a)




II.

CAPITAL

(b) references to any Act, Ordinance, Legislation, or any provision of the same
shall be a reference to that Act, Ordinance, Legislation, rules or regulations or
provisions, as amended, re-promulgated or superseded from time (o time;

(c) the terms “include” or “Including” shall mean include or including without
limitation;
(d) expressions referring to writing shall, unless the contrary intention appears,

be construed as including references to printing, lithography, photography,
and other modes of representing or reproducing words in a visible form,
including but not limited to, electronic transmission such as facsimile, and
electronic mail or any other electronic process, as prescribed by section 3 of
the Electronic Transactions Ordinance.

(e) words importing persons shall include bodies corporate; and

(N words and expressions contained in these articles shall bear the same
meaning as in the Ordinance.

PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

The company is a Public Limited company within the meanings of section 2(1),
Clause (30) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The minimum subscription upon
which the directors may proceed to allotment as defined in section 68 of the
Ordinance is fixed at Rs.10,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Million only).

BUSINESS

All branches or kind of business which the company is either expressly or by
implication authorized to undertake may be undertaken by the directors at such time
or times as they shall think fit, and further may be allowed by them to be in abeyance,
whether such branch or kind of business may have been actually commenced or not,
s0 long as the directors may deem it expedient not to commence or proceed with such
branch or kind of business.

SHARES
gubju.l o sec,uon 90 of the Ordmance and any rules in that regdrd

holders of any existing shares or class of shares, any share in lh(.
1ssued with different rights, restrictions and privileges, including but
following as may be approved by the company by special resolution:

(a) different voting rights; voting rights disproportionate to the paid-up vall
share held; voting rights for specific purposes only; or no voling rights at all;

(b) different rights for entitlement of dividend, right shares or bonus shares or
entitlement to receive the notices and to attend the general meetings;

(c) rights and privileges for indefinite period, for a limited specified period or for
such periods as may {rom time to time be determined by the company; and

(d) different manner and mode of redemption, including redemption in
accordance with the provisions of these articles, or as prescribed in the
Ordinance, including but not limited to, by way of conversion into shares

3




10.

11.

12.

15.

with such rights and privileges as determined by the company in the manner
and mode provided in these articles.

Subject to provisions of the Ordinance and any rules in that regard made under the
Ordinance, the company may issue shares which are to be redeemed or any other
redeemable securily, on such terms and in such manner as may be provided in the
Ordinance and rules.

Subject to provisions of the Ordinance and these articles, the shares in the capital of
the company for the time being, including any new shares resulting from an increasc
in the authorized capital, shall be under the control of the directors who may allot or
otherwise dispose of the same or any of them lo such persons as the dircctors shal)
determine and at such times and in such manner as the directors think fit, cither at par
or at a premium or subject to section 84 of the Ordinance at a discount. Provided that
the shares in the capital of the company shall always be issucd as fully paid sharcs
and no shares shall be issued as partly paid shares.

The directors may allot and issue shares in the capital of the company as payment or
part payment for any property sold or transferred, or for services rendered, to the
company in the ordinary course of its business, and shares so allotted shall be issucd
as and shall be deemed 1o be fully paid shares.

The board shall, as regards any allotment of shares, duly comply with such provisions
of the Ordinance and rules as may be applicable.

The company may at any time pay a commission to any person for subscribing or
agreeing to subscribe (whether absolutely or conditionally) for any sharcs, debentures
or debenture stock in the company or procuring or agreeing 1o procure subscriptions
(whether absolutely or conditionally) for any shares, debentures or debenture stock in
the company. In case any commission is payable, the company shall comply with the
provisions of section 82 of the Ordinance. The company may also pay cxpenses on
any issue of shares or debentures or redeemable capital.

Except as permitted in the Ordinance and any rules in that regard made under the
Ordinance, no parl of the funds of the company shall be employed in the purchase of
its own shares or in giving, whether directly or indirectly and whether by means of a
loan, guarantee, security or otherwise, any financial assistance for the purpose of or in
connection with a purchase made or to be made by any person of or any shares in the
company.

Save as hercin otherwisc provided, the company shall be entitled o treat the
registered holder of any share as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not,
except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as by statute required, be
bound to recognize (even when having notice thereof) any benami, cquitable,
contingent, future, partial or other claim or right w or interest in such share on the
part of any other person.

Shares may be registered in the name of persons, any limited company or other
corporate body. Not more than four (04) pe shall be registered as joint-holders of
any share. ~ewation
o

If any share or shares stand i
named in the register shall, as
notices and all or any other ma
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CERTIFICATES

The Certificates of title to shares and duplicate thereof shall be issued under the seal
of the company and signed by two of the directors or by one such dircctor and the
sceretary provided that such signatures may if necessary be printed lithographed or
stamped subject to the approval of the directors,

The company shall within ninety days after the allotment of any shares, debentures or
debenture stock and within forty-five days after receipt by the company of the
application for transfer of any such shares, debentures or debenture stock complele
and have ready for delivery the certificate of all shares, the debentures and the
certificate of all debenture stock allotted or transferred, and unless sent by post or
delivered 1o the person entitled thereto within the period aforesaid the company shall
immediately thereafter give notice to that person in the manner prescribed in these
articles for the giving of notices to members that the certificate is ready for delivery.

If a certificate of shares, debenture or debenture stock is proved to the satisfaction of
the company to have been lost or destroyed or, being defaced or mutilated or torn, is
surrendered to the company, and the company is requested (o issue a new certificate
in replacement thereof, the company shall, after making such enquiry as it may deem
fit, advise the applicant within thirty days from the date of application the terms and
conditions (as to indemnity and otherwise and as to payment of the aclual expenses
incurred on such enquiry and of a fee not exceeding ten rupees) on which the
company is prepared 10 issue a new certificate and a time for compliance therewith or
of the reasons why the company is unable to issue a new certificate, as the case may
be, and in the former case if the applicant shall within the time allowed comply with
the terms and conditions specified, the company shall issuc a new certificate 10 the
applicant within forty five days from the date of application.

The company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate in respect of a
share or shares held jointly by two or more persons and delivery of a certificate for a
share to any one of joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all.

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION

(a}) The directors shall not refuse 1o register the transfer of fully paid shares

waive the production of any certificate upon evidence satisfacto
them of its loss or destruction.

(b) If the directors refuse to register a transfer of any shares they shall, within
thirty (30) days after the date on which the Instrument of Transfer was
lodged with the company, send to the transferee and the transferor notice
of the refusal indicating the reason for such refusal; provided that if the
directors refuse to register a transfer of shares on account of a defect in or
the invalidity of the Instrument of Transfer, the transferce shall be
entitled, after removal of such defect or invalidity, to re-lodge the
Instrument of Transfer with the company.

The instrument of Transfer of any share shall be in writing in the usual common form, or in
the following form, or as near thereto as circumstances will admit:




The Maple Leaf Power Limited

I/We

of in consideration of the sum of Rupecs

Paid to me fus by

of hereinafter called the transferee (s), do hereby transfer to the said Transferee(s)
the Ordinary Share(s) numbered

Standing in my/our name(s) in the books of Maple Leaf Power Ltd  To hold unto the said transferee(s),
hisfher/their executors, administrators and assigns subject to the several conditions on which I/We hold the
same at the time of the execution hereof, and I/We the said transferee(s) do hereby agree to aceept and take the
said shares subject to the same conditions.

As witness our hands the day of
Signed by the ahove named transferor in the presence of:

Witness : Transferor's
Occupation: : Seller (s) Signature :
CNIC #: H CNIC #: |
Address : Address :

Signed by the above named transferee(s) in the presence of

“I/we hereby declare that 1 am/we are not minor(s) and that I am/we are Nationals of Pakistan”

Witness Transferee (s)
Occupation : Buyer(s)
CNIC # : Signature :
Address : CNIC#: |
: Occupation :
Address :

Received Transfer fee Rs. Purchaser’s Spectmen Signature
On
Entered in Register of Transfer No.
Approved: Director /

Secretary
On

DIVIDEND MANDATE [Optional to be filled in by Transferee(s)/Buyer(s)] in case the transferee intends
that the cash dividend declared by the company, if any is directly credited in his/her/its Bank Account,
instead of issue of Dividend Warrants, then please fill in the following boxes:

DIVIDEND MANDATE DETAIL (TO BE FILLED IN BY TRANSFEREE/BUYER)

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank’s Name .

Branch Name and Address

Cell Number of Transferee

Landline Number of Transferee, if any

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, that 1 will inimate the changes in the above-
mentioned information to the company as soon as these occur,

SIGNATURE OF THE TRANSFEREE(S)
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No transfer shall be made to a minor or person of unsound mind. Further, no
transfer shall be made to an individual if the instrument of transfer is not
accompanied by a certified copy of the computerized national identity card of
the transferee.

All registered instruments of transfer shall be retained by the company for a
period of not less than 10 years, but any Instrument of Transfer which the
directors may decline to register shall be returned to the person depositing the
same.

The Instrument of Transfer of any share in the company shall be duly stamped
and executed both by the transferor and transferee, and the transferor shall be
deemed to remain holder of the share until the name of the transferec is entered
in the register in respect thereof,

On giving seven days previous notice in the manner provided in the Ordinance,
the transfer books and register may be closed during such time as the directors
think fit, not exceeding in the whole forty-five days in e¢ach year, but not
exceeding thirty days at a time.

The executors or administrators or the nominee appointed under section 80 of
the Ordinance of a deceased member (not being one of several joint-holders)
shali be the only persons recognized by the company as having any title to the
shares registered in the name of such member, and in case of the death of any
one or more of the joint-holders of all registered shares, the survivors shall be
the only persons, recognized by the company as having any title to or interest in
such shares, but nothing hercin contained shall be taken to releasc the estate of a
deceased joint-holder from any liability on shares held by him jointly with any
other person. Before recognizing any executor or administrator, the directors
may require him to obtain a Grant of Probate or nomination as mentioned above
or Letters of Administration or other legal representation, as the case may be,
from some competent Court in Pakistan provided nevertheless that in any case
where the board in their absolute discretion think fit, it shall be lawful for the
dircctors to dispense with the production of Probate or Letters of Administration
or such other legal representation upon such terms as to indgs TRy FEd i

hercinbefore contained, transfer such share.

Neither the company nor the directors nor any other officer of the company shall
incur any liability for registering or acting upon a transfer of shares apparently
made by sufficient parties, although the same may, by reason of any fraud or
other cause not known to the company or the directors or any other officer of the
company, as aforesaid, be legally inoperative or insufficient to pass the property
in the shares proposed or professed o be transferred, and although the transfer
may, as belween the transferor and transferce, be liable (o be set aside, and,
notwithstanding that the company may have notice that such Instrument of
Transfer was signed or executed and delivered by the transferor in blank as to
the name of the transferee or the particulars of the shares transferred, or

7
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otherwise in defective manner. And in every such case the person registercd as
transferee, his exccutors, administrators and assigns alone shall be entitled o be
recognized as the holder of such shares and the previous holder shall, so far as
the company is concerned, be deemed to have transferred his whole title hereto.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The company may by ordinary resolution and subject to compliance with the
requirements of section 92 of the Ordinance increase the authorized sharc
capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such amount, as the resolution
shall prescribe. Subject to the provisions of section 92(1){(d), 92(3) and 93, the
company may, by ordinary resolution;

(a) consolidate and divide its share capital into shares of larger amount than
its existing shares;

(b} by sub-division of its existing shares or any of them, divide the whole or
any part of its share capital into shares of smaller amount than is fixed
by the Memorandum of Association;

(c) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution,
have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person.

The directors may from time to lime increase the issued share capital by such
sum as they think fit. Except as otherwise permitted by section 86 of the
Ordinance, all shares intended to be issued by the directors shall, before issuc,
be offered to the members strictly in proportion to the amount of the issucd
shares held by each member; provided that fractional shares shall not be offered
and all fractions less than a share shall be consolidated and disposed of by the
company and the proceeds from such disposition shall be paid to such of the
entitled members as may have accepted such offer. Such offer shall be made by
notice specifying the number of shares offered, and limiting a time within which
the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to be declined, and after the expiration
of that time, or on the receipt of an intimation from the person to whom the offer
is made that he declines to accept the shares offered, the directors may disposc
of the same in such manner as they think fit. In respect of each such offer of
shares the directors shall comply with the provisions of section 86 of the
Ordinance and in particular with the provisions of sub-sections (3), (4) and (5)
thereof. Any difficulty in the apportionment of shares amongst the members,
such difficulty shall, in the absence of any directions given by the company in
general meeling, be determined by the directors.

Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these
articles, any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered part
of the original capital and shall be subject to the provisions herein contained
with reference to transfer and transmission and otherwise.

Subject to the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 86 of the Ordinance, if,
owing to any inequality in the number of new shares to be issued and the

ent of such new sharcs or any
of them amongst the shall, in the absence of any
direction in the resolutf(i§’ creA7 @i I resZy by the company in gencral
meeting, be determined ; :
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37.

38.

The company may, by special resolution, reduce its share capital in any manner,
with and subject to, any incident authorized and consent required by law.

The share premium account maintained pursuant to section 83(1) of the
Ordinance may, be applied by the company:

(a) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the company;

(b) in writing off the expenses of, or the commission paid or discount
allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the company;

(c) in providing for the premium payable on the redemption to any
redeemable debentures of the company; or

(d) in paying up un-issued shares of the company 10 be issued as fully paid
bonus shares.

Subjeet to the provisions of section 96 to 105 inclusive of the Ordinance, the
directors may accept from any member the surrender on such terms and
conditions as shall be agreed of all or any of his shares.

VARIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Whenever the capital is divided into different classes of shares, all or any of the
rights and privileges attached to each class may, subject to the provisions of
section 108 of the Ordinance, be modified, commuted, affected, abrogated or
dealt with by agreement between the company and any person purporting to
contract on behalf of that class provided such agreement is (a) ratified in writing
by the holders of at least three-fourths in nominal value of the issued shares of
the class or {(b) confirmed by a special reselution passed at an cxtraordinary
general meeting of the holders of shares of that_glass and all the provisions
hercinafter contained as to general meetings, shall, mij W nutandis, apply (o
every such meeting. This article shall not by xmphcaigjﬁ’ il the power of
modification which the company would have if this_agi itted.

CONVENING OF GENERA

N >
The statutory general meeting of the company i within the period
required by scction 157,

A general meeting to be called annual general meeting, shall be held in
accordance with provisions of section 158, within eightcen months from the
date of incorporation of the company thereafter the company shall hold a
general meeting once at least in every calendar year within a period of four
months following the close of its financial year in the town in which the office is
situate and at such time and placc as may be determined by the directors,
provided that no greater interval than fifteen months shall be allowed to elapse
between two such general meetings. The company may, for any special reason
and with permission of the Commission, exlend the time within which any
annual general meeting, not being the first such meeting, shall be held.

The company shall held its annual general meeting in the town in which the
registered office is situate; provided that, it may, for any special reason and with
permission of the Commission, hold the said meeting at any other place.
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41,

All general meetings of the company, other than the statutory meeting or any
annual general meeting, shall be called extraordinary general meetings.

The direclors may, whenever they think fit, and they shall, on the requisition of
the holders of not less than one-tenth of the issued capital of the company,
forthwith proceed to convene an extraordinary general meceling of the company.
If at any time there are not within Pakistan sufficient directors capable of acting
to form a quorum, any director of thc company may call an cxtraordinary
general meeling in the same manner as nearly as possible as thal in which
meetings may be called by the directors, and in the case of such requisition the
following provisions shall have effect:

(a)

(b}

(©)

(d)

(@

)

(c)

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the office and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the directors do not preceed within 14 days or as prescribed otherwisc
in the Ordinance, from the date of the requisition being so deposited to
cause a meeling 1o be called, the requisitionists or a majority of them in
value may themselves convene the meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
deposit.

Any meeting convened under this article by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meelings are 10 be convened by the directors but shall be held at the
office.

A requisition by joint-holders of shares must be signed by all such
holders.

Notice of a general meeting shall be sent in the manner hercinafier
mentioned at least twenty one (21) days or as prescribed otherwise in the
Ordinance, before the date on which the meeting is to be convened to all
such persons as are under these articles or the Ordinance entitled to
receive such notices from the company and shall specify the place and the
day and hour of the meeting and the nature of the business to be
transacted thereat.

In the case of an emergency affecting the business of the company, an
extraordinary general meeting may be convened by such shorter notice as
the Registrar may authorize.

Where any special business, that is t business other than
consideration of the accounts, balang& aiah Gy

directors and auditors, the decldral@?&%ldend the 2p pointment and
fixation of the remuneration of aug : nptjce convening
the meeting provides for the electif of directors
{all such matters being herein re ess) is 1o be
transacted at a general meeting, #®;fthe notice of
such meeting a statement setting o
the consideration of such business ilRgdag gfidd cxtent of the
interest (whether direct or indirect) of prt where the item of
business involves approval of any document, the time and place
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appointed for inspection thereof, and to the extent applicable such a
statement shall be annexcd to the notice also in the casce of ordinary
business 1o be transacted at the meeting.

Where a resolution is intended to be proposed for consideration at a
general meeting in some special or particular form, a copy thercof shall
be annexed to the notice convening such mecting,

If a special resolution is intended to be passed at a gencral meeting, the
notice convening that meeting shall specify the intention 10 propose the
resolution as a special resolution.

A notice for a general meeting at which an election of directors is to take
place shall state the number of directors to be elected at that meeting and
the names of the retiring directors.

The notice of every general meeting shall prominently specify that a
proxy may be appointed who shall have the right to attend, demand or
join in demanding a poll and vote on a poll and speak at the meeling in
the place of the member appointing him and shall be accompanied by a
form of proxy acceptable to the company.

The company shall comply with the provisions of section 160(1) and
section 50 of the Ordinance with regard o giving nolices of general
meetings.

The accidental omission to give any such notice to, or the non-receipt of notice
by, any of thc member, shall not invalidate the proceedings al any such meeting.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of
members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business; save as

herein otherwise, provided two (02) members present in person

quorum,

The Chairman of the board of directors shall preside asf{Ehaitii
gencral meeting of the company, or if there is no such Ch{ gndff:rér
not bL- present in person wnhm ﬁfleen minutes after lhe tirjgoapR™

the meeting, or if no director be present in person, or if all the directors present
in person decline to take the chair, the members present in person shall choose

. one of their member to be Chairman of the meeting.

If within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the meeting, a quorum is not

present,

the meeting if convened upon such requisition as aforcsaid shall be

dissolved, but in any other case it shall stand adjourmed to the same day in the
next week at the same time and place, and if at such adjourncd mecting a
quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for it, the
meeting shall be dissolved.

1
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The Chairman may adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to
place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned mccting other than
the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjeurnment ook
place. When a meeting is adjoumned for more than seven days, notice of the
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. Save as
aforesaid it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the
business to be iransacted at an adjoumcd meeting. The following arc the
directors of the company who shall hold office until first annual general meeling
and thereafter shall be eligible for re-election.

i. Mian Tariq Sayeed Saigol
ii. Mian Taufique Sayeed Saigol
iii. Sayeed Tariq Saigol
iv. Waleed Tariq Saigol
v. Mian Danial Taufique Saigol
vi. Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi
vii. Arif ljaz

In the case of an eguality of votes the Chairman shall, both on a show of hands
and at the poll, have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes (o which he
may be entitled as member.

(a) Atany general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be
decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is (before or on the declaration
of the result of the show of hands) demanded in accordance with
paragraph (2) of this article, and unless a poll is so demanded, a
declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution has, on a
show of hands, been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular
majority, or lost, and an entry to that effect in the book or electronic record
of the proceeding of the company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact,
without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favor
of, or against, the resolution.

(b) Any of the following persons may demand a poll:
(i) The Chairman of the meeting, or

(ii) Two members having the right to vote on the resolution and present in
person or by proxy; or

(iii) Any member or members present in person or by proxy having not
less than one-tenth of the total voting power in respect of the
resolution.

If a poll is demanded, as aforesaid, it shall be taken (subject o section 168 of

the Ordinance) in such manner and at such time and place as the Chairman of
the meeting directs, and either at once or after an interval or adjournment of not
more than fourteen days from the day on which the poll is demanded, and the
result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which
the poll was held, The demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time by the
person or persons who made the demand. In case of any dispute as to the

the same, and such determination made in
conclusive.
Any poll duly demanded on the election of a llf' ai
question of adjournment shall be taken at the &g
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A poll demanded on any other question shall be taken at such time, not being
more than 14 days from the day on which the poll is demanded as the Chairman
of the meeting directs.

The demand of a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the
transaction of any business other than the question on which a poll has been
demanded.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

Subject to section 160 and any rights or restrictions for the time being attached
to any class or classes of shares, every member present in person (where all the
participants of a general meeting can see each other) shall have, whether on a
show of hands or on a poli, votes proportionate to the paid up value of the shares
or other seccurilies carrying voting rights held by him according to the
entitlement of the class of such shares or securities, as the case may be provided
that , the provisions of section 178 shall apply in the case of the clection of
directors.

On a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vole and
upon a poll every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote in
respect of each share held by him.

On a poll a member entitled to more than one vote need not, if he votes, use alt
his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

Any company or other corporation which is a member of the company may by
resolution of its directors or other governing body authorize such person as it
thinks fil to act as its representative at any meeting of the company or of any
class of members of the company, and the person so authorized shall be entitled
to exercise the same powers on behalf of the company or corporation which he
represents as that company or corporation could exercise if it were an individual
member of the company, present in person. The production before or at the
meeting of a copy of such resolution purporting to be signed by a director or the
sccretary of such company or corporation and certified by him as being a truc
copy of the resolution shall be accepted by the company as sufficient evidence
of the validity of the appointment of such representative.

sausfy the directors of his nghl 10 such shares pr tg‘b R Povn
previously admitted his right to vole al such meetyf i3
member be a lunatic, idiot or non compos mentis\{ig
show of hands or at a poll, by his commiltee, curator a mis i %gﬁramr
and such last mentioned persons may give their votes b

Where there are jeintly registered holders of any share, any one of such persons
may vote at any meeling either in person or by proxy in respect of such share as
if he was solely entitled thereto; and if more than one of such joint-holders be
present at any meeting, either in person or by proxy, that one of the said persons
s0 present whose name stands first in the register in respect of such share shall
alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof. Several executors or administrators
of a deceased member in whose name any share stands shall for the purposes of
this article be deemed joint holders thereof.

13



58. On a poll votes may be given either in person (including without limitation a
representative of a company duly authorized by proxy.)

59. No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the
meeting or adjourncd meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered,
and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes.
Any such objection made in due time shall be referred 1o the Chairman of the
meeting, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

60. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the
appointer (such expression shall exclude any reference to the Electronic
Transactions Ordinance in accordance section 31(1) of the Electronic
Transactions Ordinance) or of his attorney duly authorized in writing (such
expression shall exclude electronic transmission as prescribed by section 3 of
the Electronic Transactions Ordinance)} or if such appointer is a corporation
under its common seal or signed by an officer or an attomey duly authorized by
it (Such expression shall exclude any reference to the Electronic Transactions
Ordinance in accordance section 31 (1) of the Electronic Transactions
Ordinance). No person shall be appointed a proxy who is not a member of the
company and qualified to vote.

6l. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority
(if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of that power or
authority, shall be deposited Such expression shall hereinafter include, where
permilted by law, receipt in accordance with section 15 of the Electronic
Transactions Ordinance) at the office not less than forty-eight hours before the
time for holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as
valid.

62. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument appointing a proxy
shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or
revocation of the instrument or transfer of the share in respect of which the vote
is given, provided no intimation in writing of the death, insanily, revocation or
transfer of the share shall have been received at the office before the meeting.
Provided ncvertheless that the Chairman of any meeting shall be entitled 0
require such evidence as he may in his discretion think fit of the due cxceution
of an instrument of proxy and that the same has not been revoked.

63. Every instrument appointing a proxy shall, as nearly as circumstances will
admit, be in the form or to the effect following and shall be retained by the
company:

PROXY FORM
MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED
“I/We
of

(Name)




IV,

of

or [atling him / her

of

another member of the company

(Name)

another member of the company

as my / our proxy to attend and vote for and on my / our behalf, al the (annual /

extraordinary, as the case may be) general meeting of the company to be held on the

day of and at any adjournment thereof.”

Provided always that an instrument appointed a proxy may be in the form set out in
accordance with the relevant regulation of Table A of the First Schedule to the
Ordinance.

DIRECTORS

64.

65.

60.

67.

68.

NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of these articles and the Ordinance, all directors shall
be elected by the members in general meeting,

The company shall have at least seven directors. Subject to the said minimum,
the direclors themselves shall determine from time to time in the manner
provided in this article the number of directors that the company shall have. At
least thirty-five (35} days before the date of every general meeting at which
dircctors are intended to be elected, the directors shall fix the number of elected
directors that the company shall have from the effective date of the clection and
the number of such directors who shall be elected at the meeting. The number of
elected dircctors so fixed by the directors shall not be changed except with the
prior approval of the company in general meeting.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

A director who is out of Pakistan for not less than three
the approval of the board of directors and by notice in <
appoint any duly qualified person to be an alternativd
absence and such appointmem shall have effect, and such

dlrc(,tors dnd to attend and vote thcrc at accordingly, but shall ip}
office if and when the appointer returns to Pakistan or vacate office as a leCLlOX'
or removed the appointee from office by notice in writing under his hand.

An allernate director, even if not a member, shall, in the absence of a direction
to the contrary in the instrument appointing him, be entitled to notice of general
meetings of the company and to vote at such meetings on behalf of his
appointer, if his appointer is a member of the company, and generally to
represent his appointer.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND OTHER
PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The company shall have an office of Chief Executive which shall be filled from

time 1o time by the directors who may appoeint a director or (subject w section
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70.

71.

72.

73.

74,

201 of the Ordinance) any other person to be the Chief Executive of the
company for a period not exceeding three years and on such tlerms and
conditions as the directors may think fit, and such appointment shall be madc
within fourteen days from the date on which the office of Chief Executive lalls
vacant. If the Chief Executive at any time is not already a director he shall be
deemed to be a director of the company nolwithstanding that the numbcer of
directors shall thereby be increased and he shall be entitled to all the rights and
privileges and shall be subject to all liabilities of the office of director. Upon the
expiry of his period of office, a Chiel Executive shall be cligible for re-
appointment. The Chief Executive may be removed from office in accordance
with the provisions of section 202 of the Ordinance notwithstanding anything
contained in these articles or in any agreement between the company and the
Chicf Executive,

The directors may appoint other principal officers of the company including
chicl operating officer, chief financial officer and the company sccretary and
give such officer such designations and with such terms and conditions as the
dircctors may determine from time Lo time.

A Chief Executive of the company shall receive such remuneration as the
directors may determine and it may be made a term of his appointment that he
be paid a pension and/or gratuity and/or other benefits on retirement from his
office.

The directors may from time to time entrust o and confer upon the Chiel
Executive for the time being such of the powers exercisable under these articles
by the directors as they may think fit, and may confer such powers for such
time, and to be exercised for such objects and purposes, and upon such terms
and conditions, and with such restrictions as they think expedient; and thcy may
confer such powers, either collaterally with, or to the exclusion of, and in
substitution for all or any of the powers of the directors in that behalf; and may
from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers.

QUALIFICATION AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Any director who serves on any commitiee or who devoles special attention 1o
the business of the company, or who otherwise performs scrvices which in the
opinion of the directors are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a dircctor,
may be paid such extra remuneration as the directors may determine from time
to time. The remuneration of a director for attending meetings of the board shall
from time to time be determined by the directors.

Each director of the company may, in addition to any remuneration reccivable
by him, be reimbursed his reasonable travelling and hotel expenses incurred in
attending meetings of the direclors or of the company or otherwise whilst
employed on the business of the company.

The gualification of an clected director, in addition to his being a member,
where required, shall be his holding shares of the nominal va s, 10,000 at
least in his own name, but a director representing the iy 3

members holding shares of the nominal value of Rs.
no such share qualification. A director shall not be #
interests of a member or members holding shares i/ t
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qualifying a director shall not, while he continues to be such representative, be
appropriated for qualifying any other director. A director shall acquire his share
qualification within two (2) months from the effective date of his appointment
dircctor.

The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body so
long as their number is not reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant to
these articles as the necessary quorum of directors.

The office of a director shall ipso facto be vacated if:

(a) he ceased 1o hold the share qualification, if any, neccssary for his
appointment; or

(b) ke is found to be a unsound mind by a court of competent jurisdiction;
or

(c) he is adjudged an solvent; or has applied to be adjudicated as an
insolvent and his application is pending or is an un discharged
insolvent; or

(d) he has been convicted by a court of law for an offence involving moral
turpitude;
(e) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any private company of which

he is a director without the sanction of the company in general meeting
accepts or holds any office of profit under the company other than that
of a chief executive or legal or technical adviser or a banker in
contravention of the provisions of section 188 (c) (i) of the Ordinance;

(H he absents himself from three consecutive meetings of the
from all meetings of the directors for a continuous p
months, whichever is the longer, without leave of ab
board of directors; or

(2) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any private ¢
he is a director accepts a loan or guarantee from t
contravention of section 195 of the Ordinance; or

(h) he acts in contravention of section 214 of the Ordinance; or
(@) by notice in writing to the company he resigns his office; or
) he is removed from office by resolution of the company in genecral

meeting in accordance with section 181 of the Ordinance;

k) his appointment is withdrawn by the Authority nominating him as
director;
) he has betrayed lack of fiduciary behaviour and a declaration o the

effect has been made by the court under section 217 of the Ordinance at
any time during the preceding five years.

Subjeet w authorization being given by the direclors in accordance with section
196(2)(g) of the Ordinance, a director shall not be disqualified from contracting

with the company either as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such
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contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the company with any
company or partnership of or in which any director of the company shall be a
member or otherwise interested, be avoided, nor shall any such dircctor so
contracting or being such member or so interested be liable to account 1o the
company for any profit realized by any such contract or arrangement by reason
of such director holding that office or of the fiduciary rclationship so
established. A director who, or whose spouse or minor child, is in any way,
whether directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or
arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement with the company shall
disclose the nature of such concern or interest in accordance with section 214 of
the Ordinance thal is 10 say:

(a) in the case of a contract or arrangement 1o be entered into, at the
meeting of the directors at which the question of entering into the
contract or arrangement is first taken inte consideration or, il the
director was not, on the date of that meeting, concemed or interested in
the contract or arrangement, at the first meeting of the dircetors held
after he becomes so concerned or interested; and

(b) in the case of any other contracl or arrangement, at the first mecting of
the directors held afier the director becomes concerned or interested in
the contract or arrangement.

A general notice that any director of the company is a director or a member of
any other named company or is a member of any named firm and is to be
regarded as interested in any subsequent transaction with such company or [irm
shall, as regards any such transaction, be sufficient disclosure under this article.
Provided, however, that any such gencral notice shall expire at the end of the
financial year in which it was given and may be renewed for a further period of
one financial year at a time by giving fresh notice in the last month of the
financial year in which it would otherwise expire.

Whereby any contract or resolution of the directors an appoinlment or a
variation in the terms of an existing appointment is made (whether cflective
immediately or in the future) of a Chief Executive, whole time dircctor or
secretary of the company, in which appointment of any dircctor of the company
is, or after the contract or resolution becomes, in any way, whether directly or
indirectly, concerned or interested, or whereby any contract or resolution of the
directors, an appointment or a variation in the terms of appointment is made
(whether effective immediately or in the future) of a Chief Exccutive, the
company shall inform the members of such appointment or variation in the
manner required by section 218 of the Ordinance and shall comply with the
requirements of that section in regard to the maintaining of such contracts and
resolutions open for inspection by members at the office, the provision of
certified copies thereof and extracts there from and otherwise.

In accordance with section 219, the company shall maintain at its officc a
register or electronic record, in which shall be entered separately particulars of
all contracts, arrangements or appointments in which the directors are interested.
Such register or electronic record shall be open to inspection o the members
during business hours, subject 10 any regsesatesestriction that may be imposed

A director of the company may
promoted by the company or

of any other company
flay be interested as a
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vendor, shareholder or otherwise, and no such director shall be accountable for
any benefits received as a director or member of such other company.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors determined by the directors under section 178 shall be
elected to office by the members in general meeting in the following manner,
namely;

(a) a member present in person or by proxy shall have such number of
voles as is equal to the product of voting shares held by him and the
number of directors to be elected

(b) a member may give all his votes to a single candidate or divide them
between mere than cone of the candidales in such manner as he may
choose, and

(c) the candidate who gets the highest number of votes shall be declared

elected as director and then the candidate who gets the next highest
number of votes shall be so declared, and so on untl the total number of
directors to be elected has been so elected.

If the number of persons who offer themselves to be elected as directors is not
more than the number of vacancies for which elections are being held, such
persons being otherwise eligible shall be deemed to have been elected as
dircctors from the date on which the election was proposed to be effective.

A director elected under section 178 shall hold office for a period of three years
unless he earlier resigns or becomes disqualified from being a director, or
otherwise ceases to hold office. A retiring director of the company shall be
eligible for re-election.

The company in general meeting may remove a director from office by a
resolution passed with the requisite number of votes determine ;
with the provisions of section 181 of the Ordinance.

Any casual vacancy occurring among the directors may be
directors, and the person so appointed shall hold office for the 1
of the director in whose place he is appointed. Provided that t
not fill a casual vacancy by appointing any person who has bec
the office of a director of the company.

No person including a retiring director of the company shall be cligib
election 1o the office of director of the company at any general meeting unless
he has, not less than fourteen days before the date of the meeting, left at the
office, a notice in writing, duly signed, signifying his candidature for the office.

The company shall keep at the office a register of the directors and officers,
containing the particulars required by section 205 of the Ordinance and the
company shall otherwise comply with the provisions of that scction as regards
furnishing returns to the Registrar and giving inspection of the register.
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PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The directors shall meet in accordance with the Ordinance. Questions arising at
any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes and in case of an cquality of
votes the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the dircctors shall
be one-third of the number of directors or four directors, whichever is greater,
present in person. An altemate director whose appointment is cffective shall be
counted in a quorum. If all the directors except one are disqualified {rom voting,
the matter should be decided in general mecting.

A director may, and the secretary on the requisition of a dircctor shall, at any
time summon a meeting of the directors. Such meetings may be held using any
technology consented to by all the directors, including but not limiled to
telephone and video conferencing. The consent may be a standing one,
withdraw able by a director only within a reasonable period of time before the
meeting. It shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting of dircctors Lo any
director for the time being absent from Pakistan.

The board of directors of the company shall from time to time elect one of the
directors as Chairman of the board of directors of the company and determine
the period for which he is to hold office and his remuneration. The Chairman or
in his absence the Chief Executive shall preside over all meetings of the board
of directors, but if at any meeling neither the Chairman nor the Chicf Exceutive
is present in person within half an hour of the time appointed for holding the
same, the directors present in person may choose one of their number o be
Chairman of the meeting.

A meeting of the directors at which a quorum is present shall be compelent to
exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretion by or under these
articles for the time being vested in or exercisable by the directors generaily.

The directors may from time to time delegate of their powers 10 commillecs
consisting of such two members or more members of their body as they think
fit, and may from time to time revoke such delegation. Any committee so
formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any
regulations that may from time (o time be imposed upon it by the directors.

The meeting and proceedings of any such committee consisting of two or more
members shall be govemed by the provisions herein contained for regulaling the
meetings and proceedings of the directors, so far as the same are applicable
thereto.

All acts done by any meeting of the directors or by a committee of the dircctors
or by any person acting as a director of the company shall, notwithstanding that
is shall afterwards be discovered that there was some defect in the appointment
or continuance in office of any such directors or person acting as aforesaid, or
that they or any of them were disqualified or had vacated office, or were not
cnlit]ed to vote, be as valid as if every such person had becn duly appoinlcd or

article shall be deemed to giv
the appointment of such direct,
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A resolution, other than resolution in respect of any matter specified in section
196(2) of the Ordinance circulated through fax or cmail or any form of
clectronic transmission to all the directors for the time being entitled to receive
notice of a meeting of the directors, passed without any meeting of the directors
or of a commitiee of directors and signed or affirmed through fax or email or
any form of electronic transmission, by a majority of all directors in writing
under the hands of all directors (or in their absence their allernate directors) for
the time being in Pakistan, being not less than the quorum required for meetings
of the directors, or as the case may be of the members of the committee, shall be
valid and effectual as if it had been passed at the meeting of the directors, or as
the case may be of such committee, duly called or constituted. The resolution in
writing of the company may consist of several copies of a document signed by
one or more director(s) and takes effect at the date and time on which the last
director, necessary for the resolution to be passed, signs a copy of the resolution;
or a record of several signed electronic messages each indicaling the identity of
the sender, the text of the resolution and the sender’s agreement or disagreement
to the resolution, as the case may be and such a resolution takes effect on the
date on which the last director’s message, necessary for the resolution 10 be
passed, is received.

If any director of the company, being willing, shall be called upon to perform
cxira services or to make any special exertions in going or residing away from
his place of business for the time being for any of the purposcs of the company
or in giving special attention to the business of the company as a member of a
commitlce of the directors, the company may remunerate such dircctor so doing
either by a fixed sum or by a percentage of profits or otherwise as may be
determined by the directors, and such remuneration may be cither in addition to
or in substitution for his or their share in the remuneration above provided for
the directors,

MINUTES

purpose of or as an electronic record, of,
(a) all appointments of officers;

) the names of the directors present in person at
directors and of any committee of the directors;

{c) all orders made by the directors and committees of the dRaéf

(d) all resolutions and proceedings of general meeting and of meetings of
the directors and of the committees of the directors; .

and any such minutes of any meeting of the directors or of any such committec
or of the company, if purporting to be signed by the Chairman of such meeting
or by the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting, shall be prima facie
evidence of the matter stated in such minutes,

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The directors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Ordinance, and
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the company shall comply
with the provisions of the Ordinance in regard to the registration of the
particulars of mortgages and charges affecting the property of the company or
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created by it, to the keeping of a register of the directors, and o the sending o
the Registrar of an annual list of members and a summary of particulars relating
thereto, and notice of any consolidation or increase of share capital, sub-division
of shares, and copies of special resolutions and a copy of the register of directors
and notifications of any changes therein. All such information may be stored as
an electronic record and transmitted accordingly, where possible.

The control of the company shall be vested in the directors, and the business of
the company shall be managed by the directors who may exercise all such
powers of the company and do all such acts and things as may be exercised or
done by the company as by the Ordinance or by these articles or by a special
resolution expressly directed or required to be excrcised or donc by the
company in general meeting., subject nevertheless to any regulations of these
arlicles, to the provisions of the Ordinance, and to such regulations being not
inconsistent with the aforesaid regulations or provisions, as may he prescribed
by the company in general meeling; but no regulation made by the company in
gencral meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the directors which would have
been valid if that regulation had not been made.

Without prejudice to the general powers conferred by Ordinance and o any
ather powers or authoritics conferred by these articles on the directors, it is
hereby expressly declared that the directors shall subject to the exercise in
accordance with the Ordinance have the following powers, that is to say, power:

(a) To purchase or otherwise acquire for the company any property, rights
or privileges which the company is authorised to acqguire at such price
and generally on such terms and conditions as they think fit, and 1o sell,
let, exchange or otherwisc dispose of absolutely or conditionally any
part of the property, privileges and undertaking of the company upon
such terms and conditions, and for such consideration, as thcy may
think fit.

(b) At their discretion to pay for any property, rights, privileges acquired by
or services rendered to the company either wholly or partially in cash or
in shares (subject to the provisions of section 86 of the Ordinancc)
bonds, debentures or other securities of the company. Any such bonds,
debentures or other securities may be either specifically charged upon
all or any parl of the property of the company or not so charged.

(c) To open account with any bank or financial institution and deposit into
and withdraw money from such accounts from time to time.

(d) To make, draw, endorse, sign, accept, negotiate and give all cheques,
bills of lading, drafts, orders, bills of exchange, and other promissory
notes and negotiable instruments required in the business of the
company.

(e) To secure the fulfillment of any gesrs gureements or engagements

) Subject o the provisio oA {og ppoint and at their
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and to determine their powers and duties and fix their salaries or
emoluments and to require security in such instances and to such
amount as they think fit.

To appeint any person or persons (whether incorporated or not) to
accept and hold in trust for the company any property belonging to the
company or in which it is interested or for any other purposes, and to
execute and do all such deeds, documents and things as may be requisite
in relation to any such trust and to provide for the remuncration of such
trustee or trustees.

To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal
proceedings by or against the company or its officers or otherwise
concerning the affairs of the company and alse to compound and allow
time for payment or satisfaction of any debts due and of any claims or
demands by or against the company.

To refer claims or demands by or against the company to arbitration and
observe and perform the awards.

To make and give receipts, releases and other discharges for money
payable to the company and for the claims and demands of the
company.

To act on behalf of the company in all matters relating to bankrupts and
insolvents.

To determine who shall be entitled to sign on the company’s behall
bills, notes, receipts, acceptances, endorsements, cheques, releascs,
contracts and documents.

From time 1o time to provide for the management of the affairs of the
company either in different parts of Pakistan or elsewhere in such
manner as they think fit, and in particular w establigh ”—-‘ : and
1o appoinl any persons to be the attorneys or agep# oy
such powers (including power to sub-delegate
may be thought fit.

To invest and deal with any of the mondy3
immediately required for the purposes thereof \§
in such manner as they may think fit, and fro
realize such investments.

To execute in the name and on behalf of the company in faver of any
director of the company or other person who may incur or be about to
incur any personal liability for the benefit of the company, such
mortgages of the company’s property (present and future) as they think
fil, and any such mortgage may contain a power of sale and such other
powers, covenants and provisions as shall be agreed on.

To give to any person employed by the company, a commission on the
profits of any particular business or transaction or a share in the general
profits of the company, and such commission or share of profits shall be
treated as part of the working expenses of the company.
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(@ From time to time to make, vary and repeal bye-laws for the regulation
of the business of the company, its employces.

9] To enter into all such negotiations and contracts and rescind and vary all
such contracts and execute and do all such acts, deeds and things in the
name and on behalf of the company as they may consider expedicnt for
or in relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the
purposes of the company.

(s) To establish, maintain, support and subscribe to any charitable or public
object, and any institution, society, or ¢club which may be for the benefit
of the company or its employces, or may be connected with any town or
placc where the company carrics on business; (o give pensions,
gratuities, or charitable aid to any person or persons who have served
the company or o the wives, children, or dependants of such persen or
persons, that may appear o the directors just or proper, whether any
such person, his widow, children or dependants, have or have not a legal
¢laim upon the company.

) Subject to the provisions of section 227 of the Ordinance, before
recommending any dividends, to set aside portions of the profits of the
company to form a fund to provide for such pensions, gratuitics, or
compensation; or to create any provident or benefit fund in such or any
other manner as to the directors may seem fit.

(u) Subject to the provision of the Ordinance to accept from any member on
such terms and conditions as shall be agreed a surrender of his shares or
any part thereof.

v) To make advances and loans without security or on such security as
they may deem proper and as permissible under the law.

(w) To make and alter rules and regulations concerning the time and manner
of payment of the contributions of the employees and the company
respectively to any such funds and the accrual, employment, suspension
and forfeiture of the benefits of the said fund and the application and
disposal thereof, and otherwise in relation to the working and
management of the said fund as the directors shall from time 0 time
think fit.

x) To delegate all or any of the powers hereby conferred upon them 1o
such person or persens as they may from time to time think fit.

(y) Subject to section 213 of the Ordinance to authorize the having of an

official seal of the company for use abroadw
_g\(atlon Oﬁ; -
SFAREHOLDINGS

faintain at its office a
gey/aksaid in the section.
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<

POWER OF ARORREYS455 /

The ldireclcrs may from time to time anvgh Y 5 0y power of attorney
appoint any company, firm or person {including any director or officer of the
company) or body of persons, whether nominated directly or indircctly by the
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directors, to be the attorney or attorneys of the company for such purposes and
with such powers, authorities and discretions and for such peried and subject to
such conditions as they may think fit, and any such powers of atlorney may
contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing
with any such attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authoritics and
discretions vested in him; and without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing any such power of attorney may authorize the attorney to institute,
conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the
company, whether generally or in any particular case.

BORROWING POWERS

(2) The directors may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow money
and 1o morlgage or charge its undertaking, property and assets (both present
and future}, and to issue debentures, debenture stocks, and other securitics,
weather outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation
of the company or of any third party.

(b) In exercising the powers of the company aforesaid the directors may, from
time to time and on such terms and conditions as they think fit, raise money
from banks and financial institutions and from other persons under any
permitted system of financing, whether providing for payment of interest or
some other form of return, and in particular the directors may raise money
on the basis of the mark up on price, musharika, modaraba or any other
permitted mode of financing, and without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing the directors may cxercise all or any of the powers of the company

arising under section 19(2) of the Ordinance.

(c) In regard to the issue of securities, the director
the powers of the company arising under secti
Ordinance and in particular the directors may igf

Ordinance or participatory redeemable capital a?
of the Ordinance.

Debentures, debenture-stock, bonds and other securitiecs may be made
assignable free from any equities between the company and the person to whom
the same may be issued.

Any dcbentures, debenture-stock, bonds or other securilies may be issued at a
discount, premium or otherwise and with any special privileges as to
redemption, surrender, drawing, allotment of shares, attending and voting at
general meetings of the company, appointment of directors of the company or
otherwise.

The dircclors shall cause a proper register to be kept in accordance with the
provisions of section 135 of the Ordinance, of all mortgages and charges
specifically affecting the property of the company, and shall duly comply with
the provisions of the sections of the Ordinance, namely, sections 121 and 122
(Registration of mortgages and charges), section 128 (Endorsement of
certificates), section 129 (Filing of prescribed particulars), section 13(} (Keeping
of a copy of every instrument creating any mortgage or charge by the company
at the office) and section 132 (Giving of intimation of the payment or
satisfaction of any charge or mortgage created by the company).
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ACCOUNTS AND DIVIDENDS

109,

110.

111,

112.

113.

114,

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT

(References to books of account, balance sheet, profit and loss account and
auditors’ report shall hereinafter mutatis mutandis include ail electronic forms
of record or storage of the company.)

The directors shall cause to be kept proper books of account with respect Lo the
matters set out in section 230 of the Ordinance.

The hooks of account shall be kept at the office or at such other place as the
directors think fit, and shall be cpen to inspection by the dircetors during
business hours.

The company shall preserve in good order the books of account of the company
in respect of any financial year for a period of ten years following the close of
that year.

The directors shall from time o time determine whether and to what extent and
at what times and places and under what conditlions or regulations the accounts
and books of the company or any of them shall be open to the inspection of the
members, and no member (not being a director of the company) shall have any
right of inspecting any account or book or document of the company cxcept as
conferred by law or authorized by the directors or by the company in general
meeting.

(a) The directors shall arrange to place beflore the annual general meeting of the
company in every year a duly audited balance sheet and profit and loss
account having the auditors’ report attached thereto, and a report of the
directors conforming to the requirements of section 236 of the Ordinance.

(b} As required by section 241 of the Ordinance the balance sheet and profit
"and loss account shall first be approved by the directors and when so
approved shall be signed by the Chief Executive and at least one director
but if on account of his absence from Pakistan or other reason the signature
of the Chief Executive cannot be obtained, the balance sheet and profit and
loss account shall be signed by at least two directors for the time being in
Pakistan, and in every such case a statement signed by those two directors
shall be subjoined to the balance sheet and profit and loss account stating

the reason why the signature of the Chicf Executive was not obtained.

(c) The directors may authorize the Chairman or the Chief Executive to sign
the report of the directors which may then be signed accordingly, but in the
absence of any such authority the report of the directors shall be signed as
required by section 236(3) of the Ordinance in the samce manner as the
balance sheet and profit and loss account.

prescribed otherwise i
meeting to the memb

the date of the annual general
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(b} After the balance sheet, profit and loss account and the reports of the
directors and auditors have been laid before the annual general meeting of
the company, two copies thereof (or such larger number as may be
prescribed under section 242(1) of the Ordinance) signed by the signatories
thereto shall be filed with the Registrar within thirty days from the date of
the meeting,

The directers shall in all respects comply with the provisions of sections 230 to
236 of the Ordinance.
ANNUAL RETURNS

The company shall make the requisite annual returns in accordance with the
provisions of section 156 of the Ordinance.

DIVIDENDS

The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall
exceed the amount recommended by the directors.

No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of the profits of the year or any
other undistributed profits, and in the determination of the profits available for
dividends the directors shall have regard to the provisions of the Ordinance.

The declaration of the direclors as to the amount of the nct profits of the
company shall be conclusive.

The directors may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends
as in their judgment the position of the company justifig

I .
.cuon 251
WeXy interest

Any general meeting declaring a dividend may resolve that such dividend be
paid and satisfied wholly or in part in cash or by the distribution of specific
assets, and in particular by the distribution of paid-up shares, debentures,
debenture-stock or other security of the company, or paid-up shares, debentures,
debenture-stock or other security of any other company, or in any one or more
of such ways.

Any gencral meeting may resolve that any moneys, invesiments, or other assets
forming part of the undivided profits of the company standing to the credit of
the reserve fund or in the hands of the company and available for dividend (or
representing premiums received on the issue of shares and standing (o the credit
of the share premium account) be capitalized and distributed amongst such of
the members as would be entitled to receive the same if distributed by way of
dividend and in the same proportion con the footing that they become entitled
thereto as capital and that all or any part of such fund be applied on behalf of
such members in paying up in full any un-issued shares, debentures, debenture-
stock or other security of the company, which shall be distributed accordingly,
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and that such distribution or payment shall be accepted by such members in full
satisfaction of their interest in the said capitalized sum.

For the purpose of giving effect to any resoltution, the directors may scule any
difficulty which may arise in regard to the distribution as they think expedient
and may fix the value for distribution of any specific assets and may determine
that cash payments shall be made to any members upon the footing of the value
so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all parlies and may vest any such cash or
specific assets in trustees upon such trusts for the persons entitled w the
dividend or capitalized fund as may deem expedient Lo the directors. Where
requisile a proper contract shall be filed in accordance with the provisions of
section 73 of the Ordinance, and the directors may appoint any person Lo sign
such contract on behalf of the persons entitled to the dividend or capitalized
fund, and such appointment shall be effective.

A transfer of shares shall not pass the rights to any dividend declared thercon
before the registration of the transfer.

The directors may retain the dividends payable upon shares in respect ol which
any person is entitled to become a member or which any person under that
article is entitled to transfer until such person shall become a member in respect
thereof or shall duly transfer the same.

Any one of several persons who are registered as the joint-holders of any sharce
may give effectual receipts for all dividend and payments on account of
dividends in respect of such share.

The dividend in respect of any share shall be paid to the registered holder of
such share or to his banker or to a financial institution (as defined in scction
2(1){(15A) of the Ordinance) nominated by him for the purposc. Unless
otherwise directed, any dividend may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through
post to the registered address of the member or person entitled thereto, or, in the
case of joint-holders, to the registered address of that one whose name stands
first on the register in respect of the joint-holding, or 10 such financial institution
or bank as the member or person entitled thereto or such joint-holders, as the
case may be, direct, and every cheque or warrant so sent shall be made payable
to the order of the person to whom it is sent, or to the order of the institution or
bank, directed as aforesaid.

All dividends unclaimed for one year after having been declared may he
invested or otherwise made use of by the directors for the bencfit of the
company until claimed and all dividends unclaimed for three years alter having
been declared may be forfeited by the directors for the benefit of the company,
but the directors may annul the forfeiture wherever they may think proper.

RESERVE AND DEPRECIATION FUNDS

The directors may from time to time be ecommending dny dividmd set

for such other purposes of t
discretion think conducive to
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VI.

VIIL

investments, and dispose of all or any part thereof for the benefit of the
company, and may divide the reserve fund into such special funds as they think
fit, with full power to employ the reserve funds or any part thercof in the
business of the company, and that without being bound to keep the same
separatc from the other assets.

132, The directors may, from time to time before recommending any dividend, set
apart any and such portion of the profits of the company, as they think fit, as a
depreciation fund applicable at the discretion of the directors, for providing
against any depreciation in the investment of the company or for rcbuilding,
restoring, replacing or for altering any part of the buildings, work, plant,
machinery, or other property of the company destroyed or damaged by fire,
[food, storm, tempest, earthquake, accident, riot, wear and tear, or any other
means whatsoever, and for repairing, altering and keeping in good condition the
property of the company, or for extending and enlarging the buildings,
machinery and property of the company with full power to employ the assets
constituting such depreciation fund in the business of the company, and that
without being bound to keep the same separate from the other assets.

133, All moneys carried to the reserve fund and depreciation fund respectively shall
nevertheless remain and be profits of the company applicable, subject to due
provision being made for actual loss or depreciation, for the payment of
dividends and such moneys and all the other moneys of the company not
immedialcly required for the purposes of the company may be invested by the
dircctors in or upon such investment or securities as they may select or may be
used as working capital or may be kept at any bank on deposit or otherwise as -
the directors may from time to time think proper.

134,  The directors may also carry forward any profits which they may think prudent
not (o distribute, without setting them aside as a reserve.

AUDIT

in ach){

G £ R,

135.  Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulf
sections 252 to 255 of the Ordinance or any statutgff
the time being in force.

SEAL
136.  The directors shall provide a common seal of the co

by a committee of directors authorized in that behalf by the directors, and tweo
(2) directors, or one (1) director and the secretary of the company, shall sign
every instrument to which the common seal is affixed.

137.  The directors may provide for the use in any territory, district or place not
situated in Pakistan, of an official seal which shall be a facsimile of the common
seal of the company, with the addition on its face of the name of every territory,
district or place where il is 10 be used. The official seal shall not be affixed to
any instrument excepl by the authority of a resolution of the board or by a
commillee of directors authorized in that behalf by the directors, and two (2)
directors, or one (1) director and the secretary of the company, or such other
person as the directors may appoint for the purpose, shall sign every instrument
to which the official seal is affixed. The provisions of section 213 shall apply to
the use of the official seal.
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VIII. NOTICES

138.

A nolice may be given by the company to any member cither persenally or by
sending it by post to him at his registered address or (if he has no registered
address in Pakistan) to the address, il any, within Pakistan supplied by him o
the company for the giving of notices to him or in electronic form as prescribed
by section 3 of the Electronic Transactions Ordinance.

IX. AMALGAMATION, DIVISION AND RECONSTRUCTION

139.

Subject 10 and in accordance with the provisions of section 287, the company
may reconstruct, amalgamate into another company or divide into two (2) or
more companics in the process of which the whole or any part of the
undertaking, property or liabilities of the company or any other company, may
be transferred to any other company or the company, respectively, as the casc
may be. Provided that any sale of the undertaking of the company, the directors,
or the liquidator on a winding up, may, if authorized by a special resolution,
accept fully paid shares, debentures or securities of any other company, whether
incorporated in Pakistan or not, either then existing or to be formed, for the

purchase in whole or in part of the property of the company, and the dircctors (if

the profits of the company permit) or the liquidator (in a winding up) may
distribute such shares, or securities, or any other property of the company
amongst the members without realization, or vest the same in trustees for them,
and any special resolution may provide for the distribution or appropriation of
the cash, shares or other securities, benefits or property, otherwise than in
accordance with the strict legal rights of the members or contributorics of the
company, and for valuation of any such securities or properly at such price in
such manner as the meeting may approve, and all holders of shares shall he
bound to accept and shall be bound by any valuation or distribution so
authorized, and waive all rights in relation therclo, save only in casc the
company is proposed to be or is in the course of being wound up, such statutory
rights (if any) under section 367 of the Ordinance as are incapable of being
varied or excluded by these articles.

X. SECRECY

140,

141.

Every director, manager, adviser, auditor, trustee, member of a committee,
officer, servant, agent, accountant or other person employed in the business of
the company shall, if so required by the directors before entering upon his
duties, sign a declaration pledging himself to observe a strict scerecy respecting
all transactions of the company with its customers and the state of accounts with
individuals and in matiers relating thereto and shall by such declaration pledge
himself not to reveal any of the matters which may come to his knowledge in
the discharge of his duties except when required to do so by the directors or by
any meeting or by any Court of law and except so far as may be necessary in
order to comply with any of the provisions in these articles contained.

the property of the company or to i
properties of the company witho e.fﬁe Y} ‘ lha. irectors ﬁ)r lhc, time
being or to require discovery of ¢k@ny 1' SB PNy g any delail of the

company’s trading or any matte QTuc x, BT 2 e naturc of a trade
secret, mystery of trade, or secr @'oc 79, attgr whatsoever which
may relate to the conduct of the u;spine. BHicA0mpghy and which in the
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XL

XII.

opinion of the directors it will be inexpedient in the interest of the members of
the company o communicate.

ARBITRATION

142,

143.

144,

145,

WINDING UP

146.

147.

Whenever a difference arises between the company on the one hand and any of
the members, their executors, administrators, or assignees on the other hand
louching the true intent or construction or the incident or consequences of these
presents, or of the status of enactment’s of the legislature, or touching anything
then or thereafter done, executed, omitted or suffered in pursuance of these
presents or of the status of enactment’s touching any breach or alleged breach or
otherwise relating to the premises or to these presents, or to the status or to any
of the affairs or officers of the company, the company by written agreement
refer to arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Act 1940 (X of 1940) and
every such difference shall be referred to the decision of an arbitrator 1o be
appuinted by the parties in difference or if they cannot agree upon a single
arbitrator, Lo the decision of two arbitrators, one appointed by such party, or in
the event of disagreement of the arbitrators, to that of an umpire appointed by
arbitrators themselves. The provisions of Arbitration Act 1940 (X of 1940) shall
apply to all arbitrations between the company and persons having such
difference.

If either party to the difference makes default in appointing the arbitrator for
fifieen days after the other party has given to him notice to appoint the same,
such other party may appoint an arbitrator to act in the place of the arbitrators of
the defaulting party.

The costs of, or incidental to any such reference and award shall be in the
discretion of the arbitrator/arbitraters or umpire as the case may be who may

what manner the same shall be borne and paid.
In the event that a dispute, claim, or controversy arises between t
management or its shareholders, or the directors, all steps may
the dispute and resolve the issue through mediation by an acc "
before taking recourse to formal dispute resolution such al

litigation. =

If the company shall be wound up and the assets available for distribution
among the members as such shall be insufficient to repay the whole of the paid-
up capital, such assets shall be distributed so that as nearly as may be the losses
shall be borne by the members in proportion to the capital paid up on the sharcs
held by them respectively. And if in a winding up the assets available for
distribution among the members shall be more than sufficient to repay the whole
of the capital paid up at the commencement of the winding up, the cxcess shall
be distributed amongst the members in proportion to the capital at the
commencement of the winding up, paid up on the shares held by them
respectively. - But this article is to be without prejudice to the rights of the
holders of shares issued upon special terms and conditions.

If the company shall be wound up, whether voluntarily or otherwise, the
liquidator may with the sanction of a special resolution divide among the
members in specie or kind any part of the assets of the company, and may with
the like section vest any part of the assets of the company in trustees upon such
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trusts for the benefit of the members or any of them as the liquidator with the
like sanction shall think fit.

XIII, INDEMNITY

148.  Every director or officer of the company and every person employed by the
company as auditor shall be indemnified out of the funds of the company
against all liability incurred by him as such director, officer or Auditor in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is
given in his favor, or in which he is acquitted, or in connection with any
application under section 488 of the Ordinance in which relief is granted to him
by the Court.
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. t ' We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being formed
into a company, in pursuance of this Articles of Association, and we respectively agree to take the

e number of shares in the Capital of the company as set opposite Lo our respective name(s).
Name and Nationality o Number of
Surname Father’s / Husband’s with any . Residential shares
(Present & Name in Full Former Occupation Address (in taken by | Signature
Former in Full) Nati()nality Full) cach
subscriber
Mian Tariq . 01
Sayced Saigol Mian Muhammad akislani strialis Mai One
CNIC # 35200- SaycedSaigol Pakistani Industrialist éZu]Mb:l:n Lahore
5293106-5 &, Lanore.
Mian Taufique House No. 1, 0l
Sayeed Saigol Mian Muhammad R I Kohinoor - One
CNICH#ITA05. SayecdSaigol Pakistani Industrialist Colony,
0436841-7 Peshawar Road,
Rawalpindi.
Sayced Tariq 01
Saigol aki stani strialis ; One
s . . . Pakistani Industrialist | 12-Main
. M - T, S. o P
CNIC#35202 ian Tariq SayeedSaigol Gulberg, Lahore.
0560944-1
Walced Tariq (()’;c
Saigol Mian Tariq SaveedSaigol Pakistani Industrialist | 12-Main
i CNIC#35202- a8y & Gulberg, Lahore.
. §546058-7
Mian Danial House No. 1, 01
Taufique Saigol Akictan striali Kohinoor One
CNIC#37405- MianTaufiqueSayecedSaigol Pakistani Industrialist Colony,
74813439 Peshawar Road,
Rawalpindi.
Syed Muhm:n Business House No. 20
Ra;:.a Nagvi Syed Munawer Hussain Pakistani Execu[i\l/ . B, Street No/g
CNIC#3I52025- | Nagui ¢ | Cavalary
155530-7 Ground,
Arif ljaz Pakistani Business House # 1
CNIC#35201- Mian Ijaz Ahmed a Executive Phase-3, ’ N
4540213-7 Lahore Ca b, g 1B
Maple Leaf Pakistani Company 42-Lawrence ‘57;,”‘,.; ?99&33‘\5\‘ 74
Cement Factory Road, Lahore W
Limited ' . Hundred
CUIN# 0001107 Ninety Nine
through its o~ - Thousand
nominee, Syed < PY Nine
Mohsin Raza CERT OBETR co Hundred
r Nagwvi Ninety
' CNIC#352025- Three
N 155530-7 ' ANIES
ADDY! LAY
CO APANY,; REG! otal Numbe 1,000,000
d for pRERAMS One
“Thia Certile) Tr"rl; C;E;:: ::rv::’ﬂfy company's recor Million
. account opm:%'“:p,munneheﬁ by the SECP.
Dated this 8™ day of Qctober 20 throug -
Witness to the above Signatures:
Signature : Full Name: National Institutional Facilitation
Technologies (Private) Limited
Qccupation :  NIFT Full Address: 5" Floor, AWT Plaza, L. I. ChundrigarRoad,

Karachi,
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 7™ Annual Report along with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022,

Principal Activities

Maple Leaf Power Limited was incorporated on October 15, 2015 under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). It is a Public Limited Company with
principal activity to generate, purchase, transform, distribute and supply electric power.

Performance and Financial Review

In the year under review, the Company throughout the year successfully operated 40 MW coal
fired power plant and provided not only uninterrupted power supply but also supplied steam to
the Holding Company, Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCF) by efficiently operating
its boiler capacity. The Company recorded net sales of Rs. 5,252 million against Rs. 4,236

million in the corresponding period last year. l}efélnpmy achieved gross profit of Rs. 928
million against Rs. 1,127 million in comparat:

'ealj with deckease of 17.66%. Operating profit
for the year was Rs. 967 million as compared.to Rs. 1, 290 million during the corresponding

period last year. Finance costs during the;reporting period decreased to Rs. 21 million as
compared to Rs. 31 million during the lagtjyear The Compan)f earned net profit of Rs. 916
million against Rs.1,153 million in the cof*réspondmg pemod last year. Earnings per share for
the year ended June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 1. 82 agamst Rs . 2;'.30 last year.

The Company’s capacity utilization was 84% for the y year under review as compared to 95% in
previous year mainly due to varying demand from the Bulk Power Purchaser (the Holding
Company) resulting in decrease in gross profit.

Non-Financial Review
The Company is blessed with highly skilled technical staff who worked hard with zeal and
dedication. The Chinese power plants are recognized as cost effective and efficient in the

energy sector.

Name of Directors

For the year under review, following were the Directors of the Company: -

Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol Chairman

Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol Chief Executive
Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol Director

Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol Director

Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol Director

Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi Director

Mr, Arif [jaz Director

The details of the remuneration paid to the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company are
disclosed in Note 32 of the Financial Statements.



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

During the year, the Company faced the challenge of rapid increase in coal prices in
international market and devaluation of Pak Rupee against US Dollar. To ease out the pressure
on cost sides, the Company successfully shifted to usage of Afghan coal that was procured from
local market, resultantly, the Company was able to avoid huge foreign currency exchange loss
and was able to dilute the impact of major increase in coal rates in international market.

The Cement demand is highly correlated to the Government’s spending in development
projects through Public Sector Development Program (PSDP). The PSDP in FY 2022-23 has
been enhanced with special emphasis given to regional connectivity, investment on building
large dams and water conservation systems.

In light of the above factors, the company is expected to produce electricity for Bulk Power

Purchaser (The Holding Company) with almost full operational capacity during the year 2022-
23.

Change in Nature of Business

No changes have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of
the Company.

Auditors’ Report

The Auditors have expressed un-modified opinion on the audited financial statements of the
Company.

Default of Payments, Debt/Loan etc.

The Company is current on repayment of its debt obligations and no default has occurred till
cut of date of these financials.

Adequacy of Internal Controls

The Directors are aware of their ne)sponmblhty w1th yrespect to internal financial controls.
Through discussions with manage}fhent and auditors. (both internal and external), they confirm
that adequate controls have been 1mplemented by the Company

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments \:\iffectilng' the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 as at June
30, 2022 is annexed.



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042.36302261

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax 92.04236368721

Auditors
The present auditors of the Company, M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
audited the financial statements of the Company and have issued report to the members. The

auditors will retire at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM) and they are eligible
for re-appointment,

Acknowledgment
We would like to thank all our stakeholders who have placed their confidence in us and also
appreciate the efforts put in by the management team for their unwavering commitment and

hard work.

on behalf of the Board

Qv } / (Sayeed Tariq Saigol)

Chief Executive

For an

{Sy aza

Director

Lahore: August 31, 2022
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 227(2)(D}

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
PART-1

(Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals.)

I.1 Name of the Company Maple Leaf Power Limited ]
PART-1I
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 1 Jjo]-Jolel-]2]aiz2]2]
2.2 No of
shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held

[ 7 i | sharcholding from | to 100 shares ] 7 ]
] - | | shareholding from 101 to 500 shares | - |
| - ] | shareholding from 501 1o 1000 shares | - ]
[ - ] [sharcholding from 1001 to 5000 1 | - ]
[ - | | shareholding from $001 to 10000 | - ]
[ 1 ] [sharcholding from 501,995,000 10 502.000.000 ] ] 501,999,993 ]

{Add appropriate slabs of shar¢holdings)
( 08 | Total: | | 502,000.000 |

Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not beer shown.

2.3, Categories of
Shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive M, Tariq Sayeed Saigo! H 0.0000002
Officer, and their spouse and Mr. Sayeed Tarig Saigo! 1 0.0000002
miner children, Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Waleed Tarig Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Danial Taufigue Saigol 1 0.0000002
Syed Mohsin Raza Nagvi_ 1 0.0000002
Mr. Arif fjaz .= W 0.0000002
£ .'Sub Totals | - % T 0.0000014
2.3.2 Associated Companies, Maple %Ccmc&_u 501,999.99 69.9699986
undertakings and related Factory{Lfmited -
parties. ‘ 2 ‘ *
2.3.3 NIT and ICP [ L 10 - |
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial ‘ -
Institutions, Non Banking -
Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companics [ - ] [ - |
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds. | - ] ( - j
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% [ Refer 2.3.2 || - |
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local - -
b. Foreign . .
2.3.9 Others (to be specified) [ - ]
Grand Total : 100.000
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jail Road,

Lahore 54000 Pakistan :

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Maple Leaf Power Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Maple Leaf Power Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affzirs as at 30 June 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and iis cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards-Board-fer Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in/accordance with the'Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial .S‘m!ews‘ its-and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other inforreation comprises the infermation included
in the director’s report for the year ended 30'June 2022, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. o L ’

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in deoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statemnents or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 5&\
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Responsibilities of managentent and board of directors for the financial stalements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unmless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the qudit of the financiaf statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemcnts asa whole are free

Misstatements can arise fiom fraud or error and are considered material if,; 5 mdivi'dually orin‘the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions offusers taken on the basrs‘. of these

and maintain professmnal skepnmsm throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern. \ﬁ\
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 201 7(XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d} no zakat was deductible at source under the Za_.kat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIH of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Rehan Chughtai,

BT T BN S

Lahore K ",  KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,
TR Chartered Accountants

Date: 31 August 2022
UDIN: AR202210183PBvm50yTQ

AR4822




.

0y

Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statenaem of Financial Position
Aear 30 June 2022

922 2024 2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note (Rupees in ¢housands) ASSETS Note {Rupces in thousands)
Shure capitel and reserpes Nou-curreat assets
Aulhorized share capital
600.000,000 (202 1: 600,000,000) ordinary sharcs of Rs. 10 each 6,000,000 6,000,600 Property. piant and equipment 14 4,695,357 4,934,690
Long tena foan to Holding Company 12 2,000,000 1,000,000
Issued. subscribed and paid - up share capital 5 3.020,000 5,020,000 6,693,357 5.934,690
Accumulated profic 1603438 675521
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and cquipment G 177,626 188,584
6.801,084 5.884.105
Non evtrrent lahiliries Carrent ussets
Defeered taxation 7 31,244 43,633 Stores ;md spares includiog coul 13 471,121 309,010
Advances 14 11,082 10.649
Current Gabifliles Due from Holding Company 15 132,596 61,225
Murgin and prepayments 16 15,027 15.021
‘Crade and other pavables 8 658,730 540,713 Advaiee tax- net 109,190 133.9%0
Short tenn boreowings - securcd : 9 - 30,000 Accrucd mark-up 7 247 21,492
Accrued mark-up - 624 Cash and bank batanees 18 13,668 11,002
658,730 371,337 301 562,385

791058 3 7491058 CATTS

i

Contingencles and commitments 1a

“The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of tiese (nancinl statentents.
N

\ AN——=N_

' Chief Executive

Lahore
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Maple Leafl Power Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
Far the year ended 30 June 2022

Note
Sales ~ nel i9
Cost of Sales 20
Gross profit
Adminisirative expenses 21
Other income 22
Other charges 23
Profit from operations
Finance cosl 24
Profit before taxation
Taxalian ‘ 25

Profit after {axation

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousnnds)

5,252,001 4,236.412
(4,324,351) (3,109,406)
927,740 1,127,006
(6,020) (6.676)
133,148 235,829
(88,317) {66,250)
966,351 1,289,909
(21,416) (31,151)
945,135 1,258,758
(29,115) (106,057)
916,020 1,152,701 \QS

The annexed notes from 1 te 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore
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___Chief Executive




Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Profit after taxation

Dileer coinpreliensive income
Kems thot will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Strplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Related tax

‘T'otal comprehensive income for the year

Lahore : _‘\J R
Director

.i:

'
I
I
1
1
1
é
!
i
i
|
i
1
I
I
I
I
7
1

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousands)

The annexed notes from | to 35 form an integral part of thesc financiats

(;070, A

Chief Executive

T

916,020 1,152,701
- (3,339)
- (3.339)
916,020 1,149,362 \Q‘S
Hements.
(SR

M N
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Changes 1n Equity
For the year encled 30 June 2022

As st 30 Junc 2020

Tasul camprehensive inconme [or the veur
Profit after taxution
Other comprehensive income

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on
revaluation of fixed assels

Truuguciions with owners ol the Coppary

Jisterim cash dividend @ Rs. 7 per shere for the
year cnded 30 June 2021
As ot 30 June 2021

Total comprehensive inomne for the vear

f'rofit aller wxalion
Oiher comprehiensive income

Ingremental depreciation retating to surphus on
revaluation of fixed nssels - nel of lax

LiTeet of change in efTective lax mte
As at 30 June 2022

Lahoro

Surplus on

Share . Accumulnied e , R
Capital revaluation of orofit Iorsl Equity
property, pliut
nnud eguipment
{Rupees in thansands)
5,020,000 203,990 3,024,753 8,248,743
- - 1,152,701 1,132,701
- (3.339) - (3.339)
- (3.339 1.152,701 1.149.562
- (12,067 12,067 .
- - {3,514,000) {3,514,000)
5,020,000 188,584 675,521 5,834,105
. - 916,020 916,020
- . 916,020 916,020
- {11,917 11,917 -
- 959 - 959
5,020,600 177,626 1,603,458 6,801,084

&

Director

r?&u | N—

&

C

A

hief Executive




Maple Leaf Power Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
Far the year ended 30 June 2822

Coslt flow from operating aedviges Nowe
Profit befoce taxation
Adjushuent for:

Depreciution 1!

Mackup on long term [oan 10 Holding Company
Workers' Profil Participation Fund

Workers' Weilare Fund

Finance cost

Markup from bank deposils

Cnsh geaersted from operations before working copital changes

Effect o ejsi flow dirg to warking papitel ehanges

ffucrease) / decrease i current dssels:
Stores v spares
Due lrom the Holding Compeny
Advances
Short termy deposits and prepayments
Otlier reccivables

Increase - tideerease) in current liabilities:
Teude ond ether payables

Net cash generated lrom operitions

Workets' Profit Panicipation Fund Paid

Finuner cosl prid

“Faxes paid

Net ¢nsh geverated from opernting activitics

Cash flaw frag investin, ivitie

Fixed capital expendilure

(Inercase} / decreasy in lang term lown 10 [Holding Company 12
Markup received Irom bank deposits

Muarkup received from long lerm foan to Halding Comparty
Neteash (used tn) 7 genernted from investing aetivities

Cash flaw from foagelug activitigs

Short tecrn borrowvings - ncl

Long wnn laans paid

Dividend paid

Neteash vsed in Goanging nelivities

Net inerease in cash and cash equlyalents

Cush and cash equivalenis st begioning of lhe yonr
Cash and cush equivatents nt end of the yeur

Casily and cash equivalents for the purposes of the eash fows siakement consists oft
Cash in hangl
Current und ather nesounts

Short term nmaing finance

‘Toral cash and eash equivalents

The anexed notes (rom | 1o 35 form an integed pan of the cialstntements.

Lahore

022

2021

{Rupees in thousnuds)

945,135 1,258,758
334,170 307.205
(504,170 (197.875)
50,814 66,250
20,325 .
21416 EINEY
{1,207) {1,371}
1,286,483 14G4.115
(174924 138.003
{70,371) 226,031
(433) 67.504
{0} 80
. a6
(296.724) 453403
26473 {37.1116)
1,036222 - (> 1:880.12

7 +(3.080)

/g0 -
{1 03ms)

.
s,
~aosisy,

TR

REXET (B

“(£:200,000
“fr
93,301 ]
(954.687) 1.239.638
- )
- (32956)
- (3.514.600)
T (3.878.169)
42,0666 176,377
(18998) _ (195375)
23,668 ((8.998)
601 sl
23.067 10161
- {30.000)
23,668 {18,908}

ens p M=

Chief ﬁxecutive




Maple Leaf Power Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Corporate and general information

Maple Leaf Power Limited ¢ the "Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 Octaber 20135 as a public
limited company under the Companies Ovdinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 20§7). The Company has
been established 1o sct up and operate a 40 megawall coal fired power generation plant at Iskanderabad,
District ivlianwali, Puniab, Pakistan for generation of electricity. The Company's vegistered office is located
al 42 - Lawrence Road, Lahore. The principal objective of the Company is 1o develop. design, operate and
maintain eleciric power generation plant and in copnection therewith lo engage in the business of gencration,
sale and supply of electricity. The Company is & wholly owned subsidiary of iviaple Leaf Cement Frciory
Limited ("the Holding Company"). The ultimale parent company is Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited.

The Company was granted electricity gencration license from National Eleciric and Power Regolatory
Autherity (NEPRA)Y on 20 December 2016, The Company entered into a power purchase and steam
purchase agreements with Holding Company on 04 July 2017 and 31 October 2019 respectively which are
vitlid for 20 years,

Basis for preparation
2.1 Statement of complinnce

These financial stateinents have been prepared in accerdance with the accounting and reporting
slandards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporling standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise oft

- International Financial Reporling Standards (IFRS) issued by the Internatianal Accounting
Standnrds Board (JASB) ns notificd under the Companies Act 2617,

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Iustilute of Chartered
Accountanls of Pakistan as notified under the Compnanies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives fesued {iﬁ‘c_fcml;e Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the
provisions of and dircetivesdssued] under the Companics Act, 2017 have been followed.

= " -
22 Basis of measurement ! > : 5\
These financial smlements hau_ hecn prcparcd under the historical cost convention except for
buildings on leaschold Tahd and planl machmery and eleciric installation which are measured w
revalued amount.

23 Functional and presentation, euu'ency .

These financial statements have ccn'prcp’ared in Pok Rupees ("Rs.") which 35 the Company's
functional currency. The amounts are rounded ofT 10 nearest thousand.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity witly approved accounting standnrds requives
managerent 10 make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reporied amounts of assels, [iabilities, income and expenses. The eslimales and associated
assumptions are based on historica] expericnce and various other factors that are believed (o be
reasonable under circumstances. and the results of which form (he basis for making judament about
carrying value of assets and liabilities thay are not readily apparent fron other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates,

AN
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2.4.1
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2.4.3

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions (o
accounting estimates are recognized in e period in which estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and fieture pericds.

The areas where assumptions and estimates or where judgment was exercised by (he menagement
in application of accotmting policies arc as follows:

Property, ptant and equipment

The management of the Compaty reassesses useful lives and residual value for each ftem of
property, plant and equipment annually by considering expected patiern of economic benefiss that
the Company expects {o derive fram iat item and the maximum period up t0 which such benefits
are cxpecled to be available. Any change in esiimates in future yenrs migi affect the carrying
amonnts of respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and {mpairment, During the year, the Company has changed depreciation
method far all class of assets other than plant, machinery and electiical installations to straight line
basis. The effect of change in the deprecintion method is not considered material 10 the financial
statements, lience, no disclosure to Ihis effect is made in these finuncial statements.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipnient

Revaluation of property, planl and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers.
The Company uses revaluation model only for #&bwldlngs an leasehold land and plant, machinery
and elecirical insiallations,

7

pbli'ﬂ\é"c!iai\gcs in“fajr values of the items of property,
plant and ¢quipment being revalued: When the fair vahie ol a chalucd asset differs materially from
its carrying amountl, o further 1eva1u=1;|on ‘Is_required. Such f’requcnl revaluations are uanecessary
for items of property, plam ang equqa()pen[wuh only msngmf‘ cant changes in fair value. instead, it
may be necessary to revalue the e orly evezy lhrce to i ve years

Expected eredit loss (ECL) / Loss ullow‘a uces '\gmust trade debts, long term loans, advanees,
short term deposits and other receivables -

ECLs are basad on the difference benween the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and al) the cash Mows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation 1o the asset eriginal effective interest rate.

The Company his elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified
approach and has caleulated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a
provision mairix {hat is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specilic to the debtors and Lhe econiomic environment. When determining
whether the credit risk ol & financial assel has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or ¢ffort. This includes both quantitative and qualitmijve
information and analysis, bosed on the Company's historlcal experience and informed credil
assessmenl including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contraciual period over
which the Company fs exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial asscts measured at
amortized cost are deducted {ram the pross carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment on financinl assels other than (rade debt has been measured on a [2-monih txpected
loss basis and reflects the shorl maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that [is cash
and cash equivalents have Jow credil risk based on Lhe external credit ealings of the counterparties,
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2.4.6

The Company reviews the recoverabilily of its financial assets to assess amount of Joss allowances
required there against on an annual basis.

Recoverable nmaunt of nssets / cush generating unit and impnirment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generaling units
for possible impairment and, makes formal estimates of recoverable ameunt if there is any such
indication,

Provisions and contingencics

The Company reviews the slaws of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based
an (he judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimaied financial outconic,
appropriate disclosure or provision is made, The actual outcome of these [itigations and claims can
have an effect en (he carrying amouns of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax inw and decisjons {aken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income lax
departiment 2t the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on ilems of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Summary of signifieant ncconnting policies

The significant accounting policies adopied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below, These policies have been consistenily applied to all years presented.

3.1

Property, plant and equipment and revaluation surplus

Ownied

Tangible assels except buildings on leaseliold Jand, plani, machinery and electrical instalintions arc
stated &t cost less accumulsled depreciation and impairment, if any. Buildings on leaschold las,
ptant, machinery and electric installation are staled at revalued amount being the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less any subsequent aceumulaled depreciation and impairment losses. Surplus
on revaluation is booked by restating gross carrying ameunts of respeclive assets being revalued,
proportionately to the change in heir carrying amounts due io revaluation. The accumulated
depraciation at the dae of revaluation is also adjusted to cqual difference between gross carrying
amounts and the carrying amounts of the assets afler taking into account accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets to the extent of the anmual incremenial
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset is transferred annually to retained
earnings neil of related deferred tax if any. Upaen disposal, any revaluation reserve relating 10 the
porticular assets being sold is wransferred 1o retained earnings. All transfers 10 / from surplus on
revaluntion of fixed assets account are net of applicable deferred income lax, if any.

Capital work-in-progress is siated al cost less.identified impaiement losses, if any. All expenditnre
connected with specific assets incurred: 8umw inslallanon and construction period are carried under
capital work-in-progress. These a zpnsfengd_lq specificgssets as and when these are available for
use. o Lo

the day-ig-day scr\ncmg of propcr(y planl and cqu:pmenl,nre recognized in stnlement of profit or
loss as Incurred. - ;
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Gaiis / losses on disposal or retirement of assets, il any, are 1aken to statement of profit or loss,

Depreciation is ealenloted at the rales specified in note 11 using siraight line method. Depreciation
on additions io praperty, plant and equipment is charged from the moalh in which the item becomes
available for use. Depreciation is discontinued from (he month in which it is disposed or classified

ns held for disposal.

Increnses in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of building, plant and efectsieal equipment
is recognised, in other comprehensive income and accumulated In reserves in sharchokders' equity.
To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in profit or loss, the
increase Ts first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same
asset are first recognised in other comprehensive incoine to the extent of the remsaining surplus
attributable to the assel; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss,

Financial instruiments
Recognition snd initial measurement

All financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a
puirly to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A Dnancial asset (unless it is n trnde receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially mensured at fair value plus, for an jtem not al FVTPL, transaction cosis
that are direcily auributable 10 its acquisilion or issue. A receivable without a significant financing
component is initinlly measured ag the tennsaction price,

Classification nnd subsequent nieasurement

Finauciel assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset js classified as measured sl amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and fair value through profit,ert3ss{FVTRL).
Financial assets are not ceclassified subscquent to their initial ve gnili.‘én‘li‘hlesswtltp Cdx;i;i)\n:ty
changes its busiitess model for managing financial assets, in which gase.ali affected financial assets
are reclassified on the first day of the first veporting period following the change in the business
model. ' [ o

e

Amoriized cost

A financial assel is measared a1 amortized cost if it meets bath of the Foi!oﬁi_@_ﬁ:gg}(ljﬁoﬁé and is
not designated as at FYTPL:

. it is held within a business mode] whose objective is to hold assets (o collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contraclual (erms give rise on specilied dales to cash fiows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount eutstanding.

These asscts are subsequently mensured at emorlized cost using the effective interest method, The
amorlized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest incoine, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit or boss. Any gain or loss an derecagnition is recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of eash and bank balances, due from Holding
Compnny, long term loan to Holding Company and accrued profit .
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Debt Instrignent - FYOCT

A debt invesiment is measured at FYQCH if it meets both of the lollowing conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business modcl whose objective is athicved by both collecting
contractua] cash flows and selling fnancin] assets: and

- ils contractual terms give rise on specified dates 16 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

These assels are subsequently measured al lair valize. interest income caleulated using the effective
interest method, forcign exchange gnins und fosses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCIL On derccognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss, owever, the Company has no such insteument al the

reporiing date.

Eguity fnsirinent - FVOCT

On inilial recognition of an cquity investment thai is not held for rading, the Company may
irrevocably clect to present subsequent chanaes in the investment's fair value in OCL. This election
is made on an investment-by-investiment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are rceopnized as income in profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the invesiment. Cther
net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassificd to profit or loss. However, the
Company has no such instrument at the reporling date.

Fatr value throuch profit ar foss (FVYTPL}

All financia) assets not classified as measured alL amortized cost or FVOCI as deseribed above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initia) recognition, the Company may irrevocably desigaate a financial assel that othenwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or al FVOCI as at FVTPL If doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequenily neasuyed at fair value. Net gains and losses, jncluding any interest or
dividend incomne, are cecognized in profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at
the reporting date.

Financial assets — Business maodel assessment:

For the purposes of the assessment, *principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset an
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as considertion for the time valuc of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding ducing a particular pericd of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liqu__idily:ris 1d administrative costs), as well as a
profit masgin. T

In asscssing whether the contractual (:'1511 ﬂows are solely mymcmﬁ of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terfs of the instrument. This inclides assessing whether the
financial asset conlains a coniractun térm that could change the timjng or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meel th:s condmon. In makmg thls assessment, the Company
considers: 5 ]

)

\,
- contingent events that would change{l\he amount ot lumng of cash fows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual covpon r e, inchiding variable-rate featres;
- prepayment and extension fentures; and
- terms that linjf the Company's claim to cash flows [rom specified assets {¢.g. non-recourse
features ).
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Financiul fiabilittes

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cast or FYTPL. A [ancial liability is
classified as at FVTPL, if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derfvative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Finaocial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial tabilities
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective inlerest methad, Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses ave recognized in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on
derccognition Ts also recognized in profit or loss.

Financial linbilities conprise trade and other payables, short tevin barrowing and acerued markup.
Derecognition

Financial yssets

Tle Company derecognizes a financial asset when (he contractual rights to the cash flows from the
(hhancial asset expive, or it transfers llie rights to receive the contracinal cash flows in 4 transnction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewvards of ownership of the financial asset nre (ransferred
or in which the Company neither ransfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does nat retain control of the financial nssel,

The Company might enter into transactions wherehy i transfers assels recognized in its stalement
of financial position, but retains cither all ar subsiantially all of the risks and rewards of Ihe
ransfeered assets, In these cases, the ransferred assels are not derecognized.

Financinl labilities

The Company derecognizes a finaneial liability when its coneractual obligations are dissharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a finaacial: liability when its terms are
modified and the eash fows of the modified Imlnlliy are substumml[y differ cit, in which case a new
linancial liability based on the modified termis is mcogu\n{ ,etl at Tair value. Ou erecognition of a
financial liability, the dilference between ilie carrying aiodnt emingmshed angd" the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or Inbtlmes ﬂssumcd) is rccogmzed in profit or Joss.

Due fram Holding Company - trade debt

These are classified at amartized cost and are initially rccogmzed when they are originated and
measured at fair value of considerntion receivable. These assels are vwriten off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery,

Ofiseiting

Financial assets and financinl liabilities arc offsel and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and anly when, the Company cutrently has a legally enforceable right to
sel off the amounts and it intends either to seitfe them on a net basis or to realize the asset and sellle
the liability shnultancously.

Impairment

Financlul assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial nssels ncasured at amortized cose;
- debt invesements measuved al FVOCT; and
- cantract assots.

{f
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The Company measures (0ss allowances al an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- delt securities that are determined to have fow credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debl securities and bank Lalances for which credit risk (i.e. the sisk of default
occurring over the expeeted life of the financial instrument) has nol increased significantly

since initial recognition.

I2-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resuli [rom default events that are possibie within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if (he expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

When deternining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significanily since
inftial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Campany consiclers reasonable and supporiabic
inforation that Is relevant and avnilable withowt undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historiea) experience
and infornyed credit assessment and including forward-looking information,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial assel has increased sigaificantly if it is
more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs hat result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a linancisl instrument. [2-month ECLs are the
portien of ECLs that result from defoult events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting dute {or a shorter period if the expected life of (he instrument is less than 12 months). The
maximum period considered witen estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed o credit risk.

The Company has elecled 10 measure loss allowances for trade debls using [FRS 9 simplified
approach and has ealculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs, The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on (he Company's listorical credit loss cxperience, adjusted [or
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic enviromment, When determining
whether the eredit risk of a financial asset has Increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available withow undue cost or efTorl. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit
assessment including forward-looking information.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducied from the Gross
carvying amount of the assets.

The Gross carrying amount of a linancial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expecintions of recovering of a financial assel T’ its-entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individunlly makes an assessment wnh respect 1o the. nmmg, and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasanable expecmuon of recovery.” The Company oxpects o significant
recovery from the amount wu!lcn»of]" However, financinl asséts that are written ofT could still be
subjeet to enforcement activilies i m order to comply with 1he Company‘s procedures for recovery of
mnounts due, U i

Non-financial assets B /F

The carrying amount of the Company”s n-ﬁnancml fassels, othcr than inventories and deferred 1ax
assets, if any are reviewed ut each reportmg «date lo dotermine whether there is any indication of
impairment. 1f any such indication exists, then e asset’s recoverable amount is estimatled. The
recoverable asmount of an asset or cash generating unit is (he greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate thae reflects current market assessments of the
lime valve of money and he risks speeific to the nssel or cash generating unit.
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An impairment loss is recogaized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unil
exceeds lis estimated recoverable anount. Impaitment losses arc recognized in profil or loss,
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated o reduce the
carrying amounts of thie assels in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impaicment losses recognized in prior
preriods are nssessed pl each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An intpaitment loss Is reversed if there has been a change n the cstimates used to
determine (he recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent thal the
asset’s canrying amount afier the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized,

Stores and spures

These are staled a1 cost less provision for slow meving item and obsolescence, if any. Cosl is
determined using the weighted average nwethod. lems in transit are valued at cost comprising
invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Revenue recognition

Suje of Electricity and Steqin nuder IFRS 13

Revenue from sale of electricity and sleam are recognized as delivered, The Company views each
kilowan hour (KWh) of electricity and per tons of steam delivered to be a series of distinet goods
that have the same pattern of transfer 1o the customer. The amount that the Company has a right to
bill the customer reflects the pattern of (ransfer and value of the completed performance fo the
customer, As a result, the Company applies the “right 1o invoice” practical expedient under IFRS 15
{0 measure and recognize revenue. s

Interest income

Interes! income is recognized as hterest method using the rate fhat

exactly discounts estimated future caga recefpls through the expeclcd life of the financial asset to

the gross carrying amount of the ﬁn'mclal assol. '

Coatract liabiiities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services (o a customner for
which the Company has received consideratien (or an amount of consideration is due)} from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company teansfers goods or services (o the
customier, a contract linbility is recognized when the payment is made or the payniem is due
(whichever is earlier), Conlract liabilities are recognized 08 revenue wihen the Company performs
under the contract, It also includes refund liabilitics arising out of customers* right 1o claim amounts
from the Company on account of contraciual delays in delivery of performance abligations and
incentive on larget achievements,

Trade and other payables

Creditors and other payables are carried a1 amortised cost which is the fair value of consideration 10
be paid in the future for goods and services reccived, whether or not billed to the Company,

Cash nnd cash cquivalents

running finance and cash at banks.

\Sk\a

Cash and cash aquivalents for the :gism(ose of cash flow statement comnprise cash in hand, short term
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Taxation

Currrent

Profits and gains of the Company derived from electrie power generation preject are exempt from
tax subject te the conditions and limitations provided for in terms of clause {132) of Part | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax QOrdinance, 2001. Further, the Company is alse exempt from
minimum tax on wrnover uader clause (11 A) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.

However, profil from steam operations, profit on bank deposils and interest on long serm toan fo the
Holding Company are Hable 10 be taxed as per the applicable corporate tax rale.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the bafance sheel method on all temporary differences between the
carpying amounts of assels and liabilities for the financial reporting purpeses and the rmounts sed
for taxation pucposes.

Deferced tax assel is recognized for all the deductible temporary <ifferences only to the extent that
it is probable thit future taxable profits wil! be available against which the assel may be utilized,
Deferred tax asset i3 reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized. Delerred tax liabilities are recognized for ali the taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ave measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the lability is settled, based on the tax vates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Defetred tax is charged or credited in the siatement of profit or loss , except in the case of jtems
credited or chavged to comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is included in other
comprehensive Income or equity.

Share eapital

Ordinary shares are classificd as equity. Incremenlal costs directfy attributable 10 the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from cquity, net of any lax effects,

Dividend to ordinary shareholders

Dividend 1o osdinary shareholders is mcqghize,__d a2 dcdu:’:_ﬁo fiom accwmulated profit and as a
linbility in the Company’s statement/of financial position in'-ilhi:}’\year in which the dividend is
approved by the Board of Directors orjthe Company's shareholders'a$ the case may be.

[

Contingent labilities N

A contingent Jinbility is disclosed when: ™ T

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past evemts and whose cxistence will be
conlirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future evenls
not wholly within the control of the Company; or
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3.17

3.18

- there is present obligation thal arises from past events but il is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economiic benefiss will be required 1o setlle the obligation or the
amount of the obtigation cannot be measured with sufficietu reliability.

Fareign currency translations

Transactions in forcign currencies are inilially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates
of transactions. Moneiary asseis and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are retranslated
into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the staiement of financial position date. All
exchange differences arc charged to statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

All borrowings are recorded al the proceeds received. Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the
acqulsition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assels that necessarily 1ake a
subsiantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added 1o the cost of those assels.
until such time as the nssets are substantinlly ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs
are charged o statement of profit or loss in the period in which thesc are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a lega) and constructive obligation as a result of
past evenis and it is probable that outilow of FESOUIGES embodying economic benefils will be
required 1o settle the obligation and a reljable-estimale gafitbe made of the amoum of obligation.
Provision is recognized at an amount Wl is the:best estimate af, the expenditure required 1o seule
the present obligation at the rcport;?é_. date. Where out(low of resosrees embodylng economic
benefits is nol probable, or where a réligble estimate of the anoiiat of obligation cannot be madc, a
contingent lability is disclosed, unlesfg; {hre possibility of outflow jgré

LS

Mark-up bearing borrowings

. B v
Mark-up bearing borrowings are recogn‘iied;ﬁﬁgjgjji;m cost representing the fair value of
cansideration received less attributable iransaction cosis, Subsequent to Initial recognition, mark-up
benaring borrowings are stated at orlginal cost less subsequent repayments, while the difTerence
between the original recognized amounts {as reduced by periodic paymenis) and redemption vaiue
is rocognized in the stntement of profit or loss over the period of borrowings on an effective rale

basis, The borrowing cost on qualifying asset is included in the cost of relaled asser.

Leases
The Company is the lessee,

Al inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Lense terms are negotisted on ae individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions,

Al initial recognition, leases are recogaised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding Fiablility at
the date at which the leased assel is available for use by the Company.

The lease labllity Is initially mensured at the present value of the lease payments that are nol paid
ar the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in thg-lease. or if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate, &
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Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based cn an index or a
rate amounts expected 1o be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the excreise
price of a purehase option If the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of
penaltics for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less
any lease incentives receivable, The extension and termination oplions are incorporated in
detesmination of lease term only wien the Company is reasonably cerlain to exercise hese options.

The Yease Hability [s subsequently measured ai amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future legse payments avising from a change in
fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of lhe amount expected
to be payable under a residval value guarnntee, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment
is made 1o the carrying amount of the right-of-nse asset, or is recorded in the unconsolidated
slatemant of profit or loss account if the carrying amaunt of right-af-use asset has been reduced to

ZLro.

The right-of-use nsset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusied
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement daie, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of <osts to dismantle and remove the underiying asset or to restore (he
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any fease incentive received. The rigin-of use
asset is deprecinted on u straight linc method over the lease term as this method most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remensurements of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all Jeases of low-value assets are recognised on &
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-tenn leases arce leases with a lease term of

12 months or less withoul a purchase option.

New/ revisod saccounting standards, amendments fo published nceounting standards, and
interpretations that are not yct cffective

The following Internmional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards)} as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpreiations thereto will be effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022:

Onerous Conteacts — Cost of Fulfilling 2 Contraci (Amendinents (o 1AS 37) effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that theieost of fulfilling a contract’ for the
purposes of the onerous contract assessient comprises the costs\tllat relate directly {o the comract,
including both the incremental costs, ‘and an aHocation of other dm:cl cosls to fulfil the conlract. An
eatity is required (o apply the amgndments to coniracts for. wluch it has not yet filfilled all its
abligations at the beginning of the nnnunl reporting period in whmh it first applies the amendments
(the date of initial uppllcmron) Rcstalemem of comparalive mformallon is nol required, instead the
amendments require an enlily lo rec.ogi'lg.e the cumuhlivc effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the openlng Bahmcc ol‘ reinined carnings or other component of
equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial appllc.ﬂfou

The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2020 are effective for annuai
reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022:

IFRS 9 ~ The amendment clarifies that an enlity includes only fees paid or received betwaen the
entity ({he borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by eilher the emtity or the
tender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the “10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3,3.6 of TFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derccognizz a financial liability.



IFRS 16 - The amnendment partially amends lHustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objeclive
of the amendment is to resolve any poteniial confusion that might arise in fease incentives.

1AS 41 - The smendment removes the requireient in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for enlities 1o
cxclude mxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present
valite technique, This amendment enables the Fair value measurement of biological assets on a post-

tax basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments (o [AS 16) cffective
for annual periods beginning on or afier | January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of
items produced while bringing an ilem of properly, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operaling in the manncy intended by management e.g.
when testing etc., are recognized in profit or less in accordance with applicable Standards, The
entity measures the cost of thase items applylng the measuroment requirements of 1AS 2. The
standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cest of testing. An
entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only 1o items of property, plant and
equipment that are brought 1o the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operming in the manner iniended by management on or after (he beginning of the earliest period
presenled in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the mmendments. The entity
shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustmeit o the
opening balance of retnined carnings {or ofher component of equity, as appropriatc) al the
beginning of that earliest peried presenied.

Reference (o the Conceptual Framework {Amendments to 1FRS 3) - Reference to the Conceplual
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added
paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A 10 [FRS 3 . An entity shall apply those amendments to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or alter the beginning of the first mmu’ll rting
period beginning on or after | Januavy 2022, s B

Classification of ligbilitics as current or non-current (Amendments to 1AS l) apply rclrospecnvely :

for the annual periods beghning on or afier | lanuary 2023. These amendiments,in the standards
have been added 10 further clarify when a liability is classified as curreit; Tonvertible debt may
need 1o be reclassified ns ‘current’. The standard also amends the aspect oPclissnf' cation of liability
as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity's right at the end of the repiorting period to
defer the scitlement of liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. An entity's
expectalion and discretion at the reporting date to refinance or to reschedule payments on a long-
term Dasis are no longer relevant {or the classification of a linbility as cusrent or non-current, An
entity shal) apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendinents to TAS | and IFRS Prmciice Stalemem 2) - the
Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality 1o disclosure of accounting policies
and to help companics provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to [AS |
include:

»  requiring companles to disclose their material accounting policies rther than their
significant accounting palicies:

e clarifying (hal nccounting polictes related 0 immaterlal wransactions, other cvents or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; apd tﬂ@

¢
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+  clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate 1o material transactions, ather events or
conditions are themseives material to a company’s financinl stnrements,

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 (o include guidance and two additonal
examples on the application of mnteriality to accounting policy disclosures, The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023 with earlicr application
pennitied.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments 10 1AS B) introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amouitis in the financlal statemsents that are
subject 10 measurement uncertainly. The amendments also clarify the relationship bewween
accounting policies and accouating estitnates by specifying ihat an entity develops an accounting
eslimate 10 achieve the abjective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for
periads beginning on or after | January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply
prospectively (o changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies oceurring on or
afier the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the
amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assels and Liabilitics neising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to
1AS [2) narrow (he scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it docs not apply to
transactions that give rise 10 equal and offseuting temporary differences. As a resull, companices will
need to recognize a deferred 1ax asset and u deferred tax liability for tlemporary differences arising
on initial recognition of a lease and a decomimissioning provision. For leases and decammissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and linbilities will need to be vecognized from the
beginning of the eacliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustmenl to retaincd earnings or other components of equity at that date, The amendmenis arc
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier t Janvary 2023 with carlier application
permitted.

Sale or Contribution of Asscls between an [nvestor and its Associate or Jeint Venture {Amendments
to [FRS 10 and 1AS 28) - The amendment amends accounting treaiment on lass of control of
busitiess or assels. The amendments also inroduce new eccounting for less frequent transaction
that involves neither cost nor full step-up of cerlnin retained inlerests in assets that are not
businesses. The effective date for these changes bas been deferred indefinitely until the completion
of a broader review.

The above improvements are likely (o have no impacl on the Commpany's financial statements.

Share capital A

5.1 Issued, subscribed and paid-up ;&'\fﬁ}tal
1

2022 2029

2022 2021 5]
: (Rupees in thousands)

* (Number of shares).

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

53 > - ;},i
fully paid in cash 502,000,008 ;.7 502,000,000 5,020,000 5.4020,000

Maple Leaf Cememt F[Faclory Limited (The IHolding Company) holds 501,999,993
(2021:501,999,993) shares comprising 99.99% (2021: 99.99%) of the pnid up share capital of the

Company. \gﬁ v -
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2022 202
Surplus on revalvation of property, (Rupees in thousands)
plant and equipment- net of tax
At beginning of the year 191,923 203,990
Transfer 10 imappropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the
year (12,067) (12,067)
Atend of the year 179,856 191,923
Deferred tax abilicy an revaination surplus
Al beginning of 1he year 3,339 -
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the year (150}
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 3,339
Effect of change in tax cate {959} -
At end of the year 2,230 3,339
177,626 138,584
6.1 The Company’s buildings on leasehold land and plant, machinery and electrical installations were
revalued by Arif Evaluators, an independent valuer not connecled with the Company and approved
by Pakistan Banks' Association (PBA) in "any amount* category, at 30 June 2020. The basis of
revaluation for items of these fixed assels were as follows:
4.1.1  Buildings on leasehold land
Construction specifications were noted for each building and strueiure and new construction rates
are applied according 1o construction specifications for currens replacement valwes, Afer
determining current replacement values, depreciation was calculated to determine the current
assessed market value,
6.1.2  Plant and machinery
A
Suppliers and diflerent cement plant consuitants in Pk sion nnd abroad AVCHE cpnmcied to collect
infermmtion regarding current prices of comparable now:r plant to determmc cu;nent replacenient
value, Fair depreciation factor for ench itemn is npplled accoulfng ] the'lr physmat uoudmon usage
and maintenance. . .
" 2 2021
Deferred taxation “=={tipecs in thovsand)
Deferred tax Hability an tavable temporary differeuces
arising i respect of:
- accelerated tax deprecialion on (ixed assels 29,014 38,294
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 2,230 3,339
31,244 41,633

31,244 41.633 ‘}g&
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7.1 Movement in deferred tax balances Is as follows:
2022 2021
Note {Rupces in thousands)
Al beginping of the year 41,633 .
Recognized in steerment of profil or loss:
« accelerated tax depreciation on (ixed assels {9,280) 38,204
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets {150} -
(9,430) 38,294
Recognized in other comprehensive incone: - 3,339
Reconizad in strplus on revaluation of fixed assefs
Effect of change in cffective tax rate (959) -
Atend of the year 31,244 41,633
Trade and other payables
Trade creditors 18,545 13,261
Income 1ax deducted al source 96,077 111,409
Retention money 1,287 1,587
Bills payable 5,464 1,704
Provision for electricity duty 180,632 136,312
Accrued liabilities 37,7713 15,227
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 8! 275,643 227,909
Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund 23 20,325 -
Sales tax payable - net 22,095 32,913
Other payables 869 39
658,730 540,713
81  Workers' Profit Participation Fund ( WPPF) < -
At beginning of the year B o : 5)}?,909 161,659
Provisicn for the year P 23 : ‘_1:'23,814 66,250
Less: Paid during the year - Vot R !,080} -
Voo S
At end of the year _ -~ 275,643 227,909
~ e
311

Rs. 3 million has been paid during 1he year. Opening balance of WPPT linbility represents leflover
amount payable to Workers Welfare Fund in tesms of Companies Profits Worker's Participation
Act, 1968, According to the 18th amendment Lo the Constitution of Pakistan in 2010, all labor /
labor welfare faws have become provineial subject, and accordingly the left over amount is no
miore payable to the Federal Treasury, Major strength of Company's employees eligible for benefil
of WPPF are working in the Provinee of Punjab and accordingly potential amount of feRt over
amount of WPPF is required to be paid to the relevant provincial authority as held by the
Honourable Sindh High Court in i1s judgment in C.P. No. D-1313 of 2013 announced on February
12, 2018. The Govermnent of Punjab has enacted Companies Profits (Workers' Participation)
(Amendment) Act, 2021, however this has not specified the payment modalities and therefore the
company is constrained 1o deposit the left-over amount 1o GovernmentofPakIslaw
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2022 2021

Shert term borrowings - sceured (at amortised cost) Note {Rupees in thousands)

Borrowings from banks under conventional mode
Short term running finance 0.4 - 30,000

9.1

9.2

9.3

Contingencics and commitments ~ R L

10.1

10.1.1

10.1,2

- 30,000

Last year figure represents utilized amount of short term running finance facility availed from
National Bank of Pakistan with a accumulated sanctioned limit of Rs. 200 million. During the
current year the utitized amcunt of Rs. 30 million was paid oiT and the amount of shart term
borrowing was reduced 1o zero s no further financing was obtained.

The Company at the year end has unavailed FATR facility with sanction Hmit of Rs. 500
miflion from the Bank of Punjab which carries markup at the rate of three month KIBOR plus
0.75%, payable quarterly, This is secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.667 million over
all present and Fature moveable fixed assets and current assets of the Company with 25%
imargin, corporate guarantee of the Holding Company, assignment of receivables of the Hoiding
Company, st receipts and lien on title of goods under import decuments. The expiry date of
the facility is 30 November 2022,

The Company at the year end has unavailed Racility under islamic mode of financing from MCB
Isiamic Bank Limited with a sanction limit of Rs. 400 rm]horu(f..(}‘j RS 400 ‘million). This
facility carcies markup of 3 months KIBOR + 1%, The fapﬂuy is soctired ar‘amsi first joint
parri passu charge over current assets for Rs. 467 million,! “first Jomt parri-passu’ ehary: over
fixed assets of the Company with a margin of 25%, lien o'{fer m)port title-documents: apd cross
corporate gurantee of Holding Company. The expiry date oF f,mhty is 31 January 70.3 Ny

Contingencies

The Deputy Commissioner Tniand Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-11/19/202( dated
27 May 2021 created demand amounling Rs. 367.6 million under section 11(2) of Ssles Tax
Act, 1990 [or the tax period from July 2016 to June 208 on account of in-admissible
adjustment of iaput tax credit. Being aggreived, the Company filed an appesl before
Commissioner Iniand Revenue (Appeals) CIR{A) who vide order no. 136-ST/A-V] dated 3]
December 2021 reduced the demand to Rs. (34.8 million and remanded the remaining demand
to DCIR. The Company has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Infand Revenue (ATIR)
against the remaining demand which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of the
favorable outcome of case and accerdingly, no provision has been incorporated in Uese
financial statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. 04/2021 darted |5 July 2021
created demand amounting Rs, 843.6 million under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from
July 2017 to December 2020 an account of non-apportionment of inptn tax credit against
Capacity Purchase Price (CPP) component of electricity tarifl. Being agereived, the Company
filed an appeal before Commissioner nland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 151-
ST/A-VL dated 20 Japuary 2022 reduced the demand 10 Rs. 580.3 million and annulled the
remaining demand.
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10.0.3

10.1.4

10,1.5

10.2

The Company has filed an appeal belore Appellate Tribuna! Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the
remaining demand which s pending adfudication, Management is hopeful of the favorable
owicome of case and accordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these financial

siatements.

The Deputy Commissioner lnland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. 03/2021 dated 17 July 2021
created demand amounting Rs. 182.8 million under Sales Tax Act, (990 for the tax period from
July 2016 to June 2017 on account of non-apportianment of input tax credit against Capacily
Purchase Price (CPP) component of electeicity tarifl. Being aggreived, the Company filed an
appeal before Coramissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 150-ST/A-
VI dated 20 January 2022 reduced the demand 1o Rs. 96.5 million and annulled the remuining
demand. The Company lias filed an appeal before Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the remaining demand which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of the
favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these
financial statements,

The Depuly Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-11/165/2021 dated
t5 February 2022 created demand amounting Rs. [3.38 million (including 100% penalty
amounting Rs. 6.78 million) under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the 1ax period July 2019 and August
2019 on account of in-admissible adjusiment of input tax credil. Being aggreived, the Company
filed an appeal before Cominissioner Intand Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 238
ST/A-V1 04 July 2022 upheld the order of DCIR. The Company has filed an appeal before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR(A) which is pending
adjudication, Management is hopeful of the favorable owtcome of case and accordingly, no
provision has been incorporated in these financial siatements.

The Assistant Comimissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-(17168/4G0 dated
12 April 2022 created demand amounting Rs. 14,76 million (fncluding penalty amounting Rs,
0.70 million) under Special Procedure Withalding Rules, 2007 and Sales Tax Act, 1990 flor the
tax period July 2016 and Junc 2018 on account of non-payiment of witholding sales tax in
respect of purchascs. Being aggreived, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner
Intand Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) which is pendmg adjudication. Management is hopeful of
the favorable outcome of case and accordmgly. no prowsmn has been incorporated in these
financial statements. .

Commitments P . ;2022 2021

Lo o ~./(Rupees in {housands)
In respect of: N, '
- Spares - 13,716 3,053
- Outstanding letter of credits 12,171 31,508
25,887 34,561

The Company las arranged guarantces fom different banks aggregating to Rs, 25 million
(202); Rs. 25 million) which comprises of a guarantee from Askari Bank Limited worth Rs.13
million (secured with 100% margin) and a guaraniee fiom MCB Bank Limited worth Rs.10
million in faveur of Direclor Excise and Taxation Karachi. Bank guaraniee was also given by a
bank on behalf of the Company, amounting to Rs. 25.66 million (secured against 15% lien on
P/L. account), in favour of Pakistan Railways.r&i
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2022 2021
Note {Rupees in thousands)
11 Property, plant and equipment e 4,695,357 4,934,690
[1.1 Property, plant and equipment
2022
Cost { Revalved amount Depreciation Book value
As at As at Asat For the Asat Asat
1 .July Additions / 30 June Rate { July year 3¢ June 30 June
2021 Adjustments 2022 2021 2022 2022

(Rupees in thousands)

Buildings on leaschald lond (Mot /1.2)

- Cost 1.475.578 - 1.475,578 5%-10% 262.073 82,658 344,734 1,130,347

= surplus en revafuation 58.349 - 58,849 5%-10% 10,463 2,962 13.432 43,417
1.534,427 a3, 272.536 85.627 358.163 1,176,264

Plant, machincry snd ¢lectrical instaltation v,',‘- ’

-cost 4,320,337 /34838 1} 3-20% §02.3(7 222118 1,024,435 3,380,740

- susplus on revalnation 76,082 //» Jx % 5-20% 32545 9.098 41,643 134,439
4,496,419 § 84,8 » §34.562 231,216 1.066.078 3515179

Lo

Furniture, Gixtures ond cquipment 7.264 I 10% 2.735 274 4,009 3,255

1Y equipment 1,108 AN 30% 930 178 1,108 -

Heavy cquipment {or coal handling 9,140 | 20% 3,598 3.542 9,140 -

Vchicles 6,581 20% 3.583 2,334 3922 659
6,054,939 34,838 6,639,776 1,124,249 324,170 1,444,420 4,695,357 o<

e
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2021
Cast/ Revalued amount Depreciation Book value
As a Asat Asat For the Asal Asal
1 July Additions 30 June Rate 1 July year 30 June 30 Junc
2020 2021 2020 2021 2021
T TR (Rupees in thousands)
Buildinas on leaschold (and O e N
~ cosi AL 1,475,578 | o \\ - 1,475,578 5%-10% 187.635 74438 262,073 1.213.505
- surplus an reveduation ST | A 58,849 |  5%-10% 7,494 2,969 10,463 48386
. 1,534,427 T - 1534427 195,129 77.407 272,536 1,261,891
Plant, machinery and clectrical installation’ B s H
- cost 4320337 - 4,320,337 5-20% 383.831 218480 802,317 3,518,020
- surplus on revaluation i, 176,082 - 176,082 5-20% 23,447 9,098 32,5435 143,537
A 96,41 - 4,496,419 607.278 227.584 $34.862 3,661,557
Furniwee, fixtures and cquipment - 7.264 10% 2232 503 2735 4,529
[T equipment 1,108 - I.108 30% 853 77 930 178
Heavy equipment for coal handling 9.140 - 9.140 20% 4,713 885 5,598 3.342
Vehicles 6.581 - 6,581 20% 2.859 749 3,588 2.993
6,054,939 - 6,054,939 813.044 307,205 1,120249 4,934,690

The building and other immaveable assets of the Company are canstrucied on o land ynder fong term operating lease from the Holding Company at Iskanderabad, District
Mianwali, Pujab. Pakistan measuring 15.88 acres.

The foreed sale value of building on lease hold land is Rs 1.071.44 million and plant, machinery nad clectric installations is Rs. 3.11 1.3 1 million bused an latest revaluation

report of 30 Junc 2020,

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated to cost ol sales. (@

&
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Lung lerm lonn (o Helding Comipany- unsevwret], considered good

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in onstuds)
4 2,000,080 1,000,040

Long lezm lous

2.000.000 1.000,000

12§ This represents conversion of balance receivable from Maple Leal’ Cemnent Fagtory Limited, the Holding Company, in licy of
eleetricity sold duciug the current and prior years (o long tenn foan, On 30 June 2022, addendun 1o agreement dated 01 June 2019
for conversiol of outstanding balance inte tong wemy Joan was signed between the Company and the 1lolding Company, As per the
sddendym, Rs. 1.000 million which wag payable from 01 Septeraber 2022 has been cescheduied und further owstanding balance
o *Due from lolding Compeny’ amouiting 1o Rs. 1,000 million has been ¢onverted into u Jong teen loan ‘The ol loun of Rs.
2,004 miillion is now receivagle in esght equal quarerly instalinents siarting tros 01 April 2024 including grace pecied af twenty-
ane moaths, This [aan carries tnarksup at 3 momh Kipor plus 1% per aucwm, reccivable quarterly. The effective rate during the
yoar RS ftony 2.15% 10 12.95% anunlly (202): 8.25% 10 8.59%). The maximwm aggregaic umount ouisanding at any month
end during the year was Rs. 2,000 million (2021 : Rs. 3,000 millioad.

2022 202)
Stores ond spares includbig conl Nog {Rupees i thousunds}
Coal 02621 71875
Stores other than coat 49,900 36,892
Spitres 218076 199378
l.oose tools [.115 873

13.1 ATL720 309.010

13,1 Spares include -trangit tmeunting to Rs. 2.6 millivn (2021: Rs. | 7 million) ot the year ead.

2022 2021
Adlvances Nore (Rupees in theusans)
Considered good « od: .

11,083, 10,659
] Bz > 10610

Advances to supplicrs

Due frem Flolding Company - uasccured, considered paod

Due fram Holding Company ngainst sale el electricity ond Sieam 1_32.‘5;96 '

Due fran Holding Compaaty for salu of serap

sy 132,395

[N The moximum ageregnic anornt ouistanding at any monlh ead during the year W-x‘i"_‘R's 1 153,29 mimun (2021

million}.
Mepin and prepayments Nore -(-l‘lupeu in thousands)
Mgt ageanse
« bank gusmuices 15,000 15,000
Prepnynents 37 2!
% 15.02)
Accrued movk-up
Profii on bink deposits 8.4 13] 73
Markup on long tenm loan 1o | lalding Company - nsecured 12.1 32,286 N7
32417 25,492
Cash sl buek badnnees
Cesh in fand 60l 51
Cusir o bank;
Curen? gcconits 7 5
Deposit zecounts 18.! 22,360 9,941
23,668 | £,002

18.1 Al balances are plnced under markup based acrungenient with conventional banks and csry relum ot 6,0% o 12.25% {2021,
4.0% to 6.0%) per ammon

2022 2007
Sivles - net (Rupees in thonsinds)
Revenue feom cleerricity 5,381,850 4,660,625
Revenue from steam 263,007 295977
1.ess- Snles tax {892,856) {720.190)

5,252,091 236,412 g ~
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2022 2021
Cost of sales Note (Rupees in thousands)
Fuel 3,735,817 2,522,249
Depreciation on properly, plant and equipment 11.4 324,170 307,205
Salaries, wages and cther benefits ' 90,475 87,626
Stores and spares consumed 63,124 08,201
Repairs and maintenance 29,677 15,968
Power and associated cosls 9,187 10,957
Insurance 10,348 11472
Vehicle running and mainienance 13,046 10,779
Travelling and conveyance 645 59
Electricily duty 44,340 44,016
Rent, rates and taxes 461 406
Other expenses 1,061 378
4,324,351 3,109,406
Administrative expenses
Entertainment 112 382
Selaries, wages and other benefits 2,220 2,812
Legal and professional charges 211 2,678 2,886
Poslage, felephone and fax 190 100
Vehicle running and maintenance 212 239
Printing and stationery 323 251
Rent, rates and taxes 285 6
6,020 6,676
21.1 Legal and professional charges include following in respect of auditors' remuneration;
2022 2021
Nore (Rupees in thousands)
Annual statutory audit 750 750
Qut of pockel expenses 75 75
Taxation services 630 340
ST e 1,455 [,665 -
Other inconle T
lucome from financial assets A n
Profit on bank deposits | ¥ ) :‘;"i 1,207 1,371
Markup on long term loan to Holding Company* A2 j 104,170 197,878
Ingome from non-financial gysers -
Sale of scrap 221 27,771 33,155
Exchange gain- net - 3413
Miscellaneous income - 12
133,148 235,829

22.1 This includes sale ol scrap to the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 24.9 million (2021 Rs.

32.1 million). ,_\tgg
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Oilier charpes

Workenr* Profil Participation Fund
Workers' Welftre Fund
Iixchange loss - net

Finnnee cost

frrerest F markup on:
- Short terin borfowings
« Bonk chasges

Twxution

Income 1
- current year

eferred

[
o
-

ugrounting profil
Prefil helove taxation
‘I'ox catculated a1 the rate ol 29%
Tox ffeet of
- xempt income

« Imptict of permanent difTeceness
« Impuct of ehenge an ¢Mietive tax role

Fetated parly transuetions and balances

Relnrionship between the tax espense wnd

2022 202)
Nore (Rupees in thensamds)
8.7 S0.814 66,250
20,325 .
17,178 -
88317, 86230,
20,489 29,986
927 1.165
21416 3113}
e
I8HE 67,763
(9.430) 38,299
22 106037,
45.138 §.258.738
274,089 365,010
{235.624) {286,300}
1654 27,317
(16,0048 -
EATES AT

“The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leaf Coment Factory Linsited which is a subsidiory ol Kohinoor Texnle Mills Limited.
Accordingly all ihe subsidiarics und associmed companies o Kohineor Textile Mills Limited are relnted partics of the Company. [n uddlition,
the Companys relied parties comprises of ditectors of the Company and key munagement perseancl. Amownt due from nad due 1o related
panies an: shown under respective notes. Other significant irnsactions and balinces with related parties except 1hase disclosed elseshiere are

as follows:

T e

Name of party Relntionship

L, 2020
(Rupeesia thovsnud)

Tronsnetions

1lplding Compnuy
(100% equity held)

Maple Leal Cement
Favtory Limited

e E2Y
Coat recvived from §lolling Company . . 3.81'3.‘16{1 s 359321

H

Coal provided 1o Halding Company ST2.042

5881,850 4,660,625

3,504,000

Sude ulelectricity (inclusive of stles lnx) ’

Dividend peid

Advance tax deducted s 235 49,701
Payment of 1gan by lolding Compnny - 2.000.000
Sale of steam (inclusive of sales Lax) 263,097 295977
Sale of serag (inclusive ol selus 1) 29074 37510
Conversion of doe from Holding Company to Jong

wem lean 1.000.900 )
Markup reeeived on long ienn lean e Melding

Company : 93,301 237.57%
Rent chiarged by 1lolding Compony 435 360
Inyneuts made ont the Company’s behalf’ 134,307 224,544
Payment made by G Company on behalfof 109,211 .

relaed parnty

1lolding Company has provided corporute guorantes 1 bunks in relation to bocrowity facilides provided to 1he Company 15 disclased in note
9.2 and 93 There was 10 Inlstsaction with directors und key managemen personnel during the yeur, ¥urther, no resitbieralion ar giker benefl(
was paid 1o dircetors omd key anngemem parsounel during the year. &\
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26.1 Koy munagement personnel arc those persons having autherity wnd responsibility for plaaning. directing and controlling 1w
activities o the entity. ‘The Company considers nll members of lheir manngement tam, including Chiel Execuive OfTicer
and Direetors 1o be its key manasgement pevsonne] and these are disclosed below.

Name

Mr. Sayeed Turiq Saigol

Mr. Tariq Sayeed Soigol

Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol
Mr. Waleed Tarig Saigol

Me. Dawial Taufique Saigol
Mr. Syed dMohsin Rien Naqvi
Mr. Acil jue

Mr. Sahail Sadiq

M. T'ariq Ahmed Mir

Relattonship

% of sharchoiing In the Company

Reconeilintion of movement of linbilities (o cash flows arising from financing activities

As al 30 Jupe 2021
Changes frons finapelng cach flows

Short tenn borrowings paidl - ne¢

Townl clianges (rom Hnancing cash Nows

Otlror ghanges

Running finance paid
Totnl Jability velated ather ehanges

As § 2022
As 2130 June 2020
i s fion financ t flows

Short term borrowings prid- net

l.ong tenn lonn paid

Dividend paid

‘Toial changes from finoncing cash flaws

Qther chusges

Running ltasice paid

Markup expense

Dividend declared

Total liability relnted other changes

/s o1 30 Junc 2021

Director 7 Key management personie) 0.0000002%
Dircctor / Key management personnel 0.0000002%
Dircetor / Key manapement personne] 0.0000002%
Director / Key managaneat personng] 0.0000002%
Director / Key manngement personel 0.0000002%
Direetor / Key management personne] 0.0000002%
Director / Key manageinent personne] 0.0000002%
Key innndgement personsic] N/A
Key manugement personnet NIA
2022
Issucd,
subserihed Short tevm -
Totnl
and poid-up harrowlngs
expilal
--------- {Rupees in thousand) -~ - -~ ------
5,620,000 30,000 5,050,800
- {30,000) (30,000)
- (30,000) {30,000}
5.020.,000 - 5020000
2021
Essued, .
swbseribed and E‘;‘r‘::‘::’:“ . Dividend hone term Total
puid-up capitnl - e % 048
~------------7-'§-_x'~v(l{l}pqcs in tho UMY - e “ataseas
500000 /531513 32956 5584469
| -
SN Kk ) S . . (331.513)
- R PR (32.956) £32.956)
- ™ - 3,514,000 - {3.31:1.000)
- (3315135 - 5¢3,514,000) {32,956) {3.878.46M
. {170,000} - - (§70,000)
- 3,514,000 3.314,000
. 120,000y 3.514.000 - 5.344,000
5.020.000 30.000 - - 5.050.000
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Financial risk managemeni
The Company has exposure o the foilowing risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

This note presents infonnation about the Company’s expostie to each of the above risks, the Company’s
abjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of
capital.

Risk managenrent framework

The Company’'s Board of Directors {"the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight
of the Company's risk management famework. The Board has dewveloped a risk policy thal sets out
fundamentals of risk management framework,

The Company's risk management policies are established lo identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Companty, to set gppropriate visk limiis and controls, and to menitor risks and adherence 1o limils, Risk
managemeni policies and systems are reviewed regulatly Lo reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and pracedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive contrg] enviyonment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these visks affect the financial position and
performance, and forecast transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is
as follows:

28.1 Creclit risk

; -t - - N
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company tf‘ Acustofaer or cotnterpérty 1o  financial
instrument fails to meet jts contraciual obligations. To mgnage «credit risk the Company maimains
procedures covering the application for credit apprmmtsi gmnung and renciwal of counterpaty
limits and monitaring of exposures against these limits. As part of' these processes the financial
vinbility of ali counterpariies is regularly monitored and 1sses d.

28.1.1  Exposure to eredit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum eredit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2022 2021
Nore (Rupces in thousands)

Financlel assels ai qmortized cost

Accrued mark-up {7 32,417 31492
Due from the Holding Company i5 132,596 61,225
Bank bealances 18 23,067 10,461
Long term Joan to Holding Company 12 2,000,000  1,000.000
Margin against bank guarantee {6 15,000 15,000

2,203,080 1,108,178
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28.1.3

Concentration of credit rislk

The Compuny identifies concentration of credil fisk by reference (o 1ype of counier party, Maximunt exposure (¢
eredit risk by 1vpe of coupterpurty is us follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees in theusands)
Halding Company . 2,164,882 1,082,642
Banking companics 38,198 25,536

2,203,030 1.108,178

Credit guality and hnpairment

Credit quality of financial asscts is assessed by reference 10 external credit ratings, where availible. or to
historicsl inforynation sbown counterparty defauh rates. Al cownerpartics, including Helding Compuny. bive
external credit ratings delermined by various credit ruing agencies. Credit quality of customers is assessed by
reference o historicn) defuuhts rates and preseat ages.

Counterparlics with external credit ralings

These include banking companies and Rnancin! institutions, which ure counlerpartics to bank balances, murgin
apainst bank guarantees and agcrigd return on deposits, Credit risk is considered minimal as these counlerparties
have reasonably high credit cuings us determined by various ceedit roling opaneies. Duc (o long standing
business relutionships with these counterpaziics and considering (heir sireng Mancial standing, wanugement
daes not expect non-performance hy these counterpartivs on their obligations te the Company. Following are the
eredit ratings of counterpartivs with exwernal credit rutings:

Rating Rating 2022 2021
Shorl terin Long term ngency (Rupees in thousands)
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,209 2
Bank of Punjab Al AAE PACRA 2,637 A4
MCB Baok Limited Alr AAA PACRA §126 1. 554
MC1 Islomic Buenk Limited Al A - T PACRA ALY 777
Nutiool Bank of Pakistan Limited A+ ARA PACKA ™. 11,032 7.305
‘ Ao creeL 23,198 10461
Margin ngninst hank guarantee ; ) R
Askuri Bank Litnited Al | AAE PACRA 5 15,000 £5.000
Margin against Letter of Credits P o
MCB Istamic Baok Limited Al ‘\,_‘ AT PACRA - -
38,198 25.461
Holding Comnzpy SRR
Maple Leal Cement Faclory Limiled A-! A VIS 2,164,882 1.082,612

28.2

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk lhat tbe Company will enconnter difTiculty in meeiing the sbligations nssouiated with its
financial liabilities that are seiled by delivering cash or another linanciul assct, or thut such oblignions wifl have
te be scitled in a tnanner unfaverable w0 e Company. “The Company tinances its aperations through cquitly and
working capitaf with # view to maintaining an appropriate mix between vasious sources of finaace {o nhniniize
risk.

Ulimate responsibility for liguidily risk monagement rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk monagemen fruncwork for the management of the Company's shart, smedium and
long-term funding and liquidity nwurugement requiremeis, The Compimy munnges liguidity risk by maintuining
udequale reserves, banking fucilities and reserve borrowing facilitics, by continuously monitoring forecast and
aclun cash fows and mofehing the maturily profiles off financinl assels and fabilitics. Included in note 9 of these
{insncial stateinents are facilitics that the Company has ol iis disposil to further reduce Yiquidity risk.

“(&
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28.3.1

28.3.1(u)

Exposure o liquidity risk
Contractual sutirities of flaunizetul Bohilities, Incinding estinmuted dnterest puyments

The folfowing are the remaining controciua) nuurities & the reporting date. The amounts are grossed und
indiscounted, and include estiniated fnerest paymens and exclude the impact of nelting ngrecnents.

1022
Carrying Contrsteeual  Oneyearor  One to three
tmount cash flows less years
Non-derivarive fiunglel finbitiles - ------ cmemesman (Rupees tn thousands) » - =evmvawan-
Trade and other payables 43,938 63,958 63,938 -
63,938 63,938 63,938 -
2021
Comrying Contractunl Oneyearor  Oneta lhree
umount cash Mows less years
Now-derfvative [renelyl abililes ~ ccsrvomvr-ns «++»{Rupeus in thousands) - - - - -« - - Tveer
Trode and oer payables 32,096 32,096 32,096 -
Shon term bomowings 30.000 10,000 30,000 -
Accrued mark-up 524 624 624 -
62,720 62,720 62,720 -

Market risk

Market risk is e risk thar changes in marke) prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and cquity
prices will afTect the Compnny’s income o the value of its holdings of fivancinl instruments. The objective of
markel risk management is to manage and control inarket risk expasures within nccepinble paramuiers, white
oplitnizing retunt.

Curreney risit

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent tlil there is n aisiateh between the currencics in which
advancaes, seles and purchases and bank balunces are denotinuled wnd lllWMal currency of the
Conpany. The functionnl eurrency of the Company is Ptk Rupee. The ftency” i 'Ilscluilim.gor purchase
transnctions ure prinrily denominated is US dollars. s N

Exposure to currency rlsk

The summarized quantitative data about the Campany's exposure 1o bumncy nsk as reported wihe nmn'lgcmcul
nl' the Compnn; is as rollnws Ihc hgun:s n.prcscm rorc:nn curmnéy balaces ancr convcmon in ]7;|k Rupees

Finguelnf Habilities

Trade and other payables (24) {16} (5,464)
Nut stateinens of financinl position exposure (24) {16} (5,464)

QY sterewneny of finencial position iems

Quistanding letiers of credit (59) - {12,1711)

Net exposure {83) {16) {17,635)

&
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28.3.1t0)

28.3.1(c)

28.3.4d)

28.3.2

2021
Usn RMB Rupees
-------- {AmouUNt in thousands) - == - -« =«

Furancinl flahifities
Trude and other 16) (28) (1704}

Nei statement of fimuictal position exposure 61 (28) (1.70:4)
Off siatement of e itian flep,

Outstanding letters of credit 1200) - {31,508)
Nel exposure (206) (28) (33.212)

Exchnupe rates applied during the year

Ty [oHowing significant exchiange roles have bews applied during the year:

2022 2022 2021 202)
USD RMT Usp RMB
Reporting dnte spot rate
- selling 205,50 30.85 157.54 24.39
Average rate Tor the year ' 178.01 27,57 160.30 24.20

Seasithiir aunlysls

A repsonnbly possible strengthening / (weukening) of 10% in Pak Rupec ugaoinsi she following currencies wauld
hive aflected the measurement of finaneial instroments denominaed in foreign eurrency and affected stalement
of prafit or kass by the amownts shown below al the statement of finimcial pasitien date. The analysis ossumes
that aill other vaciables, in particular interest eates, remain constant and ignoses any impact of forccnst purchascs.

) Decrease in profit due to
P * inérease In exchange rate at
: o >, (he year end

- 2022 202)

{ Rul')‘_ccs in thousands)

usH \‘_ e ’ ’”.‘3(493) (95)
RMB N e R ) (68)

RN

v T vt
- 13 . o v"r‘ - g
These will have opposiie effect on profit on reduction in exchatiae rate ol the yenr end,

Currency risk manegoment

Sitce e maximum amount exposed 1o currency risk is 0.07% (2021: 0.03%) ol the Company’s total assets, any
adverse / favorpble movement in fooctionn] eurrency with tespect 10 US Dollar and RMB will not hove any
malerinl impacet on the operational sesults,

Interest rate risic

Imerest rate risk is the risk 1B Tair villues or Juure cash Qows of 2 financial instrumenst will Nucinte beenuse of
changes in interest snles. Sensitivity to interest rue risk ariscs from mismatch of Binancial assets end financinl
liabilities that mature or re-price inn given period. @&
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28.3.2(a)

28.3.2(b)

28.3.2(c)

28.3.3

Fixed rate finuncial iustraments

The cffective interest 7 mark-vp rates for interest / mark-up bearing finonciel instruments are menlioned in
Televant notes te e financial statements,

Fuir vaine sensitfvltp anelysis for lxed rate isrionenty

‘e Compnny does not nccount for iy (ixed mie [innncial assels and labilites at fuir valoe theough statement
ol profit or lass. Therefore, a change in mork-up / interest rates at the reporting daic wauld not affect staiwment
ol profit o¢ loss.

Variulde rate fingucial fnstrinsents

2022 2021
Financial Finangial Finaneial Finuncial
assely liabilifics N$5009 Tiabilitics
(Rupees in thousnnd) {Rupecs in thousand)

Long term Jazn o Helding Company 2,000,000 - 1.000,000 -
Shsort tenn borrowings - - - 30,400

Bank balunee 22,360 - 9941 -
2,022,360 - 1,009,941 30,000

Cusht flow sensttiviie anahsls for vorjahle rare Insirnoneis

A reasonnbly possible chanae of 100 basis points in intesess rates 2l the reporting dule would have (decreased) /
inereased prafit by tmounis shown helow, The anlysis nssaemes thix afl otber variabies, in particular forcign
exchinge rotes, remain constont, :

2022 o 2021
"(Rupees in thevsands)

Ducrease of 100 basls points

Variable rate insirumenis Yoo 20,224

Decrease af 61 basis pofnts
Variable rate insinuments T 20,224) 19.799)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not accessacly {udicative of the eliécts on prolit for the year und the
outsionding linbilities ol the Conmpuny a1t e yeor end.

Iwterest rate risk munagenent

e Company manages Ihese mismatches through risk management sirtegics where signilicant changes in sap
position can be adjusted, The Company's significant borrawings are based on variuble rate pricing that is mostly
dependent on Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate ("KIBOR") as indiented in respective noles.

P'rice risk

Price risk represents the risk than the fair value or fture eash Nows of finuncial instrument will fluctuate becnuse
of changes in market prices, other than those arising from inerest rate risk or currency risk, whether those
chaupus are coused by factors specilic 1o the indiviklual financint nstrument er is issper, or laciors allecting all
similnr financial instruments. The Company is corrently not exposed 10 price risk. &\?\



Financial instewments-Tair values

Fair valtie is the price that would be reccived t sefl m assa or paid e transfer a lfubility in an orderly wansiaction betweeu markel participants at the metsurcment dute.

Underlying tse definition of fair valite is the presumpiion that the Company is a poing concem and there 1s no intention of tequirement W enrail materially the seale of its aperations or (o indertake @ wrusaclion

on adverse lcrms.

A financigl instrument i$ rogarded as quoted i an octive market if quoted prices are readily and regulmrly avaitable fram aw exchange dealer, broker, industry proup, pricing service, or repulatory agency. and

those prices represent actuat and regularly oceurring market wmnsactions on an ann's lenath basis.

IFRS 13 *Fair Value Measurcment’ requires the Company (o ¢lasstly Faie valuc measurements and faic vilue hiecarchy tha reflcets the significance of the inputs used in making the measureinents of fir value

hiesarchy has the following levels:

. Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active mackels for identical asscts or tiabilitics (Level 1)
- Inputs other than quoled prices included within level | that are abservable for the assel cither directly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2)
- tnpans or the assel or liability that are not based on observable market data (thas is. unadjusied) inputs (Levef 3}

Transler between levels of the fair velue hicsurchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period deritg which the changes huve occurred.

Carrying Angunt Fabr Value
Finamcixl Ouhier financial Taot Level 1 Level 2 Fovel 3
zssets At Tinbilites a¢

umorfised cost  amortised cost

Ou-stiteinent of finaocinl position Mnanrcial instruments

(Rupees in thousamls)
30 Jun 2022

Financial assets neasured ut fair value

Finuneial ussers nos yvastered at fulr value

Accrued marksup 2417 - 32,417 - .
Casl and bank batwces 23,668 - 23,668 - -
Due from the Vlolding Compatuy 132,596 - 132,596 - -
Long terzn lonn to Holding Compuny 2,000,000 - 2.000,800 - -
Margin agninst bank guarantee 15,000 - 15,000 - -
2,203,681 - 2,203,681 - -
Finaneial liwbilities measured nt fair value - - - - -
Finuuchd Hubilities nos meesured at fulr vefug
“T'rade and other payobles - 63938 63.938 - -
29 - 63938 63938 -
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Carrying Awoual Faic Valoe
Financiad asset  Cther financinl Tolal tevet § Lewel 2 level 3
at mvorised lnbilities s
cost smortised cost

On-statement of financial position finoncinl instrwments (Rupees in thousands)
30 3une 2021
Finnncial assets measured at fair value - - . . . -
Fwancinf ossees ajeasured af fair value
Accrued mark-up 21,492 - 21492 . - -
Cash nnd bunk batsnecs 11002 - 11,002 - - -
Duc fram the Malding Company 61,225 - 61,225 - - -
L.ong e 1o to [Holding Company 1,000,000 - 1,040,000
Margin against bank guaraitee 15,000 - 15,000 - - -

2%.1 1,108.719 - 1.108.719 - - -
Fingneial liabilitics mcasnred al Nair walue - - - - - +
Furencial lighlitivs not measured ot feir volus
Trade and olher payables - 3209 32,090 - - -
Short terin barrowing - 30.000 30,000 - - -
Accrued mark-up S 624 624 )

2.4 - 62,720 62.720 - - -

2,1 The Conmany ans not disclosed she fiir valucs of these financial assels and liabititics as these are for short werm or reprise over shert lenn. Therefore, their corrying amownls e reaseaable
wpproxinution of fair vitlue,

T .,

29,2 Buildings on feaschold land, plant, machinery nnd electricol insiulhitions fimve bee ému‘i&l‘m reviilued amounts determbied by professional valwers (level 3 measurement) based on their assessment of
the market values as disclosed in note 6. The valuations sre condutted by the valu:uimyp.épcmgppoimcd by i Campany. The valtation expent used a market bused approachi (o arrive at the (air valuc of
the Company’s propertics. For reviluation of buildings an feashold 1:|mi.‘mns"lrumioh,vspégiﬁg\:auons were nioted for each buitding and strucure and new construction rates are applied according to
construction specifications lor current replaccmem values. After delcrminingg cucret nﬂnocmqu valiues, deprociation wiss calculmed lo delermine the curent assessed market valpe, Far revalwation of
plant aud machinery and electrical installyions, suppliers :?nd difterens manufzowcing conspltomts in Pakistan and ubroad were contacted 1o coltect infornution regarding current prices of comparable
poseer pant 1o determing cumeny seplacencrt value, Fair depreciation factar fos cach itein, fs applied uccarding 1o teir physical condition, usage and nrintcnance. The offett of changes in the
unobservable inputs used in the valuations cnnat be dclcmﬁ:fd with certginty, 'not:m‘dinglﬁ qualittive disclosore of seusitivity lius not been presented iv these finoncial statements.

@Q.s.
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Capital management!

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficiens capital base so as to mainiain investor, erediloy and
market confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Borrd of Directors
monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by
total capital employed.

The Company’s objectivas when managing capital are:

- 1o safeguard the entity’s ability to continuc ns a going concern. 50 that it can contimue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
chacacteristics of the underlying assets.

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capltal management during the year.
[mpact of COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)

The pandemic of COVID-19 hat hes rapidly spread all across the workl has not only endangered
human Jives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. However, afier implementing all the
necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, the Company
cantinued to carry out fis operations and has taken sl necessary steps to ensure smooth and adequate
continuation of its business. Management is actively monitoring the impact of the pandemic on its
financial condition, liquidity, operations and workforee, which et this point is not considered to be
significant. Managemen( believes that the Company has sufficient liquidity available to continue 10
meet its financial commilments for the foreseeable future when they become due. From the very outset
of Covid-19, the management has udop:c& various po“ekes and practices to minimize adverse impact of
Covid-19 on the business and is conunuously momtonnn\he situation in order 10 proactively address
any challenges which may arise ﬁ'dm Covnd-t‘) L \

1,
i

Remuneration of chief exucuti\gc. diéccrws and cxcculfs'

N
2
The apgaregate amourt! charged ln tlle financial slatcmcmqif‘or the year in respect of remuncration,
including all benefits 1o the Chief Etecutwe D;rcctms*msd’ﬁxccunves of the Company is as follows:

2022
Directors Exccutives
Chicl Executive  Non-Exceative ’
B (Rupees in thousands) w—asce—esssreess
Managerial remuneration - - 15,828
Perquisites and other benefils ' - - 8,788
- - 24,616
Nuwimnber of persons as at year end 1 6 8

o

&



-

r .
-
-

2021
Directors Executives
Chief Exccutive _ Non-Executive
e-mrmrmmmmemrn—en {RUpeES in Lhousands) «eevrm--m-moeeee -
Managerial remuncration - - 13.976
Perquisites and other benefits - - 7,866
- - 21,842
Number of persons as at year end i 6 6
No remuneration is paid to chief executive and directors of the Company.
33 Capaeity and production
Capacity Actuitl Production
2022 2021 2022 202)
MW MW
Coal fived power plant 316,800 316,800 265,494 302,017

The normal capacity has been detennined on the basis of 330 produ ipn{i,ays.-lcceping'-mfvipw the
maintenance schedufe of the plant. Lower production of power plant is due to the lawer dumber of

production days. P

34 Number of employees

The total average nuber of employees during the year and as at reporting'fda,lc_are as follows:: ’

Number of employees as at 30 June 39
Average number of employces during the year 58 60

35 Ditle of authorizatiou of issue

&
These financial statements were authorized for issue on 5 /—=c g ':2“92’2"1))! the Board of
Directors of the Companyr\(ﬂﬁ

o

Chi ef iE,xgcutive ,

Lahore
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. Form A
’ THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
e THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 130(1) and Regulstion 4]
ANNUAL RETURN OF COMPANY HAVING SHARE CAPITAL

‘-~ PARTA

(Please complete in typescript ar in bold biock capltals)

1.% CUIN { Registration Numbar) 0095705 '

1.2 Neme af the Company [MAPLE LEAF POWER LiMITED | ‘ .

1.3 Fee payment details 13.1Chellan N |E-2022-1264155 | 1.3.2. Amount

dd mm  yyyy

1.4 Form A made upio ;gnorzozz -

1.5 Date of AGM

“TPART -4

$ection A

42-LAWRENCE ROAD LAHORE PUNJAB
2.1 Registered Office Address

2.2 Email Address iMUHAMMAD.ASHRAFQKMLG,COM ]

23 Office Tel. No ‘042-36278904 i

2.4 Office Fax No. 042-36368721 i

. 2 5 Principle i of business --POWER GENERATION - ALLIED (OTHER)

2.6 Mabile No. of Authorized officer 03217775170

{Chief Executivei Director/
Company Secretary/
Chief Financial Officer} [

2.7 Autnotized Share Capital

Classes and kinds of Shares No. of Sharas Amount Face Value

Ordinary Sheres l “s.ooo.noo.ono.oo Ji

| I I
L I |

Classes and kinds of Shares No. of Shares Amount Face Value

Otdinary Shares L [[s-020.000000.00 I |

L | I |
I | I I

2.9 Particulars of the holding /subsidiary company, if any

2.8 Paid up Share Capital

Name of Compeny Holding/Subsidiary % Shares Held

. Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited |0001 107 I itoo
-— e aa e v r———— J

2.10 Chief Exacutive

Name ;Sayeed Tariq Saigol . i

Address [1 2-Main Guiberg. Lahore : J

NCNe {a52020860044 1 l




2.11 Chief Financial Officer

Name

Address

NIC No

2128

Name

ecretary

Address

NIC No

2.13 Legal Advisor

Name

Address.

NIC No

2.14 Particulars of Auditors

Name

Addrass

]Syed Mohsin Raza Nagvt

_ |

‘H No. 208-B, Street No. §, Cavalry Ground, Lehors Cantt.

|aszozs1ssssov

|

IMuhammnd Ashrat

House No. 689-8 Mchaliah Faisal Town Lahote

520115150573

i

Mt. Najam Ul Hassan

l

K. K and K Plaza, 2-Mczang Road, Lahore

lws. A. F, Ferguson and Co., Chartered Acc:l

\23-6. Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank, Gulberg V, Lahore

2.15 Particulars of Shares Registrar {il applicable)

Name

Address

Email

Sectien-8

|

=

=

2.16 LIst of Directors on the date Annual return |s made

S# |Name of Director Residential Address Nationality NIC (Passport No. if |Date of appointmant | Name of MemberlCrladstors i
foreigner) lelectian nominating/appointing :
1 |[Mian Tariq Sayeed Saigol J{ [12-Main Gulberg, Lahore Lanore Funjab |([Pakistan [s520052831085 ) [1510r2022 | R ]|‘
Pakistan ii
[2 IMi:n Dsnial Taufiqus Saiq:] House No. 1, Kohinoor Colony. |Pakimn |37405?4a13439 j I15!10I2022 L —; I
Peahawar Road, R i Rawn blng! !
Punjab Pakistan |
[3 |[Mien Taufique Sayeed Saig| [House Ne. 1, Kohinoor Colony, [Pakisnn |3ra0s0a368417 || [1511002022 r 11
:\ Y Roﬂd. B Imirdi B Inimpd 4
Punjab Pakistan ‘
[4 [fani ez || {House # 113.X, Phase.3, D.HA., Lahore |{[Pakistan [s52014s402137 1 [15/10r2022 [ J: ]
Cantt Lahote Punjab Pakistan !
[6 [[Sysu Matsin Raza Naavi i lHouse No. 208-B, Street No. 5. Cavalary || [Pakiatan {sse0zs1s55307 |[[15v1072022 | B
Ground, Lahara Lahore Punjab Pakistan M
8 S [Pakistan [s520205609441 || [15/1002022 [ i
1

1 il ¥ 2
7 [Pakistan [s5202854e0587 1| [15r10rz022 [ K




w 2.17 List of members & debenture holders on the date upto which this Form is mads

~¥

' &8 ;Fniiol! ‘lName * lAddress }\Iationality lNo of shares ]IPercemage NIC No{Passport if foreigner) ]
}Membﬂs |
[I fhan Tang Sayeed Saigol 12-Main Gulberg Lahote ]]Pakistan J 1 3520052931065
Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol 12-Main Gulberg Lahore {Pakistan 1 3520205808441
Mian Taufique Sayeed Salgol H. Ne. 1. Kohinoor Colony Peshawar Road R| |Paklstan 1 3740504368417
- ﬂ NMr. waleed Tariq Saigol 12-Maln Gulberg Lahore Paki 1 3520285460587
!l mr. Danial Tautque Saigtol H. No. 1. Kohinoor Colony Peshawar Road |P: 1 3740574813439
]iSyed Mohsin Raza Naqvi H No. 2688 &ttt No. 5, Cavalary Ground La||Pakistan 1 3520251565307
Mr. Arif ljaz H. No. 113-X, OHA, Lahore Cantt. Pakistan 1 3520145402137
Wapte Leaf Cement Factory Limited | 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore [Pakistan | sot99a093] | | |paoacoooooane [

iDebenture Holders
L

L

* In case the member or debenture holder 15 holding sharas ar debentures on behalf of other person(s), the

tha name of the member or debenture halder




42-L d,
Maple Leaf Power Limited Fahors, (bakioomn
Tel: 0092-42-36278904-05

Fax: 0092-42-36368721

June 09, 2023

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

This is to certify that the Present Authorized Share Capital of Maple Leaf Power Limited,
is Rs. 6,000,000,000 (Rupees Six billion only) divided into 600,000,000 (Six hundred
million only) Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees ten only) each with issued, subscribed and paid up
share capital of Rs.5,020,000,000/- divided into 502,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/-
each as on June 09, 2023.

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,
For Maple Leaf




Maple Leaf Power Limited

42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, {Pakistan)

Tel: 0092-42-36278904-05
Fax: 0092-42-36368721

Form 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 227(2)(f)]
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
PART-I
(Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals. )
.1 Name of the Company | Maple Leaf Power Limited ]
PART-II
2.1, Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at L3 l 0 | - ’_OJ 6/-121l0f2]2 |
2.2 No of
shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held
[ 7 | [ shareholding from 1 to 100 shares | 7 ]
[ - |  [sharcholding from 101 to 500 shares I - ]
[ - | [ shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares | | - |
r 5 | [ shareholding from 1001 to 5000 1 - |
[ - | [ shareholding from 5001 to 16000 ] - |
[ 1 | [ shareholding from 501,995,000 to 502,000,000 | | 501,999,993 |
(Add appropriate slabs of shareholdings)
[ 08 ] Total: 1 502,000,000 |
Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not been shown.
2.3. Categories of
Shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Officer, and their spouse and Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol 1 0.0000002
minor children. s Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol 1 0.0000002
Syed Mohsin Raza Nagvi 1 0.0000002
Mr. Arif [jaz 1 0.0000002
Sub Total : 7 0.0000014
2.3.2 Associated Companies, Maple Leaf Cement 501,999,993 99.9999986
undertakings and related parties. Factory Limited
2.3.3 NIT and ICP | - | [ ;
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial - -
Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies [ - } l - |
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds. [ - | [ - |
2.3,7 Shareholders holding 10% [ Refer 2.3.2 | - Il
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local - -
b. Foreign - -
2.3.9 Others (to be specified) - ]
' Grand Total ; 100.000




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited "o 027067

Cash Reserve For Project

Maple leaf Power Limited does not have any specific cash reserve for the solar power
plant. The same is verifiable from the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30%, 2022.

Jalal Tariq Shah X T
Manager Finance IS



ACI Services Email: aciservices.pak@gmail.com

SECP Services, Stock Inspection, Corporate & Tax Consultants,
Private & Partnership Company Registration

Search Report
From The Company’s Records at Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Lahore
File No: Printed Date: 10-11-2022
Company Name: M/S. MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED.
Registered Office: 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore.
Telephone # 042-36278904
Fax # 042-36368721
Nature of Business: —Power Generation-Allied (Other)
Email: Muhammad Ashraf@Kmlg Com
Date of Incorporation Registration Number Date of Latest Form-A Date of Latest Form-29
15-10-2015 0095705 27-09-2021 13-01-2022

Sa Jeed Tanqéaijl 35202- 0560944-1 15-10 2019 1| 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
Arif ljaz 35201-4540213-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | H No. 113-X, Phase 3, DHA, Lahore.
| Mian Danial Taufique Saigol | 37405-7481343-9 | 15-10-2019 1 | H No. 1, Kohinoor Colony, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi
Mian Tarig Sayeed Saigol 35202-5293106-5 | 15-10-2019 1 | 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
Mian Taufique Sayeed Saigol | 37405-0436841-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | H No. 1, Kohinoor Colony, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi
Sved Mohsin Raza 35202-5155530-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | H No. 208-B, Street No. 5, Cavalry Ground, Lahore Cantt
Waleed Tarig Saigol _ 35202-8546058-7 15-10-2019 1 | 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
“OHerShareHiolies e
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd 501,999,993
Total |502,000,000
S. #Contents of Report: Pages #
1. Summary of Charges Date Wise/Bank Wise 02
2. Details of Existing Charges 03
3. Details of Satisfied Charges 05
. Search conducted on charges from: 15-10-2015 to 10-11-2022
3 ACI SERVICES cannot be held responsible for any inaccuracy, lapses or typographical mistakes at SECP.
The public record items reported may have been paid, terminated, vacated or released prior to today’s date.
For & Behalf of
M/s. ACI Services

Authorized Signatory

Suit # 38, 2nd Floor, Big City Plaza Liberty Round About, Main Boulevard Gulberg Ull, Lahore.

Ph: 0333-4143005



" All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned
For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

Summary of Charges
M/S. MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

1 MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 26-07-18 267,000,000 0 0
2 MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 27-07-18 RS 0 0
1-A | MCB Islamic Bank Lid 28-01-19 TR a0 0
3 National Bank of Pakistan 28-02-19 0 oM
4 JOINT BANKS 25-10-19 1,535,000,000 0
NBP, MCB Islamic
5 JOINT BANKS 25-06-21 0 : 0
BOP, MCB, NBP,
MCB Islamic
4-A | JOINT BANKS 12-10-22 SO ) 0
NBP, MCB Islamic !
MCB, BOP

MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 26-07-18
2 MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 27-07-18
1-A | MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 28-01-19
National Bank of Pakistan
(3 National Bank of Pakistan [ 28-02-19
Joint Banks
4 JOINT BANKS 25-10-19
NBP, MCB Islamic
5 JOINT BANKS 25-06-21
BOP, MCB, NBP,
MCB Islamic
4-A | JOINT BANKS 12-10-22
NBP, MCB Islamic
MCB, BOP

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited. Page 2 of 5



= All terms in Pak Rupees else Menticned ACT
For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

Services

b= L} I Lo i e L R
MCB Islamic Bank 267,000,600 All present and future current assets of the | 26-07-2018| Form-17
Lid Agreement for company including but not Itd to stocks, other File Dated
T-59, Phase-I, Current Assets. raw materials, finished goods, work in process, 10-10-19
DHA, Lahore. 06-07-18 stores and spares, deposits, investments, book But Not

debts/account receivables, cash and bank Registered

balances, stock in transit, goods in transit and
any other movables etc.

2 MCB Islamic Bank Hypothecation 134,000,000 All present and future current assets of the | 27-07-2018| Form-17
Ltd Agreement for company including but not ltd to stocks, other File Dated
T-59, Phase-Il, Current Assets. raw materials, finished goods, work in process, 10-10-19
DHA, Lahore. 06-07-18 stores and spares, deposits, investments, book But Not
debts/account receivables, cash and bank Registered

balances, stock in transit, goods in transit and
any other movables etc.

1-A | MCB Islamic Bank 1St Supp 467,000,000 Charge enhanced from 267,000,000/- to | 28-01-2019] Modi of Sr.
Ltd Hypothecation 467,000,000/- No. 1
T-59, Phase-Il, Agreement for Form-17
DHA, Lahore. Current Assets. File Dated
17-01-19 10-10-19
But Not
Registered
3 National Bank of Letter of 667,000,000 Ranking charge over all present and future | 28-02-2019
Pakistan Hypothecation current assets of the company incluidng but not
105-B-1I, for Current Itd to goods, goods in bend, goods in transit,
M. M Alam Read, Assets godowns, stock stocks in trade, raw material,
Gulberg, Lahore Letter of finished/semi finished goods work in process
Hypothecation etc
for Movable All present and future movable fixed assets of
Fixed Assets the company including but not Itd to plant,
21-02-19 machinery, vehicles, equipment, computers,

fistures, fittings etc  lying/stored/placed
anywhere in Pakistan whether in transit or not

belonging to the company
4 Nationai Bank of Joint Pari Passu | 934,000,000 All present and future current assets of the | 25-10-2019
Pakistan Letter of 601,000,000 company including but not Itd to goods, goods
105-B-I1, Hypothecation 1,535,000.000 in bond, good in transit, stock, stocks in trade,
M. M Alam Road, for Current raw material, finished/semi finished goods,
Guiberg, Lahore Assets work in process, stores and spares, instruments,
MCB Islamic Bank 10-10-19 equipments, now or hereafter stored or located
Ltd or lying at company’s premises/godowns or
T-59, Phase-Il, placed wheresoever or in transit or any other
DHA, Lahore. place of storage/godowns in  Pakistan

comprising of all present and future stocks
work in process stocks in trade and all such
aforesaid goods in the course of transit
including goods referred by and released under
trust receipts and all future goods/stocks that
may be brought into the above place of
storage/godowns.

Al present and futurew book debts and
receivables accounts, outstaings, moneys,
receivables, claims, bills, contracts,
engagements, securities, investments,
accessories, cash and right etc including all
documents related thereto, together with the
benefits of all rights and contracts entered into
by the customer in this regard.

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited. Page 3 of 5



" All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned
" For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

| All prese and future movable fixed assets of

ACT
Services

25-06-2021

MCB Bank Ltd Letter of 666,670,000 the customer including but not to plant,
National Bank of Hypothecation 934,000,000 machinery, vehicles, equipment, computers,
Pakistan Movable Fixed fitting fixtures etc of whatsoever nature
MCB Islamic Bank Assets 601,000,000 installed or to be installed at coil fired power
Ltd 22-06-21 plant {cfpp) 40 mw constructed on the m/s.
2.868.337,000 maple leaf cement co. Itd iskandarabad, district
mianwali along with assets located anywhere in

Pakistan.

4-A | National Bank of & 934,000,000 Amount of charge increased from { 12-10-2022| Modi of Sr.
Pakistan Supplemental 1,535,000,000 to 2,868,334,000 No. 4
MCB Islamic Bank | Joint Pari Passu | 601,000,000
Ltd Letter of
MCB Bank Ltd Hypothecation 666,667,000
The Bank of Punjab | for Current 666,667,000

Assets
10-10-22 2.868,334,000

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited.

Page 4 of 5



The Bank of

* All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned
* For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

All r _ ‘movable fixed assets of the

ACT
Services

it L i
Deed of Floating | 2,000,000,000 Satisfied on
Punjab Charge. company including but not Itd to plant machinery 16-10-17
Bop Tower, 10-B, | 09-02-16 fixtures and fittings etc.
Block E-IJ,
Main Boulevard,
Gulberg-IIL,
Lahore.
MCB Islamic Bank | Hypothecation 601,000,000 | All the company’s present and future fixed assets 26-10-20 | Satisfied on
Ltd Agreement for including but not ltd to plant, machinery, 22-06-21
59-T, Phase-II, Plant And equipment, fixtures both imported or local, tools
DHA, Lahore. Machinery. and equipments both electrical and mechanical
14-10-20 with all kind of standard accessories and essential
parts fittings, fixtures installations power
generation sets etc erected or to be erected
installed or to be installed stored or located or
lying at factory, godowns, office premises of the
company situated at anywhere in Pakistan or in
transit or in inferest
National Bank of Letter of 267,000,000 | Ranking charge over all present and future current 28-02-19 | Satisfied on
Pakistan Hypothecation assets of the company including but not lItd to 22-06-21
105-B-11, for Current goods, goods in bond, goods in transit, godowns,
M. M Alam Road, | Assets stock stocks in trade, raw material, finished/semi
Gulberg, Lahore Letter of finished goods work in process etc
Hypothecation All present and future movable fixed assets of the
for Movable company including but not Itd to plant,
Fixed Assets machinery, vehicles, equipment, computers,
21-02-19 fixtures, fittings etc lying/stored/placed anywhere
in Pakistan whether in transit or not belonging to
the company
National Bank of Deed of 667,000,000 | First and exclusive charge on specific receivables 26-02-19 | Satisfied on
Pakistan Assignment of maple leaf power Itd to secure finance upto 22-06-21
105-B-I1, 21-02-19 667,000,000/-
M. M Alam Road,
Gulberg, Lahore
MCB Bank Ltd Hypothecation 666,670,000 Ranking charge over all present and future assets 01-03-19 | Satisfied on
Corporate Branch, | Agreement for of maple leaf power Itd including but not Itd tom 22-08-21
Main Boulevard, Plant and plant, machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
Gulberg, Machinery installation and such movables (collectively the
Lahore. 12-02-19 assets) of whatsoever nature installed or to be
installed at coal fired power plant (CFPP) of 40
mw constructed to the property of maple leaf
cement factory Itd iskanderabad, district mianwali
alongwith assets located anywhere in Pakistan
The Bank of Letter of 666,667,000 | All present and future fixed assets of the company 18-04-18 | Satisfied on
Punjab Hypothecation {whether permanently embedded to earth or not) 22-06-21
Bop Tower, 10-B, | Assignment lying, located, installed, embedded any where
Block E-II, Agreement. Pakistan.
Main Boulevard, 30-03-18
Gulberg-III,
Lahore.

**** End of the Report ****

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 7% Annual Report along with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Principal Activities

Maple Leaf Power Limited was incorporated on October 15, 2015 under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). It is a Public Limited Company with
principal activity to generate, purchase, transform, distribute and supply electric power.

Performance and Financial Review

In the year under review, the Company throughout the year successfully operated 40 MW coal
fired power plant and provided not only uninterrupted power supply but also supplied steam to
the Holding Company, Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCF) by efficiently operating
its boiler capacity. The Company recorded net sales of Rs. 5,252 million against Rs. 4,236
million in the corresponding period last year. The Company achieved gross profit of Rs. 928
million against Rs. 1,127 million in comparative year with decrease of 17.66%. Operating profit
for the year was Rs. 967 million as compared to Rs. 1,290 million during the corresponding
period last year. Finance costs during the reporting period decreased to Rs. 21 million as
compared to Rs. 31 million during the last year. The Company eamned net profit of Rs. 916
million against Rs.1,153 million in the cotresponding period last year. Earnings per share for
the year ended June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 1.82 against Rs. 2.30 last year,

The Company’s capacity utilization was 84% for the year under review as compared to 95% in
previous year mainly due to varying demand from the Bulk Power Purchaser (the Holding
Company) resulting in decrease in gross profit.

Non-Financial Review
The Company is blessed with highly skilled technical staff who worked hard with zeal and
dedication. The Chinese power plants are recognized as cost effective and efficient in the

energy sector.

Name of Directors

For the year under review, following were the Directors of the Company: -

Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol Chairman

Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol Chief Executive
Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol Director

Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol Director

Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol Director

Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi Director

Mr. Arif [jaz Director

The details of the remuneration paid to the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company are
disclosed in Note 32 of the Financial Statements.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

During the year, the Company faced the challenge of rapid increase in coal prices in
international market and devaluation of Pak Rupee against US Dollar. To ease out the pressure
on cost sides, the Company successfully shifted to usage of Afghan coal that was procured from
local market, resultantly, the Company was able to avoid huge foreign currency exchange loss
and was able to dilute the impact of major increase in coal rates in international market.

The Cement demand is highly correlated to the Government’s spending in development
projects through Public Sector Development Program (PSDP). The PSDP in FY 2022-23 has
been enhanced with special emphasis given to regional connectivity, investment on building
large dams and water conservation systems.

In light of the above factors, the company is expected to produce electricity for Bulk Power
Purchaser (The Holding Company) with almost full operational capacity during the year 2022-
23.

Change in Nature of Business

No changes have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of
the Company.

Auditors’ Report

The Auditors have expressed un-modified opinion on the audited financial statements of the
Company.

Default of Payments, Debt/Loan ete.

The Company is current on repayment of its debt obligations and no default has occurred till
cut of date of these financials.

Adequacy of Internal Controls

The Directors are aware of their responsibility with respect to internal financial controls.
Through discussions with management and auditors (both internal and external), they confirm
that adequate controls have been implemented by the Company.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 as at June
30, 2022 is annexed.
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Auditors

The present auditors of the Company, M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
audited the financial statements of the Company and have issued report to the members. The
auditors will retire at the conclusion of Annua! General Meeting (AGM) and they are eligible
for re-appointment.

Acknowledgment

We would like to thank all our stakeholders who have placed their confidence in us and also
appreciate the efforts put in by the management team for their unwavering commitment and

hard work.
Far and on behslf of the Board
(Sy aza gv } 7 (Sayced Tariq Saigof)
Lahore: August 31, 2022 Director Chief Executive
certified Trlie COPY
@ < or Maple Leaf/Power Limited

é mpany g/ee:retary

I



"

Form 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 227(2)(f)]

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
PART-1
{Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals.)
1.1 Name of the Company Maple Leaf Power Limited |
PART-IT

2.1.  Pattem of hoiding of the shares held by the sharcholdersasat {3 ] 0[-10[6[-[2]0][2]2]

22 No of

. shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held
[ shareholding from 1 to 100 shares

| shareholding from 101 {o 500 shares

[_shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares

[ shareholding from 1001 10 5000

{_shareholding from 5001 to 10000

[ shareholding from 301,995,000 to 502,000,000
{Add appropriate slabs of shareholdings)

| 08 P Total: | | s502,000000 |
Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not been shown.

|
l
[ N
|

}
]
]
]
| - 1
[ 501,999.993 i

[}
W § SN § W Jp FEISE | WEE ) SN

2.3. Categories of
Shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Officer, and their spouse and M. Sayeed Tariq Saigol ] 0.0000002
minor children. Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Waleed Tarig Saigol ] 0.6000002
Mr. Danial Taufigue Saigol i 0.0000002
Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi ] 0.0000002
. Mr. Arif jaz i 0.0000002
Sub Total: 7 0.0000014
2.3.2 Associated Companies, Maple Leaf Cement 501,999,993 99.5999986
undertakings and related Factory Limited
parties.
2.3.3 NIT and ICP | . . ; 1
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial - -
Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institations.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies [ - || - ]
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds, | - ] - ]
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% l Refer 2.3.2 [ . ]
2.3.§ General Public
a. Local - -
b. Foreign - -
2.3.9 Others (1o be specified) { - |
Grand Total : 100,000
Certifiers Topy

For Manie Le&® /- s Limited
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KPMG Tasear Hadi & Co,

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jail Road,

Lahore 54000 Pakistan

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
‘To the members of Maple Leaf Power Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Maple Leaf Power Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flaws together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 0£2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and jts cash flows for the year then ended.

Bagis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our respongibilities under those standards are finther described in the Auditor 5 Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with tiie International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Informati ther than th 4 and Audifor’, r{ Thereo.

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included
in the director’s report for the year ended 30 June 2022, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility ts to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based
cn the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard. ‘&\

L\
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Responsibil anagentent and board of directors for the financial sialements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirsments of Companies
Act, 2017(X1X of 2017) and for such internal conirol as management defermines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unléss management either intends to Liquidate the Company or o cease
operations, or kas no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

uditor’s r asthill or U dit of the financial stat.

Qur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that inclizdes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertzinty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to cortinue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern. \ﬁ\
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements rapresent the underlying transactions and events in
& manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among cther matters, the planned scope and timing ofthe

audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Repori on other Iegal and regulatory requiremenis
Based on out audit, we further report that fn our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017(XIX
of 2017);

by the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢} Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d} no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (2{VIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Rehan Chughtai.

oS X

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadl & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 31 August 2022
UDIN: AR202210183PBvmS0yTQ




Maple Leaf Power Limited
Swaement of Financial Position
JAx at 30 June 2022
2022 2021 2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note {Rupecs iu {thousands) ASSETS Note (inpcas in thousands)
il pnd reserves Net-currens agets
Authorized shase capical .
600,000,000 (2021: 600.000,000} ordinasy shascs of Rs. ¥ cach aiooo.ano 6.000@00 Propeciy, plast and equiputen i 4,695,357 4,934,690
Loag teom lom (o Holding Company i 2,000,000 1,000,000
Issuod, subscribed awd paid - up shans eagital 5 5020,000 5,020,000 6693357 5,934,690
Acciulated profin 1,603,458 675,521
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and cquipmen, 6 177,626 138,584
6,801,084 5,884,105
Deferred tasion 7 31,244 41,633 Storcs und spares including coa 3 3000l
Advances i 10.649
rrent liabliftlae ) Due frow Holding Camnpany i3 61,225
Maurgin osad propayments 16 15921
Trade and other payaldes 8 638,730 540,743 Advance tax- et 133,986
Short term borrowings - securcd 9 - 30,000 Accrucd mark-up 17 21492
Accved work-up - G624 Cash and bask balances 18 10002
658,730 571,337 5,101 562,335
TN G I, G
axniiitiiie
Contlugencies and conmmitments 10

The anuexed noics from 1 (o 35 Form aa infegrul past of these financinl stalessents,

}\* _N\——_é.__

Chief E;;-cutive

Labare Certified

For Maple

A w
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
Foar the year ended 30 June 2022

Note
Sales - net 19
Cost of Sales 20
Gross profit
Administrative expenses 2]
Other income 2
Other charges 23
Profit from operntions
Finance cost 24
Prefit before taxation
Taxation 25
Profit after taxation

2022 2021
{Rupces in thousands)
5,252,091 4,236,412
(4,324,351 {3,109.406)

927,740 1,127,006
(6,020) (6.676)
133,148 235,829
(38317 (66,250)
966,351 1,289,909
(21,416 31,151)
945,135 1,258,758

(29,115) (106,057
916,020 |.isz7o§}§

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 forn an integral part of these financial stalements,

Labare

o —— e e




Maple Leaf Power Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Far the year ended 30 June 2022
2022 : 2021
(Rupees in thousands}
Profit after taxation 916,020 £.152,701
Ol 414 e,
liems thot will not be reclassified to statensent of profit or loss
. Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment “ -
Related tax - (3,339
- (3.339)

Total comprchensive income for the year 916,020 1,149,362 &

&

The annexed notes from { to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements:

(J?O, Ao M N
Lahore /57' R ( Chief Executive

7 X 2448
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Maple Leaf Power Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year endied 30 June 2032
. Sarpluson
;:pni:I revaluation of m:::.::'d Total Equity
property; plant
and eguipment
{Rmpees In thonsands)

As s 30 June 2020 5,020,000 2039% 3,024,753 8248243
Teed comprapgusive ineowe 2r i peor
Profit after taxution - - L 152,704 1132200
Other comprehionsive fncome . 3.339) - 3.339

. . {3,339 1.132.70] 1.149.362
Incremental deprecintion relting ta surplus on
revaiualion of fixed assoly . (12,0671 12,067 .
Irausoctions with ownsrs.of the Copipare
Titorim cash dividend @ Rs. 7 per shave for the
year ended 30 Jone 2021 - . {3.514,000) (3.514.000)
As at 30 June 2021 5,020,000 188,584 675511 . 5£.884,105
Toial comprefignsive Incotie for the vest
Frofit afles txation - - 916,020 916,020
C(hher comprehensive income - - - -

- . 916,020 914,020

Increneniad depreciation relating to surphus an
revathution of fixed pssels - acl of tax - {11,917} 11,917 -
EfTest of change in effective tax mte - 95% - 959
As at 30 June 2022 5,020,000 177.626 1,603.458 6,801,084

The ammexed nows from E to 35 form an integml pont of these financiol statements.

Lahore

Certifigd

, rue Copy
For Maple/Le
/

Power Limited

4

— Chief Executive
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Staiement of Cash Flows
For th year ended 30 Jume 1022

Sogh flow Gomongendng ogilvides

Profi before 1axotion
Adjusiment for:
Deprecineon
Maskupt on Joog ten foan 10 Holding Company
Workers® Profil Participaion Fusd
Workers* Weifiwe Fund
Finance ¢ost
Mackup frons bank deposils

Cash geacrated from operaifons before working caplint changes

Effixt on cyegh flow die o werking cppitel changes
{lncrense) / decrease in currend asseis:

Stores and spares

Due fror the Holding Company

Advances

Short term depasits sod prepaymenis
Ohther coccivables

fncrease - fiecrease) in correm liabtlities:
Tende and ther payables

Net eash generated [ram opertions
Workess' Profit Panticipation imd Paid
Fluanee cost paid

‘faxes poid

Mot cask generated from apecatiog setivities

s fove froust Gtvosting aclvides

Fixed eapital expenditure

(Incrense) F decrense in bong terts loen to Holding Company

Mackup received from hank doposits

dackup reeeived (rom long lerm doant 1o Holtding Company

Nt cash (usad In) { genorated Trom investing aetivities
ash o from fineqck e

Shont term boreowings - nel

1.ong tenn loans paid

Dividend puid

Nit cask uxed in Sunncing activities

Net Inerense I cash snd eash equivalents

Cush nud cask eqnivalents st beginniug of the yonr
Cash nnd rash equivatonts nt end of the year

Cosh asnd coxly equivnlents for the purposes of the cosh lones statement consiss of

Cash in hond
Curvent and ather ugeounts
Short lesm nething Bnance

Tutnt ensh wnd envlt equivatents

The smexed notes fram € 1 35 form o imegel pan of

Lahore

un N
Note {Rupees in ihousauds)

948,135 1.258.758
it 324,470 Jor.20%
{184,170) (197.878)
50814 66,250
20,318 .
21416 315
{1,207 (3Mm
1,356,483 1464113
{17492 158613
M3 726,034
33 67,504

(6} 336

- | 416
{24634} 433403
26473 {37.106)
1,036,222 1.88012
3.050) -
(22,040} (54.3t0
(13,749 {10815
997383 1815208
12 3,600,000
1460

231578

2239618

- {331.513)

- {32935

- (3.514.000)

- {3,378469)

42,666 17631
(18.998) {195.373)
23068, (i5%m
Go1 344
13,067 10461

- 30.090)
13,008 (189981
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yeen ended 30 June 2022

yo3

Corperate and geaeral information

Maple Leaf Power Limited ( the "Company™) was incorporated in Pakistan on |5 Oclober 2015 as s public
fimited compnny under the Companies Ordinance, 1384 {now Companies Act, 2017), The Company has
been ostablished to sct up and operate a 40 megowatl coal fired power generation plant at Iskanderabad;
District Miamvali, Punjab, Pakisian for generation of electricity. The Company’s registered office is Jocated
af 42 « Lawrence Road, Lahore. The principal objective of the Company Is ta develop, desiyn, operate and
maintain electric power generation plamt and in cormection thergwith Lo engage in the business of gencration,
sale and supply of clectricity. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leaf Coment Factory
Limited ("the Holding Company™}. The ultimate parent company is Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited.

The Company was granted clectricity gencration ficense from National Eleciric and Power Regulatory
Authority (NEPRA) on 20 Docember 2016, The Company enieted inio a power purchase and steam
purchnse agreemems with Holding Company on 04 July 2017 and 31 October 2019 respectively which are
vaiid for 20 yesrs.

Basis for prepamation
pA | St{atement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standurds as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise oft

- International Financial Reporting Standavds (IFRS) Issucd by the Intermational Accounting
Standards Board {JASB) 1s notified under the Companies Act 2017;

- Islamie Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the [ustitute of Chanered
Accouniamts of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Acl, 2017: and

- Provision of and directives issucd under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companles Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS. the
provisions ol and directives issued under the Companies Act. 2017 have been followed.

22 Basis of measurement

These financial staements have bean prepared under the historical cost convention except for
buildings on leaschold land and plan, machinery and eleciric installation which are measured at
revalued amount.

23 Functionnl and presentation currency

These financial statemenis have been prepared in Pak Rupees (*Rs.“) which is the Company's
functional currency. The amounts are rounded ofT to nearest thousand.

2.4 Use of estimntes and judgments

The prepacation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management (o make judgments, estimotes and assumptions hat affect the application of policies
and reporied amounts of assets, labilities, income and cxpenses. The estimates and associated
assumplions are based on historical experience and varions other factors that are belicved 1o be
reasonnble under circumsiances. and the results of which form the basis for making judgment abow
carrying value of asseis and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual
results may differ from these cstimates,

AN
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on on ougoing basis. Revisions lo
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimaies are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both ¢urrent and future periods.

The areas wherc assumptions and estimates or where judgment was cxercised by the managenmoent
In application of accounting policies arc as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives and residual value for each item of
property, plant and equipment anaually by considering expected patiern of economic benefiis that
the Company expects o derive from that item and the maximum period up to which such benefits
are expecled to be avaifable. Any change fn ostimates n future yoms might affect the carcying
amounis of respeciive llems of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and impairment. During the year, the Company hos changed depreciation
method for all class of assets other than plant, inachinery and electrical installations to swaight line
basis. The ¢ffect of change in the depreciation mathod is not considered material 1o the financial
statements, hence, no disclosure to this effect is made in these finuncial statements,

Revaluntion of property, plant nnd equipment

Revalfuation of property, plant and equipment is ¢arried out by independent professional valuers,
The Company nses revaluation model only for its buildings on leasehold land and piant, machinery
and elecwical ingiallations.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of propeny,
plant and equipment belng revalued. When the fair value of o revaiued asset differs materially from
its carrying amount, a further revaluation is required. Such frequent revaluations are unnccessary
for items of property, plant and equipment with only insignificant changes in fair value. Instead, it
may be necessary to revalue the item oaly every dirce to five years,

Expected eredit loss (ECL) / Loss allowances against trade debts, long term lonns, advances,
shart term depasits and other receivables

ECLs are based on the difference between ths conmraciual cash flows due in accordance with the
contzact and all the cash flows that the Company expects (o receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to (he asset criginal effective interest rate,

The Company has elected to measuro loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 siinplified
appronch and has calculated ECLs based on kifetime ECLs. The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specilic to tho debiors and the cconomic environment. When detesmining
whether 1he credit risk of a finanoinl asset hias increased significantly since initinl recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supporiable information that is
refevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysls, based on the Company's historical experience ond informed credit
assessment including forward-locking information,

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum conteaciuel period over
which the Caompany is cxposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for Financial asscis meassured at
amortized cost are deducted (rom the pross carrying amound of the asseis.

Impairment on financinl assels other than trade debt has been measured on a 12-month expecied
foss basis and rcflects the short maturities of the exposurcs, The Company considers that fis

cash
and cosh cquivalents have Jow credit risk based on the external credit mtings of the mnmmnw
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The Company reviews the recoverabilily of its financial assets to assess amount of loss allowances
required there against on an annual basls.

Recoverable amount of assets / cash geaevating unit and impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounis of its assets and cash gencraling units
for possible impairment and, makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such
indication.

Provisions and contingencics

The Company reviews the status of al] pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based
on the judgment and the advice of the legal advisors {or (he estimated Raancial owicome,
appropriate disclosure or provision is nwude. The actual outcome of these ltigations and claims can
have an cffect on the canying amounts of the liabilisies recognized ai the reporting date.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the curreat income tax law and decisions taken by the taxalion
authorities. Instances whers the Company's vicws differ from the views taken by the incoine lax
department al the assessment stoge aml where the Company considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the emounts are shown as camingent liabilities.

Summary of significaut accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopied Ir the preparation of these financial statements are set owt
below. Thesa policies have been consistanily applied o alf years presented.

11

Property, plant and equipment and revaluntion surplus

Ownied

Tangible assols except buildings on lensehiold land, plant, wiachinery and electrical instatiations are
sinted at cost less aceumulaled depreciation and impaicment, if any. Buildings on Jeaschold land,
plon, machinery and electric installation are stated at revalued amotunt being the fair volue & the
date of rcynluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Surplus
on revaluation is booked by resiating gross carrying amounts of respective assets being revalued,
propoctionatety to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The accumuleted
depreciation at the date of revaluation is also adijusted to ¢qual differeace between gross carrying
amounts and the carrying nmounts of the assels afler taking into account accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Surplus on revaluatfon of Fixed asscis to the extent of the ananal incramenial
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset is transferred annually to retained
eamings nel of rolated deferred tax if any. Upon disposal, any revaliation reserve relating to the
particular assots being sold 15 wansferred to vetnined eamnings, Al transfers 1o / from surplus on
reviluation of fixed nsse1s account are net of spplicable delerred income lax, if any.

Capital work-in-progress is stated ol cost Jess idenified impairment losses, if any., All expendivre
connected with specific nssets incurrgd during insialiation and construction period are carried under
capilal work-in-progress. Theso are transferved to speci{ic assets as and when these are available for
use,

Major renewals and impravenents to an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized in
the carvying anount of the item If it I3 probable that the embodied fitture cconomic beaefits will
flow to the Company and the cost of renewal or improvement can be measured reliably. The cost of
the day-to-dy servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in statement of profit or
loss ag incurred.
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Gains / Yosses on disposal or retirement of assets, if any, are taken to statement of prolit or loss,

Depreciation is caleulated at she rales specified in note 11 using swraight line method. Depreciation
on additions to property, plant and equipment is chiarged from the month in which the item beeomes
aveilable for use. Depreciation is discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified
as hehd for disposal.

Increases in the eurrying amounts arising on revaluation of building, plant and electrical equipment
is recognised, in other comprehiensive income and acenumulated in reserves in shoreholders® equity.
To the extens that the increase reverses a decrense previously recognised ini profit or loss, the
incrense 1s first recognised in profit or Joss. Decreases thal reverse previous increasces of the sane
asset are first recogalsed in other comprehensive iucone to the extent of the renmining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to arofit or loss.

Financlal instruments
Recoguition nnd initinl measurement

Al financin} nssets or financial liabitities are infiially recopuized when the Company becomes a
purty to (he contractual provisions of the instrument.

A linancial asset (unless it is a tmde receivable without a significant financing compenewt) or
tinancial Hiability is initially mensured at fair value plus, for an jtem not a1t FVTPL, transaction costs
that are direcily attributable 10 its acquisilion or issue. A receivable without a significant financing
componeit is initially measured a1 the transaction price.

Classifteation and subsequent measurement

Fingncial assety

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured al amortized cost, fair value
through oiher comprehensive income (FVOCH) and fair vafve through profit or toss (FYTPLY

Financial assets are not reclassificd subscquent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, iy which case al} affected financial assets
are reclassified on the Grst day of the first repoxting period following the change in the business
model. ‘

durostbzed cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets bolls of the following conditions and [s
net designated as ot FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whoso objective i3 to hold asseis to collect coniractual
cash flows; and
" its contraciual terms give rise on specified dntes to cash flows that are solely paymens of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

These ussets are subsequently mensured at smortized cost using the cffective interest metiod. The
amortized cost s reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gadns mid lossos
and impainment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial assets nieasured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank batances, dus from Holding
Company, long tern loan to Holding Company and 2ecrued profit (@
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Debi Iustrument - FYOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by boib collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financinl assers; and

- its contractunl texms give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount qutstanding.

These assels are subsequently measared at foir value, Interest income ealculated using the effective
interest method, foroign exchange gnins nnd losses and Impairment are recognized in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are tecognized in OCL On derccogrition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCH are reclassified to profit or loss, However, the Compuny a8 no such instrement at the
reporting date,

Cguel et -

On initial recognitfon of an cquity investment that is not held for wading, the Company may
jrrevocably ¢lect 1o present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCL This election
is made on an investment-by-investment bnsis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair volue. Dividends are recognized as incomne in profit
or Joss unless the dividend cleasly represcnis a recovery of part of the eost of the invesiment, Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss. However, the
Company hrs no such instrument a1 the reporting date.

air va hiranught it or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured al amoctized cost or FVOCH as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognilion, the Company may irrevocably designate a finnncial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be mensured at antortized cost or ot FYOCT as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismaich that would ctherwise arise.

These assets are subsequemly imeasured at fir value. Nel gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, ara recognized in profil or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument m
the reporting date.

Finangial assets — Busingss model nssessy

For the purpases of the assessment, *principal” is defined as the fair value of the finencial asset on
initial recognition. *Interest’ is defined as consideration for the tGime value of money and far the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as welf as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contrachirat cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company congiders the contmetual ierms of the instrumont, This inelixdes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a coniraciual term that could change the (ming or ammount of contraciual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. [n making this assessment, the Company
considers:

- contingent events that would changs the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, inchuding vaciable-rate features;
- prepayment and exiension features; and

- tems thw the Company’s claim 1o cash flows [vom specified assois {¢.8, non-rocourse
features).
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classificd as measured at amortized cast or FVTPL. A financiul liability is
classified ns at FVTPL. if jt is classified as held-for-trading, il is a derivative oF it is designated as
such on initlal recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at falr value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or foss, Other financial Habijities
are subsequently measured at amartized cost using the effective inlerest method. Interest expeise
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition fs also recognized in profit or Joss.

Financial linbilitles comprise trade and other pajrnblts. short terin borrowing and accrued markup.
Derecognition

LFlyanelnl agsers

The Company derceognizes & fnancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expirs, or il transfers (he rights 1o receive the contracival cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Compnny neither transfers nor retsins substantinlfy all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does nat retain control of the financial asset.

The Company inight enter imo transaciions whareby it translers assels recognized in its statement
of financinl position, but retains cither all or subsiantially all of the risks and rewards of the
ransfecred assets, In these cases, lhe transfeived assets are not derecognized.

Financial Rubilities

The Company derecognizes a financial Hability when its commctual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liabifty when its terms are
maodified and the cash flows of the modified linbilily are substantially different, in which case a new
financial linbikity based on the modiffed 1erms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a
financial lability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and Iha consideration
paid {ingluding any non-cash assels transferrcd or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or Joss.

Due from Holding Compauy - tradle debt

These are classificd at amartized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and
measured al (air value of consideration receivable. These assets are vritten off when tiere is no
reasenable expeclation of recovery.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities ace offsel and the net amount presenied in the statement of
finunciel position when, and anly when, the Company currenily lins a legaily enforceable right to
sot ofT the samownts and it Intends either ta seitla them on a net basis or lo realize the asset and sclile
the liability stimaltancously,

Impairment

Lluanciyl gsse(s

The Company recognizes loss allownnces for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured ot amortized cost;

. debt invesiments m al FYOCT; and

- contract assets,

of
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The Company mensuces loss allowances at an amount equat to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are imeasured at {2-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have law credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (ie. the risk of dofault
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has nol increased significanly
since iaitial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result [rom default events that are possible within the
12 wonths afler the reporting date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the instroment is less.
than 12 months).

When detenmining whothee the credit risk of a financial asset has Increased significanily since
initia) recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportabic
information that is relevant and available withowt undue cost or effort. This includes both
gquantitative and qualitative information and analysls, based on the Company®s historieal experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking informatian,

The Compnny assumes that the credit risk on a finencinl asset has inereased significantly If it [s
more than past due for & reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLS are the ECLs shat result from all
possible default events over the expected life of & finuncial instrument. 12-month ECLS are the
portion of ECLs that result from default avents that are possible within the {2 months after the
reparting date (or a shorter peried if the expested life of the instrument is less than 12 months), The
maximum period considered witen cstimating ECLs is the maximum contractual pariod over which
the Company is exposed lo credit risk.

The Company has elected (0 measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified
appronch and has calculated ECLs based on lifeime ECLs, The Company has esinblished »
provision mawix that is based oa the Company's historical credit loss cxperience, adjusied (or
forward-looking factors specific to the debiors and the ecanomic environment, When dotermining
whether the eredit risk of a {inancial asset has Increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supporable Informnation that is
relevant and available without undue cost or efforl. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
infonnation and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit
assessment including forward-looking information.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deductied from the Gross
carrying amount of the assets.

The Gross canying amount of a (inancial asset is written off' when the Company has nc rensonable
expeclations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion (hereof. Tha Company
individually makes on gssessment with respect 10 the timing and amount of write-of based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company oxpects no significant
recovery (rom the amount wrilter off. However, financisl assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in ovder to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due, '

Nou-financial agets

The carrying amount of the Conpany’s non-financinl assels, other than inventories and delerred tax
assets, if any are roviewed st each reporting daie {0 determine whether thers is any indication of
impairment. 1f any such indication exists. then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amouint of nn nsset or cash generatlng unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cast 5o sell. [n assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or eash generating unit.
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amourt. Impaimrment losses are recognized in profit or losa.
Tmpairment losscs recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated o reduce the
cartying amounts of the asseis in a unit oa a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior
perods are nssessed aY each repocting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the cstimates used to
deternine the recoverable amount, An Impairment loss is reversed only w that extent that the
assel’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Steres nnd spures

These are staled o1 cost less provision for slow maoving item and obsolescence. [F any. Cost is
determincd using the weighted average method. 1tems in transit are valued ot cost comprising
invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Revenue recognition

Sule of Electricity and Stogin nuder IFRS 13

Revenue from sale of electricity and sleam are recognized as delivered. The Company views each
kilowatt hour (KWh) of electricity and per tons of steam delivered 1o be a series of distinet goods
that bave the same pattem of transfer to the customer. The amount that the Company has a right o
bill the customer reflects the pattern of transfer and value of the completed pesformance (o Lhe
customer. As a result, the Company applies the “rishi to invoice” practical expedient under IFRS 15
{0 measure and vecognize revenue,

Interest income

interest income is recognized as it accrues under the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through the expecied life of the linancinl asset to
the gross carrying amonnt of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A coniract liability is the obligation of the Company to uansfer goodds or services (10 a custoiner for
which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. if a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services (o the
customer, a contract lability is recognized when Lhe payment is made or the pavment is due
{whichever js earlier), Conlract liabilitics are recognized as revenve when the Company performs
under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities arising ou! of customers* right to claim amounts
from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance obligations and
incentive on target achievements.

‘Frade and other payables

Creditors and other payables are carried at amortised cost which is the fair value of consideration 1o
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whather or nol billed to the Company.

Cash and cagh equivalents

Cosh and cash equivalents for he purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash i hand, short term
running finance and cash at banks,
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Taxation

Current

Profits and gains of the Compaay derived from clectric powcr generation project are exempt from
tax subject to the conditions and Fmitations provided (or in 1erms of clause (132) of Pant | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Fusther, the Company is also exempt from
minimuum tax on wumover under clause (11 A) of Part I'V of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
QOrdinance, 2001,

However, profit from steam opernsions, profit an bank deposits and interest on fong term Joan lo the
Holding Company are {iable 10 be taxed as per the applicnble corporate tax rale.

Deferred

Defarred tax is recogrized using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the
carrying smosnts of assels and liabilities for the financial roporting purposes and the amounts used
For taxation purposes.

Deferred tax asset Is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences only to the extent that
it is arobable that fulwre toxable profits will be availabic agninst which the assel may be utilized,
Deferred tax assed is redvced to the exient that it is 00 longer probable that sthe related 1ax benefit
will be realized. Deferred tax Habilities are recognized for all the taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rales that are expected (0 apply to the
period whent the asset is realized or the Hability is sottfed, based on the tax ratos that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the stateinent of financial position date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss , except in the case of items
¢redited or charged to comprehensive income or cquity, in which case it is included in other
comprchensive income or equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares ave classified as equity. Incromental costs directly atiributable o the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from cquity, net of any tox effects.

Dividend to ordinary sharcholders

Dividend to ordinary sharcholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit and as a
liability in the Company’s statement of financial position in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Bonrd of Direetors or the Company's sharsholders as the case may be.

Contingent Habilitlcs

A contingent lability Is disclosed when:

- chere Is a possible obligation that arises from past cvents and whose existence will be

conlirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one of mose uncertain filure events
not wholly within the control of the Coampany; :ﬁé{
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- there is present obligation thal arises from past events but it is not probable that an owillow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Foreigu currency transiations

Transactions in foreign currencies are inilially recorded a1 ihe rates of exchange ruling on the dates
of wransaciions, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslaied
inte PakX Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the siatement of financial position date. All
exchange differences arc charged to stateiment of profit or loss.

Borrowings

Al borrowings are recorded al the proceeds received. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or produciion of qualifyiug assets, which are assels that necessarily take o
subsiantial period of time to et ready for their mtended use are added w the cost of those assels,
until such time as the nsscts are subsiantially ready for Wheir intended use. All other borrowing costs
are charged to siatement of profit or loss in the pariod in which these are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Campany has a legal and constructive obiigation as a vesukt of
past events and it is probable that oulflow of resources embodying economic benefiis will be
required 10 seule the cbligation and a reliable estimate can be made of (e amount of obligation.
Provisien is 1ccognized at an amount that is the best estimate of thie expenditure required 1o seitle
the presont obligation ot the reporting date. Where outflaw of resosrces embodying economic
benefits is not probable, or whera a relinble estimaie of the amount of obiigation cannat be made, a
contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outlow is remote,

Muark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing bomrowings are recognized inilially at cost repressnting the falr value of
consideration received less allcibutable (ransaction ¢osis, Subsequent to initinl recognition, muk-up
bearing borrowings are stated at original cost less subscquent repayments, while the difference
between the original recognized amounis {ns reduced by periodic payments) and redemption value
is recognized In tho statement of profit or loss over the perfad of borrowings an an ¢ffective rale
basis, The borrowing cost on qualifying asset is incliuded in the cost of related asset,

Leases
The Company Is the lessee,

At inception of a cumract, the Company assesses wihiether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
srhether the cantenct conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for considerntion. Lense terms are negolinted on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.

At iaitia] recognition, leases are recogaised as a right-of-use assct and a coresponding Hability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company.

The lerse Habllity is initially mensured nt the prosent value of the lease payments that are nol paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in thg lease. or if' thai mie
cannot be rendily detormined, the Campany’s incremental botowing rate,
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Lease payments inciude fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on on index or 2
rate amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual valve guaranteos, the cxercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain (o exercise that aption, payments of
penaltics for termingting the lease, if the lease term reflects the lesseo exercising thit optign, less
any lease incemtives reccivable. The extension and termination oplions are incorporated in
detesmination of lease term only wien the Company is reasonably certain to oxercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amodtised cosl using the effective interest rate
method. It is remcasured whicn theye is a change in future lease payments arising fiom a change in
fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guaraniee, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether il will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustiment
is made (o the casrying wmount of the right-ofuse asset, or is recorded in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss account if the carrying amount of right-al-use asset has been reduced to
2810

‘The right-of-use asset is initially measared based o the initial amount of the lease Jiability adjusted
for any lease paymenis made &t or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the inderiying asset or (0 yestore the
underdying asset or the sile on which it is located, less any leuse inceative received. The right-of use
asset is deprecinied on a Straight line method aver the lease term as this method most closely
reflects the expected pattemn of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-ol-use asset is
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for cenain remeasuremens of the lease tiabifity.

Paymenis assaciated with short-term leases and all feases of low-value asseis are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases arc [eases with a lease ferm: of
12 months o5 less without a purchase oplion.

New/ revised nccountiug standards, amendments to published accounting standards, and
interpretations that are oot yet cffective

The following Internaiional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Siandards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendinenls and interpreiations thereto will be effective for accoumting
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022:

Onerous Contracts — Casl of Fuifitling a Centract (Amesdmenis to 1AS 37) cffective for the apnual
periods beginning on o afler | January 2022 clarifies that the 'cost of fulfilling a contract’ for the
purposes of the onerous contract assessment comprises the costs it relate direcily 10 the contract,
including both the incremental costs and an allocation of other direst costs to fulfil the contract. An
entity is required (o apply the amendments to conlracis for which it has not yet fulfilled all iis
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments
{the date of initisl npplication). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the
amendments require an entily o recogaize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of rotained camings or other componem of
equity, as appropriate, at the date of infilal application,

The following nonual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 ars effective for annual
reporting periods beginaing on or aller 1 January 2022:

- IFRS 2 - The amendement clarifics that an entity inchudes only fees poid or received between the
eatity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by eiiher the entity or the
lender on the ather’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent” test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derecognize a financial Hability.
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IFRS 16 ~ The amendnient partially amends Hiustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of Jeasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective
of tlie amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might srise In lease incontives.

1AS 41 - The nmeadment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41 for entities 0
exclude taxntion cash flows when measuring the fair value of a blological nsset using a present
valite technique. This amendment cnrbles the fair value measurement of biological assets on a post-
tax basis.

Propesty, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before latended Use (Amendments Lo IAS 16) cffective
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of
items produced while bringing an itew of properly, plant and equipment 1o the location and
condition necessary for il to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g.
when testing etc., are recognized in pwofit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The
entity measures the cost of those items applying the measuromeit requirements of IAS 2. The
standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An
ontity shall apply those amendments retraspectively, but only to items of propesty, plam and
equipment that are brought 1o the docation and condition necessary for them 1o be capable of
operating in the manner iniended by management on or afier the beginning of the carliest period
presenied in the financiol statements in which the entity first applies the amendmems. The eatity
shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of refained carnings (or other component of equity, as appropriaic} at the
beginning of that earliest period presenied.

Reference lo the Conceptual Framework (Amendmenis to IFRS 3) - Refercace to the Canceptual
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 2], 22 and 23 of aud added
paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A o IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those amendments to buginess
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or alter the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning oa or afier | January 2022,

Classification of Habilitics s current or non-current (Amendments 1o 1AS 1) apply rewospectively
for the annual pesiods beginning on or afier 1 January 2023, These amendmonts in the standards
have besn added 10 further clarify when a liability is classified as current. Convertible debt may
aeed 1o be reclassificd as ‘current’, The standard also amends the aspect of classifieation of Lability
as non-current by requiring the essessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reparting period to
defer the seiticment of Niability for at lenst twelve months after the reporting period. An entity's
expeciation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance or to reschedule payments on a Jong-
term basis are no longer relevant for the ¢lassification of a liability as current or non-current. An
antity shail apply those ameadments retrospectively in accordancs with [AS 8.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments 1o [AS | and IFRS Pmctice Statemem 2) - the
Board fias issued amendments on the application of materiality 1o disclosure of accounting policics
and 1o help companics provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to [AS |
include:

s requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;

s clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial wransactions, other avems or
conditions are themsalves immaterinl and as such nced not be disclosed; an;“@
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s - clarifying that nol all acconnting policies that relate 1o material transactions, other evenis or
conditions are themselves material to a company's financial starements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 {o include guidance and two additional
cxamples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The smendments are
efffective for annunl reporting periods beginning on or afier | January 2023 with eardier application
pennitied,

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Ameadments 1o [AS 8) introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amouats in the financial stalements that are
subject 10 measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between
aceounting palicies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate 10 achieve the abjective set out by an accounting policy. The amendmenis are effective for
periods beginning on of ofter | January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will spply
prospectively (@ changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policics otcurring on or
afler the beginning of the firt anpusl reporting period in which the company applies the
amendments,

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction {Ameniments 1o
1AS 12) narrow Ihe scope of sthe inilial recognition exemption (IRE} so that i does nok apply o
transactions that gjve rise to equal and offSeuting temporary differences. As a resull, companies wiil
need o recognize a deferred tax asset and u deferred tax Hability for temporary differences arising
on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated defewred lnx assct and liabilities will need 10 be recognized from the
beginning of the earlicst comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustment to remined eamings or olhey components of equity at that date, The amendmenis are

* ¢ffective for annual reporting pesiods beginning on or after | January 2023 with carfier applicatien

permitted.

Sale ar Conkibution of Assels between an Investor and {ls Associate or Joinl Venture {Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) - The amendment amnends accounting trestment on lass of control of
business or assets. The amendmenis also introduce new accoumiting for loss frequent transaction
that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets lhat ore not
businesses. The effective date {or these changes has been deferred indefinitely uniil the completion
of a3 broader review.

The above improvements are likely 1o have no impact on the Company's financial staiements,

Share capital
31 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2022 2021 2022 1021
{Nunnber of shares) {Rupees in thousands)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 cach
fisly paid in cash 302,000,060 302.000,00¢ 5.020.000 5,020,000

Mnpke Leaf Cement Factory Limited (The Holding Company) holds 501,999.993
(2021:301,999,993) shares comprising 99.99% (202F: 99.99%) of the paid up share capilal of the

CMMW .
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2022 2024

Surplus on vevaluation of property, {Rupees in thousands)
plant and equipment- net of tax

At beginning of tho ysar 191,923 203,990
Transfer 10 unappropriated profit in respect of
incremental deprecistion chnrged during the

year {12,067} {12,067)
Atend of the year 179,856 191,923
 Jabitis 11}
A begianing of the yenr 3,339 .
Transferred 10 unapproprialed profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the year (150) -
Surplus on revnluation of property, plant and equipment - 3339
Effect of change in fax cate 059 -
A end of the year 2,230 3,339
177,626 188,584
G The Company's buildings on leasehold land and plant, machinery and electrical instalintions were
revalued by Arif Evaluators, an independont valiter not conneeled with the Company and approved
by Pakistan Banks' Association (PBA) in “any amaint® category, at 30 June 2020. The basis of
revaluation for items of these fixed assets were s follows:
6.1.1  Buildings on Jeas¢hald land
Construction specifications were noted for ezcl building and struclure and now construction rates
are applied according 1o comstmction spocifications for current replacement values, After
deiermining current replocement values, depreciation was calculated to determine the current
assessed market value.
6.1.2 Plant and machinery
Supptiers and diflerent cement plamt congultants in Pakistan and abroad wers contacted to collesy
informution regarding current prices of comparable power plant (o determine current replaccment
value, Fair depreciation factor for cach ftem is applied according to their physical conditfon, usage
and maintenance,
2022 202%
Delerred taxation {Rupeos in thoustnd)
Deferrad tee Wability g 1 (en differen
- accelerated tax depreciation on {ixed assels 29,014 38.204
- $urplus on revaluation of fixed assels 2,230 3,339
31,244 41,633
31,244

41.633 K‘
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7.1 Movement in deferred tax balances Is as follows:
2022 20
Noze {Rupees in thousands)
At beginning of the year 41,633 -
Recognized in statement of profii or loss:
- aceelerated tax depreciation on (ixed asssls {9,280) 38,294
~ Surplus on csvaluaticn of fixed assets (1503 -
(9, 420) 38,294
Recognized in other comprehensive incomne: - 3339
viged in surplus on hiration of fix
Effeet of change in effeciive tax rale (59 -
At end of the year 31244 41,633
Trade and other payables
Trade creditors 18,545 15,261
Income tax deducted al scurce 96,077 111,409
Retention money 1,287 1,587
Bills payable 5,464 1,704
Provision for electricity duty 180,652 136,312
Accrued liabilitics 31 13,227
Workers' Profit Panticipation Fund &1 275,643 227.909
Punjab Workers® Wellare Fund 23 10328 -
Sales tax payable - net 224098 32,913
COther payables 869 191
558,730 540,713
R | Woarkers' Profit Participation Fund { WPPF)
At beginning of the year 227,989 161,659
Provision for the year 23 50,814 66,250
Less: Paid during the year {(3.080) .
At end of the year 275,643 227,909
LA N

Rs. 3 million has been paid during the year. Opening balance of WPPF liabilily represents leflover
amount payable to Workers Welfare Fund Tn terms of Cowmyranies Profits Workers Participation
Acl, 1963. According to the 18th amendment to the Coustitution of Pakistan in 2010, all labor /
Iabor welfare Inws have becomne provineial subject, and sccordingily the left over amount is no
mare payable 1o the Federai Treasury. Major strength of Company’s employees eligible for benefit
of WPPF are working in the Provinee of Punjab and asccordingly potential amount of ieft aver
amount of \WPPF is required to be paid to the relevant provineial authority as held by the
Honourabie Sindh High Count in its judgment in C.P. No, D<13i3 of 2013 announced on February
12, 2018. The Govemument of Punjab has enacted Companies Profils (Workers' Participation)
{Amendment) Act, 2021, however this bas not specified the payment modalities and therefore the
company is constrained to deposii the leR-over amount 10 Government ot‘Pakisww
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2022 202

Shart term borrowings - sccured (at amortised cost) Note (Rupees in thousands)

Borrowings from banks under conventional mode

Short term running finance 2.1 - 30,000
- 30,008
9.1 Last year figure tepresents utilized amount of shost term running finance facility availed from

9.2

National Bank of Pakistan with a accumulated sanctioned limik of Rs. 200 million. During the
current year the utilized amount of Rs. 30 million was paid oiT and the amount of short teym
barrowing wag reduced 1o zero as no further finencing was obtained.

The Company at the year cnd has unavailed FATR facility with sanction timil of Rs. 500
million from the Bank of Punjab which carrles markup at the rate of three month KIBOR phus
0.75%, payabls quarterly. This is secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.667 million over
all present and fature moveable fixed assets and current assets of the Company with 25%
margin, corporate guarantee of the Holding Company, assignment oF receivables of the Holding
Company, trust receipts and lien on titke of goods under imporl documents. The expiry date of
the Facility is 30 November 2022,

The Company at the year end has unavailed facility under islamic mode of financing from MCB
{slamic Bank Limited with a sanction limiv of Rs. 400 million (2021: Rs. 400 million). This
facility carries markup of 3 months KIBOR + 1%. The facility is secured against first joimt
parrt passu charge over cusrent assets for R5. 467 million, first joint parri passu charge over
fixed assets of the Company with a margin of 25%, lien over import title docunents and cross
corporate gurantee of Holding Company. The expiry date of facility is 31 Januvary 2023.

Contingencics and commitmenis

0.1

1011

10.1.2

Contingencics

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf~11/19202| dated
27 May 202) croated demand amounting Rs. 367.6 million under section 1{(2) of Soles Tax
Act, 1990 Jor the tax period fronr July 2016 to June 2018 on account of in-admissible
adjustment of input tax credit. Being aggreived, the Company filed on appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenve (Appeals) CIR{(A) who vide order no. 136-ST/A-VI dated 31
December 2021 reduced the demand to Rs. £34.8 millicn and remanded the remaining demand
to DCIR. The Company hes fled an appeal before Appollate Tribunal Infand Revenue (ATIR)
against the remaining demand which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of the
favorable outcome of case and accordingly, nc pravision has been incorporated in these
financial statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. 04/2021 dated {3 July 2021
created demand amounting Rs. 843.6 million under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax pariod fom
July 2017 to Deeember 2020 on account of non-apportionment of input tax credit against
Capacity Purchase Price (CPP} component of electricity tarifl. Being aggreived, the Company
filed an appeal befors Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) whe vide order no. 151-

ST/A-VL dated 20 Iapuary 2022 reduced the demand 10 Rs. 580.3 miflion and annulled the
remaining denms.*g\&\



18.1.3

10.1.4

19.1.5

10.2

10,25

The Company has filed an appest before Appellate Tribunal Inlend Revenue (ATIR) against the
remalning demend which is pending adjudication. Mznagement is hopeful of the favorable
outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these financial
siatements.

The Deputy Commissioner lnland Revenue (DCIR) vide order ne. 0572021 dated 17 July 2021
created demand amounting Rs. 1832.8 millien utdder Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the lax period from
July 2016 to June 2017 on account of non-apportionment of input tax credit against Capacily
Purchase Price (CPP) component of electricity tariff. Being aggreived, the Company flled an
appeal before Commissioner inland Revenue (Appeais) CIR(A) who vide order mo. 150-ST/A-
V1 dated 20 January 2022 reduced the demand to Rs. 96.5 million and annulled the remaining
demand, The Company has filed an appeat before Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
agsinst the remaining demand which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of the
favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision hos been incorporated in these
Ginancial statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-11/165/2021 dated
t5 February 2022 created demand amounting Rs. 13.58 million (including 100% pemity
amounting Rs. 6.78 million) under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the 1ax period July 2019 and August
2019 on sceount of in-admissible adjustment of input tax credit. Being aggreived, the Company
filed an apperl before Cominissioner Intand Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 258.
ST/A-VY1 04 July 2022 upheld the order of DCIR. The Company has filed an appeal before
Appetlate Tribumal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR(A) which is pending
adjudication. Management is hopeful of the favorable cucome of case and accordingly, ne
provision has been incorporated in these financial statements.

The Assistant Comumissioner Inland Revenve (ACIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-11/168/480 dated
12 April 2022 crented demand amounting Rs. 14.76 million (including penalty amounting Rs.
0.70 million) under Special Procedure Withalding Rules, 2007 and Sales Tax Act, 1998 for the
tax period July 2016 and Junc 2018 on account of non-payment of witholding seles tax in
respect of purchascs. Being aggreived, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of
the favorable outcoma of case and accordingly, no provision has been Incorporated in these
financia) statements.

Commitments 2022 2021
{Rupees in (housands)

in respect of:

- Spares 13,716 3,053

~ Qutstanding letter of credits 12,171 31,508

25,887 34,561

The Company has arranged goarantecs fom different banks aggrepaling to Rs, 25 million
{2021 Rs. 25 milllon) which comprises of a guarantee from Askari Bank Limited worth Rs.15
million (secured with 100% margin) and 3 guaraniee from MCB Bank Limited worth Rs.10
miltion in favour of Director Excise and Taxavion Karachi. Bank suarantee was also given by
bank on behalf of the Company, amounting to Rs. 25,66 million (secured against 15% lien on
P/L account), In favour of Pakiswun Railways. !(Q{

¥
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Property, plant and equipment

.1

Praperty, pian: and equipment

Buildings on leasehald o (Nove £1.2)
- o8t
= surplus oi revaluation

Plant, machincry and clecirical insialtation
- cos{
= sirplus on revaluation

Furnilre, fixtures and cquipment
1T equipment

Heavy equipment for coal handling
Yehicles

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousnnds)
1L 4,695,357 4,934,690
2022
Cost / Revalued amount Depreciation Book value
As ot As at As at For the Asat Az at
1 July Additions / 30 June Rate t July year 36 June 30 June
2021 Adjustwents 022 2021 022 2022
{Rupees in thousamls)

1.475,578 - 1,475,578 5%-10% 262073 82638 344,731 1,130,847
58,849 . 58,849 5%=10% 10,463 2,969 13.432 45417
1.534,427 - 1,534,427 21536 85,627 358.163 1,176,264
4,320,337 84.838 4,405,173 5-20% 802,317 222,118 1,024,435 3,380,240
176,082 - 176,082 5.20% 32,545 9,098 41.643 134,439
4,496,419 84,338 4,581,257 §34.862 231,216 1,066.078 3515479
7,264 - 7264 10% 1735 1.274 4,009 3,288
1,108 - 1,108 30% 930 178 1,108 -
9,140 - 9,140 20% 5.598 3,542 9,140 -

6,581 - 6581 0% 3.588 2334 5922

6,054,939 84,838 4,139,776 1,126,245 324,170 1,444,420

4.6951351 g(
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2021
Cost / Revalued amount eprecialion Book value
Asal Asal Asat For the Asal As ot
{ July Additions 30 June Rale ) July year 30 June 30 June
2020 2021 2020 2021 202)
{Rupees in thousands)
Buildings on feaschold fand
~cosl 1,475,578 - 1,475,578 5%-10% 187,635 T4.438 262,073 1.213,505
- sinplus on revaluation 33,849 - 58,849 5%-10% 7.494 2,969 10,463 48,386
1,334,427 - 1,534,427 195,129 77.407 272,536 1,261,891
Plant, machinery and clectrical installation
- COs! 4,320.337 - 4,320,337 5-20% 583,83 218,486 802,317 3,518,020
= surplus on revaluatlon 176,082 - 176,082 5-20% 23,447 9,098 32,545 143,537
4,496,419 . 4496419 607,278 221584 834,862 3,601,557
Furniwre, fixtures and cquipment 1,264 - 7,264 10% 2,232 503 2,738 4,529
T equipment 1,108 - 1,108 30% 853 77 230 178
Heavy equipmem for coal handling 9,140 » 9,140 2% 4713 885 5,598 3.542
Vehicles 6,581 - 6,58) 20% 2.839 749 3,588 2,993
63054!939 - &054 i‘.139 813,044 307,205 1,120,249 4,934,690

12 The twilding and other immaveable asseis of the Company are coastrucicd on 8 land ynder Jong tenm operating lease from the Holding Company at 1skanderabad, District
Mionwali, Ponjab, Pakistan measuring §5.88 acres. '

£1.3 The foreed sale value of bullding un fease bold land Is ks 1.071.44 miltion and plant, machinory nod cleciric Inutallations Is Ry. 311 L3 F million bused on latest revaluation
report of 30 Junc 2020,

11,4 Depreciation charge for fhe year has been allocated W cost nt‘ssucg@




i2  Loug leewt loan (o Uelding Company- anscenred, coashtered yood

2022 202k
Nowe {Rupecs in thowsunds)
Long tetan tous 2.2 2,000,000 1,000,060
e 200000, 1000000

12k This copoosents conversion of balsee receivable fram Mapke Leal Conem Faclory Limiied, the Holding Composny, in licw of
slectricity sold during the cugrent and prior years (o long keam foan. On 30 June 2022, addendum 1o ngreement dated 01 June 2019
for conversion of ouisiamding briance into long lem taan vwas gigued beiwven the Comnany and 1he olding Compmmy, As per the
addendum. Ky, 1,000 siilion which wus payable from: OF Septesaber 2022 és ooty teschedubed and funther outstanding balanee
of ‘Due rom tokhing Company’ amowing 1o Rs. 1,000 million s been copvuried into 4 long iom loan The tokal Josn of Rs.
2,000 ntitlion is now reseivnble In cight equal quanery hstadments siarting frow C1 April 2024 including gince poriod of twenly-
oua msuths, This loen camics warkeup 0 3 month Kibvor plus 1% per antem, receivable quorterty. The effoctive rawe during the
yeor ranges ftom 2.15% 1p 12.95% amunlly {2021; 3,25% 10 3.59%). The mnximin dggregaic umoum ouistanding ot any wonth
ond during the yefac way Ra. 2,000 million {2021 : Rs. 3,000 milliow).

»nnr 2003

I3 Stores and spares including coul Vet {Rupecs i thonsands)
Conl 202,621 N1
Stores other thap eond 49,909 36,882
Spates 218,078 199,378
1.003¢ tools LS $73

Y K71 T, YT

130 Sparcs inclode in-iransit mnoining (o Ra, 2.6 miflion (30211 Re. | 7 miliion) ot tho yone ond.

1022 ori]
14 Adeguces Note (Rupees in thoussais)
Considered good - imsecured:
Advapces to supplicrs , 11,082 10,639
L0 105
15 Due from Molding Company « unseeured, couskiered pooil
D from eldlng Company against snle of clectrivity and Sweam 132,59 45928
Due from Holding Company foc sobu of serap . 15,300
5.4 .59, [1] &
1IN0 The maximum agerepate 2inownt ouistanding 31 any month end dusing the year was Rs. 1,193.29 million (2031 Rs 15777
million}.
aar v i ]
16 Margin ap prepayments Nare {Rujices In thousands)
Murgia agrinst:
~ bank gunronices 18,600 15,000
Prepaytnents 7 2}
15.077 Im;
17 Acermed mark-up
ProfH on brek depusits &t 131 3
Morkup on fong tenn loan W |olding Company - basecured 1.1 32,286 2L417
32417 21,492
.
A Cast sted bunk balanees
Casht in hand [5]] prl
Cusl it bank:
Cirrem aocomns g Exl)
Deposit oecouns 1) 22,360 9,541
23,668 1002

19,0 AN bolaness are pIaced under markup based aernngemetnt with conventionmd banks and ensey nilum ot 6.0% o 12.25% {2028,
4.0% 10 6.0%) pes manm

2022 202)

19 Sukesnet (Rupees in drampands)
Reveavs ftom cleelricity 4,831,550 4,660,625
Revenus from sienty 263,097 2935971
f.ose Soles tax {892.886) (720,190)

&1‘09! 4.736.3)2 § -
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2

Cost of sales

Fuel

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores and spares consumed
Repalrs and maintenance

Power and assaciated costs
Insurance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Electricity duty

Rent, rates and taxes

Qther expenses

Administrative expenses

Entertalnment

Safaries, wages and other benefits
Legal and professional charges
Poslage, tefephone and fax
Vehicle running and maintenance
Printing and stationery

Rent, rates and taxes

21.1 Legal and professional charges include following in respect of auditors' remuneration;

Annual statutory andit
Qut of pocket expenses
Taxation services

QOther income
M {1{1di %,

Profit on bonk deposits
Markup on long term loan to Holding Company

Income fron non-financiol assers

Sale of scrap
Exchange gain- nel
Misceltaneous income

2022 2021
Note {Rupces in theasands)
3,735,817 2,522,349
114 324,170 307205
90,475 87.626
65,124 28,29
29,677 15,968
9,187 10,957
10,348 11472
13,046 10,179
345 39
44,340 44.016
461 406
1,061 378
4,324,351 3,109,406
il2 382
2,220 2,812
241 2,678 2,386
190 100
212 239
323 251
285 ]
6,020 6,676
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousnnds}
750 750
75 75
G630 340
1,455 1,665 -
13.1 §,207 13N
121 104,170 197,878
221 27,711 33,155
- 3413
- 12
133.148 235,829

22.1  This includes sale of scap to the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 24.9 million (2021: Rs.

32.1 million), ,.gg

i
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Other charpes

Waskers' Profit Participation Fund
Workuss' \Welflwe Fund
lixchange loxs - met

Finance tost

literest / piarkirp o
- Short teria borrorrings
+ Bank cherges

Tasntlen

Inconss v
~ CUTTRNS yeOr
[ deferred

151 Rehtlanship between the inx expense and
accounibag profi

Profls before taxatien

‘Tax eateukned 211 mie of 20%

Tax effect 4ft

» Impecs of permanemn Jiffereness

« hivpact af cluarge in eMfective (3 mis

Refated pany Lransactioas aad balances

2/

1022

ang)

(Rupees tn thousamds}

50814 65,250
20,328 .
1178 -
XN FEN
20,439 29950
927 1,163
ihi Ig 31 II;!
38545 47.763
o.00 3e2m_
X TR
ﬂia Eﬂ ilI&T”
274439 J65.040
{235,620 (286,300}
(X271 2317
(11,0043 .
19. 115 lm

‘The Company i a wholly owned subsidacy of Maphe Leal Cument Factory Limated which is & subsidinry of Kohinoor Textile iills Limited.
Accordingly all (e sulxsidiaries and sssocinied companies of Kohisoor Texide Mills Limited are related partics of the Company. (n pddition,
the Company's ruiated parties comprises of difectors of the Corypany snd key manogement persosncl. Amoso doe from mud du to roiaced
paniics ar¢ shown under respective notes. Other sigaificant nsactions sod bolances with relvied parties exeept thase ditclosed clsewhere are

as follows:
: v 7 o0

Name of party Relaflonship Tesnsactions (Runess ia t

Mapk Leal Cement Hokiing Company Coat seczived foom §lolding Company 3819168 215930

Factory Linmieed (100% oty lickd)
Cont provided (o Holding Company 571,643 -
Sate uf eloctyicity tinclusive of soles lax) 5531,350 4.660.625
Dividend paid - 3514.000
Advance (nx deducted ws 235 - 49,70%
Payment of loom by {hoiding Company . 2,000,000
Saie of sieam (inclusive of sales 1ax) 163,097 9351
Sake of scrap (inchusive of sales 1ax) 2,174 3isie
Conversion of duc famt Holding Company to long
e Yoo 1,000,000 .
Marksp received on long ferm loah (o Holding
Compony 93,391 31578
Rent chavged by Holding Company 435 360
Pryiments suade on tw: Compony's hekalf 134307 3,544
Payment nade by tke Conmny on behalf of 1921 .

related panty

Takding Company hag provided corporste gnorantee 1o banks in relation W borroving Tacilives pravided to ihe Company a3 discloped i not
9.2 3ad 93 "Thete was 110 lcansaction with dircctors und Koy managament personnel during the year. Fonher, 00 remoneration or other beneflt
waz paid ks dircctors and key manngement persomit] during the year.
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26.1 Koy manngement personnel are (hose persons haviag natharity and responsibility for planning. directiog ood comrolling the
activities of the entity. The Comypey considers ail members of thair maargemcm wom, including Chiel Excotive Officer
and Directors ta be j1s key mansgement persontied nd these are disclosed bolaw.

Name Relationship

Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol Dicector/ Key managesact pessonnel
Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol Direcior / Key monagerent personne]
Mr. Tanfique Sayeed Saigol Dircetor / Key management personndd
Mr. Waleed Tarig Snigol Director / Key managumens personnel
Mr. Daniad Tautfique Saigol Diseclor / Key manngenient personied
M. Syed Molisin Ruza Nuqvl Direcior / Key mosagement personnel
Me. Aeif T Director / Key niamagement personnel
Me. Sohall Sadig Kay imonagement persoancl

Mr. Tarig Ahmed Mie Key monagemeut persoanct

% af sharcholding lo the Company

27 Retoncittation of movemernd of liabilites to cash flows urising froms financing activities

0.0000002%
6.0000002%
©.0000002%
€.0000002%
G.0000002%
6.0000002%
6.0000002%
N/A
N/A

2022
Isswed,
subsceibed Short t2rm
nod pid-op horrowings Fotnl
capitaf
caevwseasfRUPLES IR ROUSARYY » w e mm v s
Asat 30 Jung 2021 3,020,000 30,000 5,050,000
Short (enn borrowings paid - e - - -
Total clinnges (rom flrancing cash flows - - -
Odreg chances
Runaing finance paid - 130,000} (30,000)
Total fiability velatetl nthier changes - {30,000) {30.,000)
As0030.Jun 2023 3.020.000 - 120,000
S ——
2021
tssivedd .

: Short term Dividend Lang e .
subseribed and Tota)
prid-up capitod boevawing Payable Joan

camsssmensvann= =eaea={Rupecs in thousgnd) - - oc-=--» wmeermscssscas
As.31.30 Junc 2020 5,020,000 531513 - 32,956 5584462
Clionecs S fngucine cosh dons
Short 1em borrowings paids net . (331,313) . - (331510
J.oug term foan paid . - . (32.536) 32.956)
Dividond paid - - (3.314,000) - £3.514,000,
Tol changes from finimcing cash flows - (33).313) (3.514,000) (32938 (3.873.469)
Oty clugiees
Runing [anice paid . {170.000} - - (70,0000
Markup sxpense - - - . -
Dividend declnred - 3,314,000 351,000
Total lisbithy related other changes - {170,000} 3.514,000 B 3.344,000

0202 5,020,000 30.000 . -

5.050.000 @ :
ey



Financial risk moanagement
The Company hag exposure 10 the following risks arising from financial instrumenss:

- credit risk
« liquidity risk
- mavket risk

This note presents information aboul the Company's exposure to cach of the above risks, the Compuny's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of
capital.

Risk managemeiit firamework

The Company’s Baard of Directors {*the Board™) has overafl responsibility for csmblishment and oversight
of the Company's risk management framewore The Board has developed a risk policy that sets owt
furdamentals of risk management framework.

The Company's risk management policies are esiablished 1o identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, o set appropriate risk linits and controls, and to menitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
managemens policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activilies. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand iheir roles
and obligations.

The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way thess risks affect the financial position and
performance, and forecast ransactions of the Company and the mzanner in which such risks are managed is
as follows:

28.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is ihe risk of financial loss to the Company if a cusiomer or counterparty to » financial
instrumens fails to mest its contrsciual obligations. To manage credil risk the Company maimains
procedures covering the appiication for credit approvals, granting and renewal of counterparty
limits and monitoring of expusurcs against thess limits. As part of these processes the financial
viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed. '

28.1.1  Expaosure ¢o credit risk

The carrying amount of {inancial assets represents the maximun credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at the ond of the reporiing period was as follows:

1022 2021
Note {Rupecs in thousands)

I to] assels wprtized

Accrued mark-up 17 32417 21492
Due from the Holding Company 15 132,595 61,225
Bank balances 8 23,067 10,461
Long term Joan to Holding Company 12 2,000,000 1,000,000
Margin against bank guarantee 16 15,000 15,000

2,203,080 1108178

&&\



8.402

2022 021
{RRupees Iy thousands}
Holding Company 2,164,882 1.082.642
Banking companics 38,198 25,336
203050, __LICR178
2813 Credit quality aad impairnient
Credit quality of fieneind avscts is ossessed by referonce 10 extomal credit ratings, where available. or to
hikstorkenl informenion sbow countcrparty delanh rues. AH cowsterportics, including Holding Company. by
externid credi ratings determined by various credit ruting agencies. Crodit quality of customers is assessed by
reference to historien] defnulis roles and prosont ages.
Connterpariics with external credit ratings
"These includo banking companics nad financial institutions, which ure counterparties to bank bolances, mesgin
against bank guarsiees and accrwed returs on depoclts. Credit risk is considercel minfmal us these counlemparties
have reasonably high eredit cuings us detcsmived by varfous credit rating ogencios. Due (o long stnxding
business relmionships with these counlerparties and considering their swong financiol standing, moagement
docs 1ot experd non-performones by these counterparties o Lheir obligations to the Campuny. Following are the
eredit rafings of counterpartics with exiemal crodit satings:
Rating Ratiug 2022 2021
Shorl ferm  Long fexm apency {Rupees in thousands)
Dash Inlapces
AsBari Bank Limiled Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,299 421
Bank of Punjob Al+ AN PACRA 2,637 404
MCS Book Limiced Al AAA PACRA 1426 1.554
MCB tslomic Bank Limited Al A PACRA hiod 7
National Brnk of Pakistan Limited At+ AAA PACRA 11,032 7305
23,198 10461
Margin against hank goaraniee
Askuri Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 15,000 15.000
Margin agaiest Letter of Credits
MCH Istamic Baok Limited Al A PACRA - -
18,198 23461
Holding Comnany
Muple Leaf Cempent Faclory Limited A=l A vIS 2,164,882 1,082,612
8.2 Liquidity risk

Concentration of eredis risk

The Campuny idemtilles conceuration of eradfl risk by seferonce to iype of eounier party, Maximunt exposure (o
credit risk by type of counterparty is oy follows:

1.iquidicy riak i tha risk that the Company will encountes difficully in inecting he obligniions assockied with »s
finonsind liabilitios that nee settlcd by dulivering cuch o another (inanciul asset, or thal such cbligmions will have
10 be scitled in & manner unfavorable 10 e Company. The Coinpany finances its apetations trough cquity nad
working cnpital with 8 view to maintaining an appropeisie mix between various sources of finaace (o minimize
rigk.

Ullimate responsibility for liguidity risk manageivent rests with the Bourd of Directors, which Jms built se
approprime liguidity risk msnegement framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium ad
Jong-term funding and liguicity nanagement reguirements. The Compiy monnges liquidity cisk by maimuoining
adequate roserves, banking facilities ond reserve borrowing fixcililics, by continuously manitoriug forceast and
sciunl cash Mlows und malching tho nusurily profiics of financia) asscts and linbilities. Included in note & of these
finmtcial siemments ace Gaciliiics that e Company has 8 his disposal to flrther reduce lquidity risk.

“(&
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28.3.1{n)

Exposurs to Uquidity risk
Contractual inatarsitles of finnncial Rabitities, einding vsiinased luserest payreents

The following are the remaining controctual moturitios a1 the reparting dae. The amounts are grossed and
undiscounted, and include cstimated imerest paymients and oxchide the impnet of reiting sgresmony.

11741
Carrying Contrnetual  One yearor Onpeto three
tmount cush Mows foss yeres
Noi ivativg fimwmclol flabilifes ™ = ---vceemsenacaan (Rupees in thousanis) eseoeovaonan
Trade and other payables 43,938 3,958 63,938 -
43,938 63,233 63.938 -
2024
Comrying Contractual Oneycaror  Onetathiee
amount cnsh Mows less years
dlodortuative fancial iahifides cemerenenans s = (RUD0NS 10 thousands) - -~ - = w0 0e
“Trede und othes payables 32,09 32.0% 0% 0 .
Shon temm borrowings 39.000 30,000 30,000 -
Accrucd wark-np 624 624 624 .
62,720 62,720 (2,720 -

Market risk

Muskot risk is the risk that clinnges i market priccs, such as foreign exchonge raics, interest mies and equity
prices will affect the Compoay’s income oc the value of fis haldings of financial instruments. The objective of
warket risk managoment i o manage mmd control nasket risk exposures within accopinble paranwters, white
optimizing requrm.

Curraney rvisik

The Company is cxposed to corency fisk 1o the exient Uint there is & misinatch berween e currencics i which
advnaces, sales ood pucchases and bank balsaces wre denoninpied ani the respeetive fimetional currency of the
Company, The fanctionn currency of the Company is Pak Rupee, The comrencey in which the majar puechase
transactions are primarily denominated i US dodlars.

Exposure to crerency risk

The smmmasized quinititdive datn abowt the Company’s exposure 10 cugrency risk a5 reporied (0 Uk smanagement
of the Company is as follaws. The figtes represem foreign currency balances after convorsion in Pok Rupees
using exchonge rates provadling ot the statement of (intmciol position date,

02
usD B Rupees
[uauclat fighilides =00 ewe=ev - «{Antonal in thousands}c - o v o -
Trade and other poyables 24) {16) {5,464)
Net stetement of financlel poxition expasure 24) {16} (5.464)
nanciol
Ouwstanding feuiers of credi {59} - {12,174
Net expasure {83) 16) (17,638)

\a
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28.3.1(¢)

B

usn RMB Rupees
-------- (Amount int thousondsy - -~ - -« =«
y ! Hesbifi

Trade and other L)) {28) (1704}
Ner stateasesyt of flnemeial position expasure {6} {28) {1.70d)
Ol sparement of Anemciol posiics items
Qunstanling letters of credit {200} - (31,508)
Net exposure (206) 28) {33.212}
Exchange rates applled during the year

The lallowing significan! exchange mies kave bewn applied during the yoar,

2022 1022 2021 2021
USD RAMB Usp RMB
Reporting date spol rie
- selling 20850 Jo.33 15754 2439
Avarng rale for the year 178.01 2757 1459.50 2430
Seasitlvity analpsiy

A rensonobly possible sirengiliening 7 (weakenlng) of 19% in Prk Rupee agoiast the following corencios would
fimee uliectod the mensurement of fnanciol istruments denominated in (orsigs currency end affocied stolemen
of profit or loss by the amounts shown below: al the siatement of financial position date. The analysis assumcs
ek sl other vociables, in pastfoulor iticrest rmics. rensin consimat and Jgnores nny impact of fvecan pirchascs,

Deerexss in profit due to
ineresse in exchanpe rale at
the ysar end
022 0
{Rupees In thousands)

usD (193) 95
RMB (49) 68)

These will Bave opposiie effect on peofit on reduction in exchange rate of the year cod,

Carrency rish managoment

Siteo the nrecimn amouni exposed 1o currency risk is 0.07% (2021: G.03%) of the Compaay’s totn] asscty, ony
addversa / favorobla movement in octional currency with respeey 1o US Dollar and RMB will not hove any
maierinl impact on the opgrationnt results.

inlerest rate risk

Tarerest rate risk ig the risk 1o [air values or Riire cash flows of n fnmmcinl instrament witl Quctunto beconsa of
chonges in inlerest mics. Sensitivity to interest raie risk mrises from mismntch of Aeancind assets end Tnoncind

liobilitics Wl matvre oF fe-price in o givest perfod. @a

i



28.3.2(0)

28.3.2(6)

28.3.2(c)

28.3.3

Fixad rate financiel insicaments

The effective interest / maskop rates for interess 7 markp beating lnoncial instroments are mentioned in
relevant nates (o the (noncial sttemens,

“The Compnay does nol account for any fixed ride Ninancial asscls i Habilities ot fuir vnkoe theough statement
of profit or lass. Therefore, a change in nark-up 7 interest rates i the reporting dote would pot affect stasement
of profit o¢ loss.

£ Y 1o
2022 2021
Fheancial Financial Einanciol Finoneial
assels liabililes #iscis Hiabditics
‘ (Rapees in thousand) {Rupees in thousand)
Now-derfvtive fismcial :
Long term loan to Holding Compmey 2,000,000 - 1.000.000 .
Short term borrowings - - . 30,400
Bank bulonce 2360 - 2.941 -
2.0% - 1,009,941 30,000

Y jabl i

A rensonnbly possible chiange of 100 basis poims in interest raics 3 tho reporting dase would have (decreased) /
increased profit by nmounws shown balow. The malysis assumes that off oiber vaniables, in paniculos foreign
exchange roles, remain constond,

W02 200t
{Rupees i thousands)
Lucrouse ol 104 bagls pelurg
Variabla rate insiromems 20,224 9.799
5¢ 2 1uts
Vaorkable rie insinsmanis (20224, £9.799)

‘T sensitivity analysis prepared is nor necessarily indicalive of the effects on profit for the vesr and tw
outstonding linbilitics ol the Company ut the yoor end,

Interest rate risk imanogement

The Company manages thess mismatches throuph risk management strategics where significset changes in gap
position con be adjusied. The Company’s significant borrawings sre bosed on vasiable pate pricing that is moshy
dependent on Karachs Inter Bank Offer Role {"KIBOR™) as indicnied in respoctive notes,

Peice riske

Prics risk eepresenty the risk that the (ir valus or Anure cash flows of finnucial innroment will Auctuite hecnuse
of chonges in market prices, oiher 1han those arising from interest sate risk or curmency risk. whether those
changes are coused by fetors spocilie to the Individual Tinanciod instrumens or I issher, or fackors affecting oll
similar finncial stnanents. The Compony s currently nol exposed 10 price risk.
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Finawci inscouments-fuie vulues
Fair valiee i 16 price that wonld be recuived 1o selfl an assea of paid to temister » Jiability i an orderly irastsaction between niardiel participiants ot the messurcent dale,
Underlying the delinlion of Tafr value is the presumpiion that the Company is a going conccrs ond there 1s 10 anention or requircment W eurtail macorially the scake of"its aperations or (o wdertako & wwansaction
o adverse (erms.
A fuanciol inginusent is regasded as quoted i an active market if quoted prices are readily aud reguiarly availobie from os exchiange denter, broker, industry group, gnicing service, of repuluosy agency, and
those prices represeal acal sud segulacly oceusring markel Irnsactions on an anw's iength basis.
RS 13 Faic Value Measurement roquires the Company (0 classity fiie value measarcments and fair value hicrarchy thas roflcots thie significance of the inputs used in making the Ricasuroucms af fir value
hicrarchy hug the following levels:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscls or lisbilitics (iovel V)

Ingwuits other than qroted prices included within evel | dat are obsesvable for the assel cither directly {that is, devived from prices) (Levd 2)

Enpmis for the asscr o Liability thot are tot based on observable market daia (s is, uaadjusied) inputs (Lovel 3}

Transfor boiwees levels of the fair valuc hicsarchy oru recognized ot the end of the veporting period during which tlc changes hnve occarrcd,

Carrying Amonnt Falr Vatue
Financizl Otlier finuncial Total Level { Ltvel2 Leveld
nyscrs Ut linbilities nt
amoriisd cost  amordsed cost
Qu-statement of fiunaciul positiou finuncinl instruments Nowe {Rupces lu thousands)
Fluanciul ussets measurcd at fair value -
Elugnclaf easts qot srencured af filr valas
Acerucd mark-up 32,417 - 32417
Cash an¢ bank balwces 23,668 . 33,668
Dug fort the 1iolding Company 132,596 - 132,596
Loug termt boan 1o Holding Compuny 2000000 . 2.000.900
Margia against baok guaraotes 15,000 - 15000
2.1 2,203,681 - 2,21 1

Fiuancial Hubitities measuved at Gair vaiue

“Feonde aud othet payables - 53938 63938

2.4 - 63.938 $3.938 - - . W



Oa-statcoent of fimanclal position Finenciné insivements
3¢ dunc 202(

Finnncinl assets measuced o fair vake

Acenied mark-up

Cash aad bank balunces

Do from the [ ialbing Company

Lang wenn Joan to Holding Compony

Margin against bank guarucs

Finwncial Habilitics measured a1 [air vilue

Trude ond olhcr payables
Short Lo borrowing
Accrucd mark-up

i

2.1

Caorrying Awount Foie Vialue
Fisonclal assel  Othor financiol Taial favd ) Level 2 Level 3
a amortised linbiligics at
cost mortiscd cost
{Rupecs in thousaods)
21,492 - 25,492 . - .
11,002 . 11,002 - . .
61,228 - 61,223 - - .
1,000,000 . 1.000.000
{5,000 - 15,000 - . .
1,108,719 - 1,108,719 - . .
- 320% 32,090 . - -
- 30.000 30800 - . .
- 624 24
- 63.710 02,720 - - .

290 The Company has ol disclosd the Rl vilues of Uese fiancial wssets and Habiliics as these aro foc ghort tera or roprise aver short ke Therefure, their carrylng smigunis anv reasouable

approximation of fair value,

29.2  Buildings on leaschold fand, plait, nuachinery and chectrical insiallaions kave been canricd @ revalucd wnounts detsanined by professional valucrs (level 3 measurement) based on their assessinca ol
the market values as disclosed iy nots 6. Tha volustions uns caaducicd by the valuation cxpen appoinied by thie Compuny. The valuation expent used a skt based approach (o arvive ol s Lair valug of
the Company's propenics. For tovalention of bulldiugs on leashold kaid, construction specificatipns were noved v ench building and streciuga and new coustruction rates are applind according (o
constswction spicifications Rt curro repluccmnan values. After determining cucran seplacement vadues, deprociation was aileulnted to determsing i current usiesscd maskig valie, For ravaluation of
plaut aud machincry and electrical instadlatious, supplicrs and diffesent moaniaciaring consultonts in Pakistan and sbroad were condacted to coliect infomintion regarding cwrront prices of compactble
poer pladl 10 deteoming current replacciment value, Fale dopeeciation Gacior fos cuck item is applicd according (o Wheir pliysical condition, usage sad nwinteasnce. The offet of changes in the
umobscrvable inpuis usea in tho valuations cannol be dewermined with cartsinty. accordiagly a qualiwtive disclospre of sensitivity s not beeu preseatd i these fuoucinl statemaents.

g
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Capital manngement

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, credilor and
market confidence and 1o sustain the fiure dowelopment of its business. The Board of Directors
monitors the relurn on capitat smployed, which the Company defines as operating income divided by
1otal capital employed.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

- to safeguard the entity’s ability 10 continue as a going concern. so that it can continue lo
provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. :

The Company manages tee capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.

There wese no changes in the Company’s approach Lo capital management during the year.

Impact of COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)

The pandemic of COVID-19 that hes rapidly spread all across the world has nol anly endangered
human lives but has also adversely impacied the global economy, However, afler implementing all the
necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs} 10 ensure safety of employees, the Compeny
continued [o carry out s operations and has taken all necessary steps (o ensure smooath and adequate
continvation of its business. Management is actively monitoring the impact of the pandemic on its
financial condition, liquidity, operations and workforco, which at this point is not considered to be
significanl. Mnnagement befieves that the Company hss sufficlent liquidity available to continue 10
meet its financio! commitments for the (oreseeablas future when they become due. From the very owset
of Covid-19, the management has adopted various policies and practices to minimizs adverse impaci of
Covid-19 on the buginess and is continuously monitoring the situation in order to proactively address
any chellenges which may arise from Covid-19.

Remuncration of chief exceutive, directors and exccutives

The aggregate amount charged in the Anancial siatements for the year in respect of remuneration,
ineluding all benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company is ns follows:

2022

Directors
Chiof Exceutive Non-Executive
{Rupces in thousands)

Executives

Managerial remuncration - - 15,328
Perquisites and olher benefils - - 8,788

- - 24,616
Nuinber of persons jis at ysar end 1 6 8

o

&



2021

Directors Exccutives
Chief Executive  Non-Exccutive
- (Rupees tn thousands) «weee- -
Managerial remuncration - - 13.976
Perquisites and other benefits - - 7,866
- - 2i,842
Number of persons as at year end l 6 6
No remuneration is paid o chief exceutive and directars of the Company,
33 Capacity and production
Capacity Actusd Production
2022 202] 2022 2021
Wi MWh.
Con! fived power plant 316,800 316,800 265,494 302,017
The normal capacity has been determined on the basis of 330 production days keeping in view the
maintenance schedule of the plant. Lower production of power plant is due {o the lower number of
production days.
34  Number of employees
The total average number of employees during the year and as at reporting dato are as follows:
2022 2021
Number of smployees as at 30 June 59 59
Average number of emplayees during the yenr 58 60
35 Date of authorization of issee
These financial statements were auhorized for Issue on 3 /—e8 “%z’l’by the Beard of
Directors of the Company,@
&
Lahiore Di L . e
~hector . Chief Executive.
Certified Truge Copy
For Maple l.eaf Power Limited

’\.—
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Vi,
pany Secsetery



'

Jslamic

EXTENSION NQ. 4
FACILITY ADVISING LETTER

Ref: FRCD/FAL/2021/734
Dated: December 02, 2021

The Chief Financial Officer,

M/s MAPLE LiAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITRD
42- Lawrence Road,

Lahore.

Dear Sir/Madam,

This is with reference to MCB Islamic Bank Limited {the “Bank”), Faéllity Adylising Letter FRCD/2018/FAL/883 dated April
13, 2018 ("FAL") and the following finance facilities availed by you.

FINANCE FACILITIES AVAILED:
1. Diminishing Musharkah ] Diminighing Musharkah (SL8)-Already Disbursed
2. Diminishing Musharkah-lli Diminishing Musharkah (SLB)-ll
3. LC Sight (F) For The import of PAM of sclar power project only)

The Bank would like to inform you that the Bank has decided to extend your finance facilities from 01-December-2021 till
31-December-2021 (Extended Period).

SECURITIES, COLLATERAL & TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. Please note that this document is being signed for a period of 01 month(s) within which period the Bank shall issue
fresh facility advising letter and the parties shall execute fresh Agreements for the finance facilities.

2. Please note that securities, collateral & any and all terms and conditions as per the FAL and all other
Agreements/documents executed between the parties shall remain unchanged and applicable for the Extended
Period.

3. If you agree with the above terms and conditions, please return the duplicate copy of this Extension to the FAL duly
signed as a token of your acceptance of alt the terms and conditions. In case your acceptance / non-acceptance does
not reach this office within seven (07) days from the date hereof, it shail be deemed that the terms and conditions
are acceptable to you.

4. This Extension to the FAL upon its acceptance shail form an integral part of the above referred FAL.

For MCB Islamic Bank Limited For MCB Isiathic Bank Limited
Unit Head ~ FRCD Unit Head Financing
ol
Accepted “
For & on behalf of

er\/\\b\r\ S+ I

Risk Management Gfoup
60-T, Phase I, D.H.A,, Lahore (Pakistan)
@ www.mcbislamicbank.com . +92-42-34501000

MCB Islamic Bank Ltd.



MCB Islamic¢ Bank Ltd.

Islamic

FRCD/2021/FAL/558
Date: Aug 31, 2021

The Chief Executive,

M/S Maple leaf Power Limited
42-Lawrence Road

Lahore,

Dear Sir,

ADDENDUM FACILITY ADVISING LETTER
With reference to your request regarding addition of financing facilities, we are pleased to advise you that the
following financing facilities have been approved by the competent authority subject to the terms and conditions
detailed below:

Nature & Amount of Limit(s):

~ Facility: Bank Guarantee

Purpose: For the issuance of Performance guarantee in favour of Pak Railways and allied
‘ departments
Tenor: 2 years
Service Charges: 0.20% p.q.
1.¢] PKR 26.0M Cash Margin: 20% / SOP {whichever is higher)
Security:
20% cash margin,
JPP over current assets of the company with 25% margin ©
JPP over fixed assets of the company with 25% margin - #
Repayment arrangement: Upon redemption of originat guarantee instrument.
Facility: SLC fereign under Wakala ~One Off
Status: One off-Fresh
Purpose: To establish services LC's for maintenance of the plant
Margin: Nil/ SBP {whichever is higher)
Service Charges: 0.05% p.q.

Security:

Lien aver import titie documents.

JPP over current assels of the company with 25% margin
” JPP over fixed assets of the company with 25% margin
Repayment arrangement: Through own sources.

‘V‘.

+ Conditions: i
«—-» ¢ Processing fee @ PKR 100,000 {excluding FED)
’ ¢ The company will maintain an average balance of PKR 5-10 Mn in account maintained with MC8 Islamic
Bank limited, any shortfall during the month will be compensated with month end balance.
All other terms and conditions as per earlier offer letter Ref: FRCD/2020/FAL/814 Dated: October LS, 220 will
remain unchanged.

Risk Management Group -
60-T, Phase |1, D.H.A, Lahore {Pakistan)
@ www.mcbislamicbank.com e +92-42-34501000




MCB Islamic Bank Ltd.

Islamic

We trust that the above facilities fulfil your requirements and hope to continue this prosperous relationship with
you.

Yours faithfully

\@% ' .
For and on Behalf cRMCD Istamic Bore Lol
Relatlonship Manage

\
i " o W L
a For crd ch Behalf of
FA/5 Manle leaf Power Limited

/‘
Fer and en Schalf of MCB Islamic Bank Ltd
Unit Head Financing Rigk Control

Page2of2

Financing Risk Control Division
59-T, Phase |, DHA, Lahore
@ www.mcbislamicbank.com % +92-42-34501000



MCOB Islamic Bank |ed.

Ref. FRCD. 2020 FAL 814

Dated: Qctober 0527 2020

The Chief Executive,
M/S MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore.

Dear Sir,

Re: Facility Advising Letter for (M/s MAP

We are pleased to advise that the following Financing Limit(s) has/have been made available for M:5 MAPLE
. LEAF POWER LIMITED (the “Customer™), as approved by the competent authority till 31% August 2021 on the
‘ terms and conditions as contained herein and/or in accompanying documentslegal sgreements

Sr.No | Amount ; Facliity Structure
T Rs400.00M Facility: LC < ght-Foreign
| D &= waval renewal ,
Purpose: To facilitate procurement of raw material ilems including furnace oil. diesel. coal siores! sparts
& light machinery for he power plant only. TBML sheel will be atiached in approval emaii 15r exact detais
f Margin: Nit / SBP whichever is higher) !
: ! Service Charges: 0 05% p.q (flat)
' i Tenure: At sight
| Security: Lien over impor file documents.
! Repayment Arrangement: Through own sources and / of from import Muratana e
: . -~} Note: Shipping Guarantee can be allowed lor specific request ty chient for a spechc shinmgnl
i ! import LC against 110% cash margin of the valus of presanied docs
f*al *  [Rs1000CM) Facllity: LC Sight-Local
: Status: Annual renewal
! ’ Purpose: To facilitate local procurement of raw material items including furnace off. diesel, coal, stores:
! spares & light machinery for the power plant only. TBML sheet will be attached in asprova: eman ior exas?
details. f
| = Margin: 25% / SBP (whichever is higher) :
ﬁ ! Service Charges: 0.05% p.q {flat} :
|

!
i
i
1
|

Tenure: Al sight !

Security: :
¢ Runking charge over CA of the company with 25% margin {i.e Rs.134M:

Repayment Arrangement: Through own sources and / or from Murabaha line

Note: Shipping Guarantee can ba allowsd lor specific reques! by chianl I2e 3 spepite shipments o

LC aqainst 110% cash margin of the value of presentad docs.

"y [Rs.250.00M! Facility: Murabaha - Import

Status: Annual renewal

Purpose; For retirement of documents drawn under fine & 1 :

Margin: 25% / SBP (whichever is higher) !

1
| «  Lian over tile documents
)

'

! Pricing: RTK+0.80% p.a

: Tenure: 120 days

. Security: .
‘ i e JPP charge over CAs of the company Lo the tune of Rs 487X, RN N
! i »  JPP charge over Fixed assels of Ihe company with 25%; margin N
: : e Repayment Arrangement: Thiough company own sources_ / . i #}E -0
e} . [Rs.100.00M] [ Facility: Murabaha - Local o TUETINES )
| ! Status: Annual renews! o e Y
! ; Purpose: For retirement of documents drawn under line # 1. xRk -4\0‘\ P
: : . Margin: 25% / SBP {whichever is higher) N e WY ds ‘.“\
; Pricing: RTK+0.90% p 3 A DRI o~
: : Tenure: 120 days . )

| Tonwre: 120days i D -/

Risk Management Group Blapie i 3hr A siRakislan
00 fovye Dnole . R !



{1 b [Rs 100.00M) Facility: Mushasakah Running Finance A :
Status: Annual renewal MOB Istamic Bank 1jtd.
Putpose: To mee! working capital requirements of the company.

- Margin: 25%/ SBP (whichever is highar)

¢ Pricing: RTK+ 1.00% p.3

i Tenure: 1 year 1
Security: As perline # [1.b]. |
Repayment Arrangement: Through company own sources B
Total Rs.400.00M i Collateral (Covering Entire Exposure): Cross-corporate guarantee of Mis Mapie Leaf Cement Factory

i Limited, :

Note: A processing fee of 0.124% (excluding F.£.D) of total limits offered will be submitted in
favor of MIB prior to utilization of facility communicated above

Special Terms & conditions:

»  All above facilities are subject to clean CIB report.

o For renewal/structuring /processing of facilities fee will be charged as per MIB SOBC

*  All drawdowns/issuance shall be subject to mutually agreed Shariah process flow and

~ compliance of FAL terms and conditions.

* Board Resolution for obtaining financing facilities from -MI1B- to be provided betore
disbursement.

¢ Document under LC should be retired on first presentation by the borrower from their own
source.in nom case should any forced facility allowed.

* (oods being imported must be as per Government policy and Sharial clearance also if
commodities fall under new Govt Policy list of 100% cash margin commodities then margin
will provided accordingly and in case of conventional insurance. Shariah clearance to be
held on record.

¢ Valid Performa invoice should be provided before establishment of LC. Satisfactory credit
report on beneficiary will be obtained before opening of LC.

» If there are any over dues in PAD, no further LC should be opened despite availability of
cushion in the approved LC limit. In case of Outstanding PAD the LC (sight) limit will be
reduced accordingly.

* Eachtransaction under clubbed lines must be liquidated by internal cash flows of the concern
& not by drawing upon cushion available in the other line.

s Tacility are available after completion of all formalities

~ » Bank has the authority to debit our account for recovery of profil.. stamp form issuance
charges, prepayment penalties & other charges etc. if any as per listed schedule of charges,
All late payments charges shall be as per agreements.

¢

taei

. . * Detailed as per BBFS format prescribed by bank should be provided at least once in a vear

and whenever any changes in ownership, key management or credit rating or substantial
changes in financing arrangement with other bank/IIs changes in details of associated units
takes into account.
o All requisite charge forms to be submitted, duly filled in {electronic / hard form) and signed
by the authorized persons.
»  All security / finance documents should be completed in all respect before allowing any
disbursement.
+ _In no case withdrawal will be allowed in excess of the approved limit. By accepting this
'\, = Facility Ady ising Letter you undertake that no preferential treatment shall be given 1o any
PP o financial institution / bank with regard to nature of security. ranking, margin etc in charge
/ ~7 4 0 Ell'ld insurance coverage.
% w 'zf.' Tle  Facilities are approved subject o no regulatory breach, compliance to PRs, Bank Policy ete
&wf;omplinncc of SBP PRs, Forex regulations, Financing Policy, Shariah Guidelines and
/ M~ Structions of other regulatory authorities must be complied with. " ‘

Risk Management Group : /411 f-tiie ] (THA iPakastar)
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MCOB Islamic Runk Ltd.

The customer agrees 10 keep the contents of this letter strictly confidential and not 1o disclose
the terms and conditions contained herein 10 external parties, to any person other than the

Directors, employees, accountants. attorneys and other advisors, only on a “need to know™
basis.

s In case of delay in payment, charity amount to be charged as per Agreements: Shariah
directives which will be utilized for charitable purpose approved by the Bank's Sharia
Board.

Covenants

*  Any change in ownership/strategic control during tenancy of Banks financing shail require
bank’s prior clearance.

o The customer shall ensure that financial ratios do not fall below the requirement under
Prudential Regulations or as may be specified / subsequently specified by the Bank.

"« While declaring any cash dividend / profit distribution there should be no bank dues in
arrears or prior NOC should be in place,

¢ The Customer shall not, without prior written consent of the Bank, amend and! vr alter any
of the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association / other constitutive
documents The Customer shall also inform the Bank in writing and immediately, of any
plans to change its shareholding steucture/directorship/partnership. In the event the Bank
thereafter concludes that such a change may impair the Customer’s credit standing. the Bank
reserves the right to require the Customer to effect prepayment of the facitity facilities,
including all accrued profit, and all other charges applicable thereon.

»  The Customer shall nol, without the prior written consent of the Bank. undertake any action

and/or omission that may resull in any encumbrances being created on or against the
securities / collateral or any of them provided to the Bank whereby the securities / collateral
available with the Bank are or may in any way become adversely attected.

Other Terms & Condition(s)

-

The Bank reserves the right to add, amend or alter any condition (except those. which are
prohibited by the regulator and Shari*ah Board) at its discretion.

“The facilities granted are subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s Prudential Regulation /
restrictions and Financing Policies as may be imposed from time to time. These facilities are
being offered with the understanding that the Customer/ company’s {inancial condition will
comply with these regulations and cther regulatory requirements as well, the compliance of
which depends on the Customer’s actions / performance.”

Audited accounts should be submitted to the Bank within four (4) months trom the date of
financial year end. Whereas half yearly accounts should be submitted within two (2) months.
In both cases it shall be submitted to the Bank within 7 days of its tinalization. Anv further
break up /details or  interim / in-house report required by Bank to he provided immediately,
Details of liability (fund bascd & non-fund / contingent} towards our Bank or other lenders

‘ shall be appropriately reflected in Annual A/Cs of the concern & / or note forming its integral
» :J 3;7{"\\\3 /7/’part. in appropriate manncr with name of the Bank(s)/lenders reflected therein.
!

e All levies and taxes now or at any (ime hereafler levied and payable in respect ol the financial

. accommodation and banking facilities ser out in this letter will be exclusively borne by the

ustomer.
All requisite charge forms 1o be submitted, duly fitled in and signed by the awhorized
persons. Security held by Bank against one limit, at Bank's own discretion, shall be availabl .

Risk Management SO et CLahore (Pakistan)
%o 0 ‘




MCOCB Islamic Bank Ltd.

¢ During the tenancy of the Bank’s exposure or financing arrangement, for any change in
dircetorship - prior consent in writing must be obtained from the Bank. Otherwise the Bank
shall have the right to recall the Financing / exposure / financing arrangement immediately.

¢ Facilities shall not be allowed in excess of approved limits.

+  The Customer agrees 1o keep the contents of this letter strictly confidential and not to
disclose the terms contained herein to any other person or financial institution except as may
be required by law.

¢ In case the Customer has obtained any loan from Directors, Subsidiaries or Affiliates, it shall
be the respansibility of the Customer to ensure that the Directors, Subsidiaries and Affiliates
shall execute a Subordination Agreement as required by the Bank.

* By executing and accepling this letter, the Customer hereby irrevocably and unconditionallv
undertakes 10 keep the Bank indemnified for and all losses which the Bank may incur or
sulfered in this regard.

* The Customer shall pay to the Bank all amounts due on their due date. Any indebtedness
which is not paid when due shall, inter alia, constitute an event of default and the Bank will
be entitled to cancel the facility and exercise its right under the law for recovery of all or any
such outstanding amounts as determined by the Bank.

s The customer undertakes that all the information submitted to the Bank w.rt the
company/directors/associated concemns etc. is accurate. The Bank reserves the right to
terminate financing/take legal action if any false/misleading information was knowingly
passed on or necessary facts were deliberately concealed by the customer with the intention
of sabotaging the process of customer due diligence.

¢ The customer undertakes to utilize the disbursed amount strictly as per the stated
purpose/requirement. The Bank reserves the right to terminate financing/take legal action if
funds are found misappropriated and/or used for a cause contrary to the purpose/requirement
of the financing facility approved by the Bank. Further, by executingfaccepting this letter,
the customer undertakes that he/shefit shall in no way be associated with activities that
involve or are reminiscent of Money Laundering and/or Financing of Terrorism (ML/FT).
Strict action, as

s per regulatory instructions/internal policies, and law shall be taken against any such
suspicious activity identified by the Bank.

o Base rate is defined as simple average (average of the KIBOR rates guoted by banks for that
day) of three month Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate ("KIBOR) prevailing on the Base Rate
sclling date.

‘s The Base Rate will be set on the first day of every month, The “KIBOR" rates used for
reference will be taken from Reuters page “KIBOR?”, as published at 11.30 a.m. Pakistan
Standard Time by the Financial Markets Association (FMA). In the event that this rate is
not published on Reuters on the rate fixing date or if less than 8 banks provide their rates for
the KIBOR fixing, the FMA or other relevant market body will be contacted for the relevant
fixing rate.

In the normal course the Customer may rely upon the abave facility till 313 August 2021 but

please note that in accordance with normal banking practice, the facility is repayable on demand
and the Bank reserves the right to vary the terms and condition and/or ask for immediate
repayment and/or terminate the facility if circug ;
doing so.

Risk Management Group : L0 T, Fhoe




MCB Islamic Baak Lfd.

If the Customer agrees with the terms and conditions of this Facility Advising Letrer, please return
the duplicate copy with each page duly signed as token of your acceptance of the afarementioned
terms and conditions within {5 days from the date hereof.

onu_rs faighfully t st

./
‘ MPRL Head FRC Relalionship Manag

Q,_, 9#;3‘# 43)74/ X

A

Cus[omu ’
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3.21. In case financial performance of the company based on latest annual accounts to be submitted to the
bank, shows deteriorating financial condition, the bank would have right to review/reduce the credit lines
accordingly.

3.22. Customer hereby undertakes that it will pay commission upto 2% to the extent of shortfall in their
business as per commitment. (For LC's LG's)

3.23. The Client further undertakes and ensure to utilize the facllity (tes) strictly for the purposes for which the
Client has requested and also under the terms of approval of the Bank. The Client further unconditionally
undertakes that if the facility (ies) are used for any other purpose(s) other than approved, or are deviated by
the Client in any manner whatsoever, for which the Bank shall be the sole judge, the Bank shall be at liberty to
proceed in the manner the Bank considers appropriate, including but not limited to forthwith cancel/suspend
the facility (ies) and the Client shall be responsible for any consequences thereof,

Please note that the contents of this Banking facilities letter states some of the indicative terms and conditions
on the basis of which the facility/ facilities requested by the Client wili be granted. However, the Bank reserves
the right to, without prior notice, modify or cancel the terms and conditions upon which the facilities shall be
granted or to revoke the entire indicative terms and conditions to grant the facility itself, and nothing
contained in this letter should be construed as a legally binding commitment on the part of the Bank to grant
the requested facility/ facilities,

Kindly confirm your agreement and acceptance of the aforementioned terms and conditions by signing and
affixing your Company’s stamp on the duplicate of this letter and thereafter return the same to the Bank for its
record,

We trust that the above shall be to your satisfaction.

Yours sincerely,
For Askari Bank Ltd

P s

For and on behalf of M/s Maple Leaf Power Limited

%,J\a(-:)!)“',{——-‘.

o

The C Sth@airees to the above terms and conditions pursuant to a Resolution of the Board of

Directors to this effett

Ux

cnic: 35282 24T A3 CNIC #
. 2, Lwdenitl oL dress:

Askarlbank Limited, Regional Credit Administration Department, (RCAD) Lahore,
3rd Floor, 47-Bank Square, The Mall, Lahore - Pakistan, PABX: + 92 42 37229745.7,
SWIFT: ASCMPKKA, URL: www.askaribank.com.pk
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M/s Maple Leaf Power Limited 21/ceuUL/636

42-Lawrence Road June 04, 2021

Lahore

Subject: BANKING FACILITIES

Dear Sir,

With reference to your request letter dated _, we Askari Bank Limited (hereafter refer

to as “Bank”) are pieased to inform you that the Bank has, in principle, approved the following in favor of you,
M/s Maple Leaf Power Limited (hereafter known as the “Client”), which are to be utilized strictly in
accordance with the terms and conditions mentioned hereunder:

” 1. DETAWS OF FACILITIES:
_ PKR in Million
Sr# FACILITIES LIMITS of/s EXPIRY RATE OF RETURN
1 [1G* 50.000 10.000 A APSC
11 | Lcis) (40.000) . 31-12-2021 0.1%p.q ]
12_|SG (40.000} - 31-12-2021 APSC ]
13 _| Le-oTT* (5.000) 5.000 A APSC

A Continuing Guarantee. Till decision of Sindh High Court, Karachi,
*Existing outstanding liability against LG - OTT of PKR 5 M approved will be transferred to LG.

Purpose:

LG: To issue guarantee In favor of The Director, Excise & Taxation (Taxes-Il}, Karachi

LC (S): For import of spares, equipment and machinery spare parts

S$G: For release of imported consignment in absence of shipping documents. Tenor: 30 Days

Repayment:

LG: On expiry/Return of original guarantee instrument as per credit policy

LC {5): Documents to be retired by the client on first presentation through own sources
$G: On return of original instrument/redemption as per credit manual

q Security Structure:

LG: 100% cash margin

LC (S}: Lien on import documents
$G: 100% cash margin

2. AND such other securities as may reasonably be requested by the Bank from time to time. In addition, the
Bank shall have a banker's lien on all your depuosits, accounts and properties held with the Bank. The security
and other agreements, negotiable instruments and documents to be executed by client in favor of the Bank
shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank.

3. Other Terms & Conditions: Client will comply with the following general terms and conditions:
/ 3.1 The Client will bear all costs and expenses and reimburse the amount paid by the Bank forthwith after

receiving the Banks' demand for payment. in addition, client will at3o be responsible for all costs and expenses
"’( {including litigation costs and lawyer's fees) incurred by the Ban @ S i

s%ering any amoun!t, eTe nt through
itigation or otherwise or in enforcing your obligations to the B3 PRI X
g /‘ ‘ - -4 KedS- I

3rd Floor, 47-Bank Square, The Mall, Lahore - Pakistan, PABX; + 82 42 37
SWIFT. ASCMPKKA, URL: www.askaribank.com.pk
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3.2. All expenses, including legal and valuation fees and incidental costs, incurred by the Bank in relation to the
granting of the facilities and the taking, registering and enforcing, if necessary, of securities refating thereto
shall be charged to the Client and the Client will duly liquidate the same, as and when required by the Bank,

3.3. The Client will not, without the prior written intimation to the Bank, amend and/ or alter any of the
provisions of your Memorandum and Articles of Association/ Bye laws/ other constitutive documents [as the
case may be). The Client will also inform the Bank in writing and Immediately, of any plans to change your
shareholding structure. In the event the Bank thereafter concludes that such a change may impair your
standing credit, the Bank reserves the right to require the Client to effect a prepayment of the facility/
facilities, including all accrued mark-up, commissions, charges, fees and all moneys arising from the
facifity/facilities by acceleration.

3.4. The Client wilt provide the Bank with a duly certified true copy of your audited annual balance sheet
prepared by your external auditors in accordance with standard applicable accounting principles as in force in
Pakistan, together with your profit and loss statements and a detalled list of your debtors and creditors,
immediately after its issuance, but in any case no later than 4 months after the close of your financial year.
{Quarterly account of public limited companies should be obtained within 45 days from the quarter end.). In
case financials performance of the company based on the latest annual accounts to be submitted to the bank
shows deteriorating financial conditions, the bank would have right to review/ reduce the credit lines
accordingly.

3.5. The Client will undertake to pay all taxes, duties and levies as may be required to be paid by the Client or
the Bank on the facilities herein advised and on the sale of the goods/ assets to the Bank or on the repurchase
of the goods/ assets from the Bank. Such taxes, duties and levies shall include ali taxes payable by the Bank
pursuant to any law, enactment, order or rule (excluding tax on the corporate income of the Bank), on an
amount of the purchase price/ mark-up price outstanding against the Client or on the facilities herein advised.
The Client will undertake to pay/ reimburse the Bank any and all taxes, duties and levies {excluding tax cn the
corporate income of the Bank) as may be imposed or levied upon the Bank in any manner arising from any
finance/mark-up agreement which may be executed or from the facilities herein advised or from or in respect
of any amounts payable by the Client to the Bank. For such taxes, duties and levies, the Bank shalt be entitled
and empowered to debit your account with the Bank for such payments, irrespective of any dispute regarding
such payment between the Client and the Bank. Furthermore, the client will gross-up its payments in case any
deductions or withholding is required to be made by the client under any applicable law for the time being so
as to ensure that receives and retains a sum equal to the net amount that the Bank may have received in case
such deduction or withholding was not required to be made in terms hereof.

3.6. The Client will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank borrow any money or manies or avail
any other finance or mark-up facility from any other banks/ financial institutions or any other person. Any
indebtedness in respect of borrowed monies by the client which is neither (a) paid when due or (b) paid if it
becomes due and payable before its normal maturity, shall, inter alia, constitute an event of default and the
Bank wilt be entitled to exercise its right under the law for recovery of all or any such outstanding.

3.7. The availability and/or utilization of credit line shall be subject to the State Bank of Pakistan’s Credit/

- Exchange Control, Prudential Regulations and Clear/Clean CIB Report, and any other relevant policy, regulation

or rule which may be affected from time to time, by any competent authority and/ or regulatory body, as
determined by the Bank.

ibank Limited, Regional Credit Administration Department§(RCA
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3.9. In the event of default in payment of principal amount or mark-up or commission on the relevant due
dates, the Bank shall have the right, power and authority to charge liquidated damages and other amounts,
costs, charges and expenses, etc as may be agreed or specified in any agreement, instrument, or document
governing the facilities.

3.10. Subject to the furnishing/execution of fresh agreements and documents and any necessary amendments
which the Bank may in its sole discretion decide to incorporate, all the terms and conditions of the
agreements/arrangements governing the faclilities previously granted to the Client will continue hereto, and
the Client will be liable to pay the total outstanding amounts(s) together with all applicable mark-up, costs,
commissions, charges and expenses and any other levies that the Bank may impose from time to time.

3.11. Any disbursement by the Bank under these facility/facilities shali be subject to calculation of the Drawing
n Power Limit, based on the security held and the stock reports submitted by the Client or by the Muccadam
appointed by the Bank.

3.12. The Client will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, undertake any action and/or omission
that may result in any encumbrances being created on or against the securities / collateral / credit support or
any of them provided to the Bank, whereby the securities / collateral / credit support available with the Bank
are or may in any way become adversely affected.

3.13. The Client will execute or cause to be executed all such instruments, deeds or documents, which the
Bank may in its sole discretion require.

3.14. The Client will furnish alt such information, as the Bank may responsible at any time and from time to
time require relating to the position of the security, collateral, credit support, goods and pecuniary liabilities.

3.15. The Client will keep the goods/security/collateral/credit support/property fuily insured covering all
possible risks with an insurance company acceptable to the Bank for a sum not less than value of assets and
the Bank shall be designated as the beneficiary of such insurance policy and the Client will deliver to the Bank
copies of receipts evidencing payment of the premium, In respect thereto.

3.16. The Client will keep, maintain and protect the interest of the Bank in any and all securities provided to
n the Bank and the Client will not to undertake any act of commission or omission by which the payment of any
amount payable to the Bank or any of the Securities are in any manner adversely affected.

3.17. The Client will create and furnish the Bank with any and all such other securities as the Bank may require
from time to time and to fulfill all documentation and other formalities required for perfecting the security /
collateral / credit support in favor of the Bank.

3.18. The Client shall give 2 time’s reciprocity business by way of Import documents pass through the Bank's
counters, calculated against the funded facilities with the Bank.

3.19. in the normal course of business, the above facilities are valid upto and repayable on 31-12-2021 at
» which time it will be reviewed and renewed at our sole discretion. However, we reserve the right to terminate
,  thefacilities at our discretion whereupon alf cutstandings with us will be repayable immediately.

3.20. Any other bank charges/ penalties applicable as per Bank Scheglyts Charges available on bank's
website www.askaribank.com will be charged during the course of Av ot

Askaribank Limited, Regional Credit Administration Department, (RCAD) Lahh
3rd Fioor, 47-Bank Square, The Mall, Lahore - Pakistan, PABX: + 92 42{3722974%-7, ' \
SWIFT: ASCMPKKA, URL: www.askaribank.com.pk < AR ‘< —
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November 25, 2020
MCB/GEN/2020/876

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited
42-Lawrance Road, Lahore
(Hereinafter referred to as the “Company”)

Facility Advising Letter (FAL}
Dear Sir,

With reference to your request regarding renewal of credit facilities, we are pleased to advise that the following credit
facilities have been approved the competent authority, subject to the terms and conditions detailed below:

LY

TPMR+5
%

Renewal On 0050%pq | 31.42.2021

Unchanged Basis

LETTER OF
CREDIT SIGHT
Purpose: Fer import of raw materials i.e. coal.

Security:
o Corporate Guarantee of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited., Collateral Value: 500,000,000, Security Margin (%):
0.00
¢ Lien over Import Documents., Collateral Value: 500,000,000, Security Margin {%): 0.00

Tenor: At Sight
Principal Repayment Terms: LC sight will be retired through own sources / cash flows of the company / FATR

Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: At the time of establishment of LC.

1.1 | INLANDLETTEROF { Renewal On 0.000% See .
CREDIT SIGHT Unchanged <500.000> Below TPMR 0.050% 31.12.2021
<within 1> Basis +5% P9
Purpose: For import of raw materials i.e coal
Security: -
s (LIEN ON IMPORT DOCUMENTS } Lien over Import Documents., Collateral Value: 500,000,000.00, Security Margin
(%]): 0.00

¢ (CORPORATE GUARANTEE ) Corporate Guarantee of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited., Collateral Value: -
500,000,000.00, Security Margin (%): 0.00

Tenor: At Sight
Principal Repayment Terms: Through own sources / cash flows of the company

Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: At the time of establishment of L.C.
1.2 TRUST RECEIPT Renewal With <500.000> | C.000% See TPMR+5% | 1MK+0.50% { 31.12.2021
FINANCE - Change In Below
FOREIGN Security
<within 1> N
Purpose To finance imports of raw material under LC F(S} established through MCB
Security

» ( Registered Hypothecation ) 1st JPP charge of PKR 666.67 Million on Current Assets of the Company, Collateral
Value: 666,670,000.00, Security Margin (%): 25.00
* (Registered Hypothecation ) 1st PP hypothecation charge of PKR 666.67M over company's all present & future
movable Fixed Assets {P&M) with 25% margin., Collateral Value: 666,670,000.00, Security Margin (%): 25.00
+ (BILL OF EXCHANGE(BACKED BY TR) ) Trust Receipt favoring MCB., Collateral Value: 500,000,000.00, Security
Margin (%): 0.00
Mark-up Reset Frequency As per Bank Policy

Tenor 120 Days
Principal Repayment Terms Through own sources/ cash flows of the company iyl idy. TR
Markup/Commission Repayment Term/Frequency Quarterly. @ o /——-\{4//)
(0 =38
L/ P /\/\

N
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GUARANTEE Renewal On <50.000> | 0% See TPMR+5% As per 31.12.2021
13 | FAVOURING EXCISE | Unchanged below soc
' AND TAXATION | Basls
<within 1>
Purpose: To issue guarantee in favour of Office of the Director Excise & Taxation.
Security:

» (CASH MARGIN - IN MARGIN A/C ) 100% coverage in the form of cash margin. , Collateral Value: 0.00, Security
Margin (%): 0.00
* (GUARANTEE ) Counter Guarantee,, Collateral Value: 0.00, Security Margin (%): 0
Tenor: 5 Years
Principal Repayment Terms: Will be reversed upon submission of original BG instrument/ as per Bank policy.
Proflt/Markup/Commission repayment term: Will be recovered at the time of issuance of BG.

l SHIPPING Renewal On <200.00> 0.000 See TPMR+5% As per 31.12.2021
14 GUARANTEE Unchanged % below socC
<within 1> Basis

Purpose: For issuance of shipping guarantee for release of goods in the absence of import documents. {LC'S ONLY)
Security:

* (CASH MARGIN - IN MARGIN A/C) 110% coverage in the form of cash margin, Collateral Value: 0.00, Security

Margin (%): 0.00

¢ (GUARANTEE ) Counter Guarantee., Collateral Value: 0.00, Security Margin (%): 0
Tenor: 7 Days
Principal Repayment Terms: 5G cancellation to be carried out upon receipt of duly cancelled shipping guarantee document
from the shipping company / as per Bank policy.
Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: Will be recovered at the time of issuance of guarantee,
Facility Conditions: Under Shipping Guarantee, goods will be released through Clearing and Forwarding Agent on MCB's
approved panel.

GUARANTEE Renewal On <50.000> 0% See TPMR+5% ASC 3i12.2021
1.5 OTHERS Unchanged below i
<within 1> Basis :

Purpose: To issue Guarantee in favor of Government of Sindh In Heu of the Infrastructure Cess.
Security:
» (CASH MARGIN - IN MARGIN A/C) 100% coverage In the form of cash margin., Collateral Value: 0.00, Security
Margin (%): 0.00
* [ GUARANTEE ) Counter Guarantee,, Collateral Value: 0.00, Security Margin {%): 0
Tenor: 5 Years
Principal Repayment Terms: Will be reversed upon submission of original BG instrument/ as per bank's policy
Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: will be recovered at the time of issuance of BG.

SMR = Standard Markup Rate | TPMR = Timely Payment Markup Rate | ASC = As per Schedule of Bank Charges | RR = Ruling
Rate

Collateral: Corporate Guarantee of Maple Leaf Cement Factory lﬁnited. ,((E_(_'.
SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS: A/ JLZ;N A w ¢ 7/

2 35bps to be charged on average unutilized amount] where averag
funded limit remains below 80%.

3. In case trade reciprocity is less than 2 times against working capital funded limit, then MCB shall charge 0.3% on
PKR amount that is below 2 times threshold

4. By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that adequate safety measures are in place to mitigate
the waived insurance risks & subject to same arrangements with other lenders & no preferential treatment

shall be given to any financial Institution / bank. Q/m:

. "'-h

‘<. . ;’f
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o ace Letter you undertake that no bank will be offered PG's of Directors, similar
par with other lenders.

By accepting this Facility Advising
wyaiver allowed by other lenders and MCB's security arrangement must be at
6. By accepting this Facility Advising Le

tter you undertake that with respect to insurance:
e MCB's outstanding will remain adequately covered at all the times. o "

i ent is given to any bank. Le. specific allocation of share in lnsurance.e policy.
L st he ; 4 -loss payee and no PR violation.

! be mentioned in the insurance policy as €0
e ane fallowin gning & execution of |PP for Fixed Assets and Current Assets:

7. Company to ensure the following rational:h for slh iy o
CB's security will be improved throug charge on CA.
%l) :‘ICB will be ar{ par with other lenders in terms of security coverage & margin. The support is subject to
the
Following conditions: ‘
—c? » Legal vetting of the draft to be arranged as per bank’s standard practice.

rovals by other lenders.

o Approval Is subject to similar app
f signing of this JPP, MCB’

Company to ensure that by way o s position will not become inferior to other

—_
’ lenders in terms of security coverage and margins.

10.
11.

12.

13.
14.
15,
16.
17.

18.
19,

Facillties are subject to no regulatory breach. . '
No drawdown shall be allowed under FATR til! up-gradation of MCB

Company te resolve the security Issues on priority and ensure JPP execu
ensured as satisfied.

Company to arrange fresh search report as per bank's SOPs.
Company must ensure at par arrangement with other banks. Upfront legal opinion confirming that effective and

enforceable charge over company’s Plant & Machinery constructed over land of Maple Leal Cement Factory
(MLCFL) must held.
Consid'ering 'comp'fu'iy's quel i.e. entlre revenue is gererated through power supply to holding company, By
accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that out of total load to MLCFL company will have first
right /pre.ference over WAPDA and generators to provide electricity to MLCFL.
By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that Personal Guarantees of directors or better security
is not be provided, will not be offered to any other bank.
By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that MCB is at par with other lenders i
: _ : ers in terms of natur
or security, margins etc. & no preferential treatment shall be given to any financial institution / bank. )
Py accepting this Facllle Advising Letter you undertake that no preferential treatment with respect to
1Cnsurance & nature, ranking, margin etc. over charge is given to any other lender.
ompany to ensure the utilization of limits effectively, oth i imit si i
aoR meds af the company y, otherwise to rationalize the limit size in view of the
Company to ensure perfection of security documents i i i
to the entire satisfaction of | )
gompany-to er;lsu;e that MCB's facilities are utilized for stated purposes only oflegal counsel and CRCD.
y accepting this Facility Advising Letter (FAL) you hereb ,
i y undertake to ensure that i
with respect to insurance & nature, ranking, margin etc. over charge is given to anyaotrll'::n"J ;::Zr:: tal reatment

s charges on CA & FA to JPP charges.
ton upon which ranking charges to be

20. .

21,

22.

23.

24,
25.

26.

27.
28.

By accepting this Facility Advisin
g Letter you undertake that under th i
Framemark: Sompang s ol ooaing Lett ; nder the environmental risk management
iy ly plied with all applicable environmental rules & regulations for their egxisting
Compliance of SBP PR's, CHE, TBML, CRMD
inttmctione. trom & vy, CIB, TE \ circulars, foreign trade policies, regulatory guidelines /
By accepting thi isi
: gf oo vli)d :dg t}‘;lsa :;c;lig; fci\;nzrgphitt;e:ryou undertake that PGs of Directors or better security is and will not
updated security amangemens s bore ﬁ company to ensure that next audited financials refl et
\ t correct /
Company 1o cnsuee pmberent f X' inancing ensuring at par arrangement. =
security documents to th

By atconting thi 1 \ 0 the entire satisfaction
ﬁnancia}) 'msgti tu;isoia/dll;z l?iv:‘sthgel:;tl:l you undertake that no preferentialo :::gfrlnz‘:::n;:;lﬂ)d C}:CD'
2017 must be ensured all tmey. payment recelpts [PPRs]. Compliance of Rule 58 of Inesfr:rex:et;nfiny
gima:;igzyg thisb faiility advising letter you undertake )

4 reen danking guideli i
regulations for its existingEOSe:'a;lclJﬁ:s' rompany is fully com

All terms and ions
conditions of valid facllity advising letters duly accepted by you to remain unch
unchanged.

actlities are renewed subj r to g P tc. C
F ject to no regula ry b i 0 etc. Com ance to
" lati ! B each, Comphance to PR i to SBP
: ' . , 5, Bank p i
F IUdleuﬂa lueg“u ations Othel [ edlt.l esty 'Ct!ons, and bank s credit policy mi, . . !
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29.
30.
31
3z

33.
34.

35.
36.

Under Shipping Guarantee, goods to be released through Clearing and Forwarding Agent cn MCB’s panel,
Company to ensure maximum volume of ancillary / trade business through MCB Bank Ltd.

By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake for timely payment of prineipal / mark up.

By accepting this facility advising letter you undertake that insurance claim received shall !?e first available
towards adjustment of Bank’s financing and balance if any shall be repaid / paid from company’s own sources.
All pending issues [if any} must be resolved on priority.

By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that similar waivers have been provided/ approved by
other lenders/ Banks / Financial Institutions as well.

Regular plant/ site visits shall be conducted by the concerned banks officials. ‘

By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake to ensure meticulous compliance of the regu.latory
instructions with reference to "Guidelines on Compliance of Government of Pakistan's Notifications issued

under United Nations Security Council (UNSC) Resclutions”.

37. Compliance to SBP Prudential Regulations, other credit restrictions, and bank'’s credit policy, Forex Manual and
Regulatory Memos, compliance of SBP Green banking guidelines and Circulars must be ensured. Approval is
subject to no regulatory breach, compliance to PRs, Bank Policy etc.

38. All other terms and conditions of valid facility advising letters duly accepted by you to remain unchanged and
strict compliance of same must be ensured.

Mandatory Terms & Conditions;

1. Requisite Charge Forms (IBs) will be executed by authorized signatory as per Board Resolution.

2. Inno case withdrawal will be allowed in excess of the approved limit.

3. Confirmation in writing as to acceptance of terms and conditions will be provided before disbursement of
facility.

4. The Bank reserves the right to add, amend or alter any condition (Except those, which are prohibited by
regulator) including increase in margin requirement.

5. Moreover, Bank is also vested with the powers to recall the Advances/Credit facilities at any time if the same is
utilized for () hoarding or (ii) purposes detrimental to the public interest or (iii) other than purpose for which
the finance was approved.

6. Business will be routed as per commitment.

7. The Bank shall, at all times, have full autherity to cancel / reduce the facilities allowed without assigning reason
and to call for adjustment of the liabilities within the period so decided by the Bank.

8. Detalls as per Borrowers Basic fact sheet format prescribed by the bank shall be provided at least once in a year
and wherever any change in ownership/ key management or credit rating or substantial change in financing
arrangement with other Banks/Fls or changes in details of associated units takes into effect.

9. During the tenancy of MCB's exposure, any change {n directorship will require prior consent, in writing, from
the bank. In the event of non-compliance with this condition, MCB will have the right to immediately recall the
facilities/exposure financing arrangement.

10. Whenever Directorship is changed approval should be obtained from MCB for continuation / grant of facilities
under new Directorship.

11. Letter from new Director(s) for continuation of all limits /outstanding must be provided to us.

Regulatory Terms & Conditions:
1. The facilities granted are subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s Prudential Regulation/ restrictions and Credit

Policies as may be imposed from time to time. These facilities are being offered with the understanding that
your company financial condition will comply with these regulations and other regulatory requirements as
well, the compliance of which depends on your actions/ performance.

Audited accounts should be submitted to the bank within 4 months from the date of your financial year end,
Whereas half yearly accounts should be submitted within two months. In both cases it shall be submitted to the
bank within 7 days of its finalization. Any further break up/ details or interim / in house report required by the
bank to be provided immediately. Details of liability (fund based & non fund/ contingent) towards our bank or
other lenders shall be appropriately reflected In annual A/Cs of the concern & /or note forming its Integral part,
in appropriate manner with the name of the banks reflected therein.

3. Board Resolution to borrow for facilities must be provided.

4. All charges including fees, prepayments if any, will be recoverable by MCB as per charges.
Other Terms & Conditions:

1.

Tl:le hypothecated stocks / goods / mortgaged property must be insured at all times against all pertinent risk
with the bank as the mortgagee and yourself as mortgagor. The relative insu / icies will be held by the
0 B,

1

£
Carporate Banking, MCB House, 1# Floar, 15-Main Guibery, Jafl Roat, Lafigfe. /. .. T - ¢ I
UAN: 042-114-000-111  Fax: 042-3577 6634 7(° [‘.‘/ 7 N



[

. MCEH
Bank for Life

bl A

10.
11.
12,
13.

14.

bank along with the Premium Paid Receipt (in original), Insurance company must be listed on approved panel
of MCB. Security/ watch and ward of assets placed under banks lien shall be your responsibility.

Stock statements together with a list of book debts are to be submitted at the end af each month, to reach us by
the first week of the following month. The statement/ list should provide Bank-wise break up of outstanding
amount with total value of stocks and receivables there against. Bank may require the statements earlier.

The bank or its authorized representative(s) would have a right to undertake inspection of Stocks/Assets under
banks lien from time to time as per bank policy with or without prior intimation and you shall be obliged to
extend all possible assistance.

Satisfactory credit report on beneficiary will be obtained before opening of LC.

LC/Import documents to be retired by the company on first presentation from own resources.

Outstanding PAD/LC (sight) will reduce the limit by like amount.

If there are any overdue in PAD for more than 20 days, no further LCs will be cpened despite availability of
cushion {n the approved LC limit.

Markup will be recovered as and when due and Standard Markup Rate (SMR) will be recovered If principal or
markup s not paid on due date(s).

In case of non-adjustment of principal/markup on due date, SMR (Standard Markup Rate) @ TPMR +5% wauld
be applied as per cur Bank's Policy.

SMR-TPMR differential will be recovered if principal or mark-up is not paid on due date(s).

Material Adverse Change Clause, Cross Default Clause & Majority Ownership clause shall be applicable.

MCB reserves the right to recover all the agreed Jegal and agreed documentation expenses (including any stamp
duties), agreed site visits expenses and other assocfated costs by debit to your account with us.

All levies and taxes now or at any time hereafter levied and payable in respect of the financial accommodation
and banking facilities set out [n this letter will be exclusively borne by you.

The value of security determined by Bank shall be final. In case the market value of assets placed under Bank's
lien/pledged shares/pledged or hypothecated stocks, as determined by the Bank, falls below the specified
margin requirement, you must provide additional shares / stocks acceptable to the bank, or reduce the finance
accordingly, within 5 days of receiving a letter far the same. However, if the margin falls below 75% of the
requisite margin requirement or margin available is less than 10% or as may be specified by Bank in case of
shares or value of stocks/ assets held as security falls below the bank’s exposure, the bank at its own discretion,
may scli the same, for adjustment/reduction of exposure without reference to you.

In the normal course you may rely upon the above facilities till 31-12-2021 but you will appreciate that in accordance
with normal banking practice, the facility is repayable on demand and we reserve to ourselves the right to vary the
terms and condition and/or ask for repayment if circumstances arise which in our opinion justify our doing so.

If you agree with the terms and conditions of this Facility Advising Letter, please return the duplicate copy with its each
page duly signed as token of your acceptance of the aforementioned terms and conditiens within 15 days from the date

hereof,

We trust that the above facilities fulfil your requirements and hope to continue this prosperous relationship with you,

Yours truly,

Officer-CRCD Unit Head CRCD Sr. Relationship

P .
Terms & (anditions Accepted
For & On behalf of .

M/s Maple wer Limited

Caorporate Banking, MCB House, 1% Floor, 15-Main Guiberg, Jail Road, Lahare.
UAN: 042-141-000-111  Fax; 042.3577 6634



NBP

National Bank of Pakistan

The Chief Executive,
Maple Leaf Power Ltd,
42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore Cantt.

CBCL/MLPL/2021/
August 13, 2021

Dear Sir,
RENEWAL OF WORKING CAPITAL FACILITIES
ACCOUNT: MAPLE LEAF POWER LTD - MLPL

We are pleased to advise you that on your request the competent authority of the Bank has approved renewal of working .
capital limits in favor of above-mentioned company for the period up to 30.06.2022, on terms & condltions mentloned
thereagainst: :

‘ FACILITY 1. Import/inland LC (Sight) Facility [Renewal]
i LIMIT Rs.500,000,000/- {Rs. Five Hundred Million Only)
~ PURPOSE To facilitate fmport/Local Procurement of coal and pet coke (raw materials) along with spare
. parts, stores & tools only {spare parts, stores & tools would be restrlcted up to Pkr 200 Mn under
Inland LC)
EXPIRY 30.06.2022
.COMMISSION - LC opening commission of 0.05% per quarter to be recovered quarterly in advance wlthout

retirement /any other charges.

Bill of Exchange/PAD (Payment against Documents) shall be charged as per NBP Schedule of
Charges (SOC).

{Kibor to be fixed on the last working day before date of creation of each BOE/PAD. Mark up on
BOE to be recovered on retirement.)

REPAYMENT Retirement of Import/intand L/Cs for raw material to be aliowed through FATR (120 Days) sub-
limit/ Company’s own-sources while retirement of L/C’s for spare parts, stores and loose tools
would be allowed through company’s own sources only '

MARGIN NiL Cash Margin
SECURITIES » Lien on import documents of title to goods
» Same as for FATR facility that is:
» 1" Joint Pari Passu Charge of PKR 667 Million over all the present and future
” Current & Movable Fixed Assets of the Company. Same charge shall also secure

Shipping Guarantee sub-imit
s  Assignment af Receivable duly accepted by Maple Leaf Cement and reglstered
. . in SECP '
‘ Undertaking to be obtained from the company for retiremént of LCs opened for procurement of
spare parts, store & tools through Company’s own sources.

CONDITION s [nland LCs used for procurement of spare parts; stores & tools would be restricted up to PKR
200M within the limit.
' ICs for procurement of spare parts, stores & tools to be retired only through Company’s
own sources.

*  Aggregate exposure against Import/ Inland LC (Sight} and its sub-limits FATR (120 days), and
Shipping Guarantee not to exceed PKR 500M at any  point In time.

‘ ‘.‘\r>»’/——‘\
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NBP

Notional Bank of Pakistan
FACILITY 1 {A} Finance Against Trust Receipt (FATR) Facility (120 Days) : .
) [As Sub Limit of Import/inland L/C (Sight)] __[Renewal]
umIr Rs. 500,000,000/- (Rs. Five Hundred Million Only)
PURPOSE To finance imports/ local procurement of coal by facilitating retirement of LCs opened against
Import/ Inland L/C {Sight) facility
REPAYMENT/ Company’s internal cash generation
RETIREMENT
MARGIN  +— 25% on Limit Amount,
TENOR 120-Days Maximum for each TR.
PRICING "] 3 Month KIBOR plus 0.75% p.a.
[Kibor to be fixed on the last working day before date of creation of each TR. Mark-up to be
‘ recovered along with principal upen maturity of each FATR Bill.]
. EXPIRY 30.06.2022
. SECURITIES = Trust Receipts duly signed by the Company. :
» 1% Joint Pari Passu Charge of PKR 667 Million over all the present and future Current &
Movable Fixed Assets of the Company. Same charge shall also secure Shipping Guarantee
sub-limit.
»  Assignment of Receivable duly accepted by Maple Leaf Cement and registered in SECP.
Special Condition »  Aggregate exposure against Import/ infand LC (Sight} and its sub-limits FATR (120 days), and
' Shipping Guarantee not to exceed PKR 500M at any point in time.
FACILITY 1-(B) Shipping Guarantee _Facllity [As Sub Limit of Import/inland L/C ({Sight)]
: [Renewal] ' S ) . -
LiMIT Rs.500,000,000/- (Rs. Five Hundred Million Only)
PURPOSE For release of shipments in absence of shipping documents
CASH MARGIN = | 100% Cash Margin
COMMISSION —ar— | Commission to be charged at 0.10% per quarter to be recovered quarterly in advance without
” any other charges/ retirement charges
) REPAYMENT/ Company’s internal cash generation
RETIREMENT '
EXPIRY 30.06.2022
g . SECURITIES » Counter Guarantee of the Company.
» Same as for FATR facllity that is:
e 1% Parl Passu Charge of PKR 667 Million over alf the present and future Current
& Movable fixed Assets of the Company. Same charge shall also secure
Shipping Guarantee sub-limit.
* Assignment of Recelvable duly accepted by Maple Leaf Cement and registered
in SECP.
Special Condition *  Aggregate exposure against Import/ Inland LC (Sight) and its sub-limits FATR (120 days), and
Shipping Guarantee not to exceed PKR 500M at any pedfrhin time,

,.E’:.-‘TPA,,
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o ) AN KIBOR to be set at disbursement and subsequently at the beginning of each calendar quarter on
’ o 5’4 the basis of last working day immediately preceding calendar quarter. '
( Prompt Payment Bonus
0! 7 ' M-up paid within O to 10 days of becoming due 0.50%p.a. |-
: M-up paid within 11te 20 days of becoming due 0.40%p.a. | .
M-up paid within 21te 30 days of becoming due 0.30% p.a.
M-up paid within 31tc 40 days of becoming due 0.20% p.o.
M-up paid within 41to 45 days of becoming due 0.10% p.a.
M-up paid within 46 to 90 days of becoming due 0.0% p.a.

NBP

National Bank of Pakistan

FACILITY 2 Running Finance Facility — [Renewal & Revision in pricing]
LIMIT Rs.200,000,000/- (Rs. Twa Hundred Million Only)

PURPOSE To finance day to day working capital requirement of the company
MARGIN 25%

EXPIRY 30.06.2022 : X -

REPAYMENT Company's internal cash generation.

SECURITIES / » 17 Joint Pari Passu charge of Rs.267Million over all the present and future current & movable
fixed assets of the Company. ‘

MARK-UP Month KIB . . :
, 3 pn 05:_1_326; p.a.with prompt payment rebate as per below: M 'f 6.5 7

" aBor

Speclal Condition: ‘ \ . ; -
4. A

ADDITIONAL TERMS & CONDITION:

1. These facilities are available for the specific purposes only as mentioned above and shalf not be diverted towards your
allied companies/sister concern/associated companiles,

2. In case of event of default, Bank reserves the right to change or modify any/ all the terms & conditions or to recall the
finance during currency of fimit without assigning any reason thereof.

3. The Bank has irrevocable right to engage outside consultant for apprising & evaluating the operating performance or any
other aspect of company in the event when company defaults or is likely to default in servicing its debt obligations to
Bank. Fees of consultants for such studies will be borne by company.

4. The company shall provide to the Bank such information and financial statements as maybe required from time to time.
Annual audited accounts should be submitted to the Bank within 120 days fro e date of financial year-end.
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NBP

National Bank of Pakistan

The company shall meet all the applicable SBP Prudential Regulations and NBP policies at any point in time,

6. Conduct of advance shall be closely monitored by NBP and all the terms & conditions, as required under Bank’s standard
procedure and practice, must be got fulfilled.

7. Al levies/taxes now or at any time hereafter |evied and payable in respect of financial accommodation & banking
facllities set out in this letter is to be exclusively borne by the company.

8. Allthe incidentals will be paid by the company from its own sources.

9. The company shall not make any change in its corporate structure or transfer its management or sell major ownershlp or
create in any manner, any charge, fien or encumbrance on assets of the company in favor of any other party without
prior written approval of NBP. The company will advise NBP of the changes (if any} in the constitution, Board of
Directors/Address of the company.

10. During the subsistence of the financial assnstance, NBP will have the right/option to have access to the premises and
books of accounts of the company.

” 11. Please ensure to complete all the documentation formalities Including execution of requisite charge 'Aféi-ms (1Bs)
documents of working capital facilities at the earliest. Out of pocket expenses including but not:limited to-legal.fee, -
3 - professional fee, SECP charges incurred in connection with preparation of credit appraisal, legal/charge documents,
’ execution and performance of the Facilities shall be borne by the company, NBP unconditionally reserves the right to
debit any such charges from the customer.

12. Please submit Statement of hypothecated current Assets on monthly basis containing bank-wise outstanding liabilities
of all Parl Passu charge holders of the current Assets with the value of current Assets held there-against. Officials
designated by branch will conduct periodically lnspectlons of Hypothecated Assets at your cost & expense.

13. Company’s Current and Fixed Assets shall be adequately insured from insurance companies on- NBP's panel wnth )
necessary risks and our interest will be notified to the Insurancé company and mentioned in insurance pollcy Orlglnal B
policy with all amendment slips, premium paid receipts and credit arrangement slips {if applicable) to be submitted. -

14. The facility will be subject to laws of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan and non-exclusive jurisdiction of the Pakistan
courts. The facilities are granted under and subject to, the conditions and limitations set and specified by the State Bank
of Pakistan and other competent authorities from time to time.

This letter is issued in triplicate. Kindly confirm your acceptance of the foregoing term & conditions by the slgnlng over
Company’s stamp (all pages) & returning two original of this letter, while keeping one for your record.

Shahid Iqbﬂt/C/ ‘/({

” Yours faithfully,

\chgifd‘din Taiﬂr D) oudhri

Unit Head EVP/Corporate Head

’\/\\\- ">" T
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‘ Regional Credit Adminlistration Department
. ‘Corporate & investment Banking Group-ll

4- Fane Road, Kasuri Tower, Lahore

T Phone No: 37310664

 THE BANK OF PUNJAB
Fussion Reborn

RCAD/CB-C/2022/5683
December 22, 2022

Sayeed Tariqg Saigol

Chief Executive Officer
Maple Leaf Power Limited
42 - Lawrence Road, Lahore

Dear Str,

BANKING FACILITIES

This is with reference to your request letter dated for grant of Credit / Banking Facility/Facilities
whereby, we The Bank of Punjab, (Main Branch, Lahore) (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are pleased to inform
that the Bank has, in principle,-approved the following Facility/Facilities in favour of Maple Leaf Power Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Customer”), which are to be utilized strictly in accordance with the terms and
conditions mentioned hereunder: '

1. DETAILS OF FACILITIES:

1} FINANCE AGAINST TRUST RECEIPT {FATR) — RENEWAL
ﬂ!"»‘htr';;"d;e_— For retirement of LCs/PAD through trust Receipt. (Stores & spares LC to be retired from
customer’s own source )
Limit | PXR 500,000,000/ (Pakistani Rupees Five Hundred Million Only)
Amount .
ﬂdat;anding ML .
| Mark Up rate ¢’| 3Month KIBOR + 75 BPS per annum with no floor and no cap.
Rate Seiting KIBOR of the date of hooking of FATR will be used tili adjustment of respective TR.
- - ‘Mark  Up  for 3Month KIBOR + 350 BPS from the date of overdue.
— . overdue period
Tenor: 90 Days Maximum (including days in PAD)
__V_g!idity: 30.11.2023
Repayment Adjustment in Lump sum.
Securities » Trust Receipt duly executed by the Customer.
| Securitiesare mentioned under Joint Collateral.
1{a) LCSIGHT (SLC) (Foreign / INLAND) {SUBLIMIT OF FATR FACILITY NO. 1) - RENEWAL
Purpose To meet the import/purchase requirement of Coal/ Pet Cock for the customer,
Limit Amount <PKR 500,000,000/-> (Pakistani Rupees Five Hundred Million Only)
Note: Import of Spare part / machinery is allowed up to PKR 250 Mitlion only and to be
retired through customer’s own sources, yalEY .
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Qutstanding PKR. 37,597,320.00 {Pakistani Rupees Thirty Seven Mllllon Five Hundred Ninety Seven
thousand three hundred & twenty Only)

Commission 0.10 % p.g. for LC (all inclusive)

Cash Margin NIL or as per SBP requirement whichever is higher.

Validity 30.11,2023

“Take Out To retire the LCs for Coal, Pet Cock etc. customer will utitize FATR facility or from their own

sources. LCs for store & spares etc. would be retired by Customer through their own
resources.

Mark-up on PAD | 3 Month KiBOR + 150bps {up to 45 days thereafter as per Bank’s Schedule of Charges).

e Securities * Lien on title of goods under import Documents.
. s (Other securities as mentioned under Joint Collateral.
Other Terms « Charter Party/House Forwarder’s Bill of lading is allowed

* Air shipment for LCs established to import Store & Spare parts is allowed,

1-b) SHIPPING GUARANTEE (SUBLIMIT OF FATR) — RENEWAL

Purpose To release goods procured through LCs established with BOP.
Limit <PKR 500,000,000/-> (Pakistani Rupees Five Hundred Million Only)
_Amount ’ :
Cutstanding NiL
_Commission As per Bank’s Schedule of Charges.
Cash margin NIL
Tenor Open ended
Other Terms Shipping Guarantee to be allowed only by blockmg/Earmarking FATR Limit with equal

amount ar against 100% cash margin.
Primary Security » Securities are mentioned under Joint Collateral.

J0INT COLLATERAL:

- . 1) 1%1PP charge over present & future Fixed Assets of the customer for PKR 666.667 Million with 25% margin.
2) 1*JPP charge over present & future Current Assets of the customer for PKR 666.667 Million with 25% margin.
3) Corporate Guarantee of Parent Company i.e. Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited.

4) Assignment of Receivable of Maple Leaf Power Limited from Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited in favour of
BOP.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

1. Customer to route maximum import business reciprocity through BOP’s counters before review period.

2. Prior clearance to be obtained for import of store & spare /raw material from /Via RL@Sia Origin.

3. House/Forwarder Bill of Lading to be aliowed. Further, House/Forwarder Bill of Lading to be followed by copy
of Master Bill of Lading. Customer hereby undertakes to compensate the Bank in case of any
loss/contingencies created during the normal course of business due to approval of stated arrangement.

4. Customer hereby undertakes regarding Letter of Credit, confirming that
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« Foreign exchange fluctuation risk to be borne by customer.
s Compliance of SBP PRs and FE Manual

5. Customer hereby undertakes that BOP is not on inferior footage & to indemnify the bank in case of loss due
to waiver of any risk in insurance policy. :

6. Monthly Stock Reports to be submitted timely.

7. No preferential treatment should be given to any lender & parity of BOP with all other banks w.r.t. security,
insurance, operational arrangements, of Directors, any sort of undertaking, shareholding pattern and othér

arrangement.
8. Processing Fee of PKR. 500,000 along with FED to be paid up front. in case of business reciprocity of less than
”‘. K4 two times of our approved limit during next twelve months, a one time charges of PKR. 500,000 is to be paid

by customer before processing of next Annual Review.
9. Customer to ensure the following w.r.t Green Banking,
a. Act in Compliance with national (and International) environmental laws and reguiations and the
MEAs.

b. Provide all necessary environmental clearance certificates, renewals of it and new cenrtificates, if so
reguired.
c. Report to the Bank regularly and consistently on the obligors’ environmental performance.

d. Refrain from extending beyond the approved business plan without obtaining additional
environmental approvals,

e. Ensure that environmental emergency plans are in place.
f. Bring to the Bank’s attention any environmentally adverse action at their end.
g. Refrain from using their property for disposing of toxic substances etc,

10. Customer to undertake following:

a. Customer has to Obtained ali necessary approvals, licenses, permissions for operations from all concerned
Authorities including but not limited to Federal Govt., Provincial Govt. / Local Bodies, City Administration,

- . taw Enforcement Agencies, Independent & Dependent Bodies, Boards & etc.

b. There is no direct or indirect legai bar, permanent or temporary, executive or judicial order(s}, barring
them to carry out business/operations.

¢. Company’s existing capacities do not require any specific approvals, licenses or permissions to set up
and/or operate Company’s Units. In case the same were or are required, same shall be shared with the
bank.

d. Company’s operations are and will continue to be in compliance with all applicable laws of Pakistan, all
Govt. Circulars and SRO's.

2. AND such other securities as may reasonably be required by the Bank from time to time. In addition, the
Bank shall have a banker's lien on all depasits, accounts and properties belonging to the Customer, duly
held with the Bank. The securities, negotiable instruments and documents shall be executed by the
Customer in favour of the Bank and shall further be in the form and substance acceptablato the Bank.

. ~
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3.

3.1

3.2,

3.3,

. 3.4,

3.5,

Other Terms & Conditions: Customer will comply with the following general terms and conditions:

In the event the payment under the documents is refused by the issuing/confirming bank {including but
not limited to by reason of any stay order of any court, tribunal or other authority), the Customer shall
fully indemnify the Bank for any losses that the Bank may incur in this respect and shall refund to the Bank
the full amount paid by the Bank to the Customer, together with mark-up, at the highest rate of mark-up
allowed by the SBP and the liquidated damages. In this connection, the Customer shalt be required to sign
any and/or all documents/agreements required by the Bank. Additionally, the Bank reserves the right to
debit any of its customer’s account, as maintained by it, with the amount payable hereunder by the
Customer to the Bank. The Bank also reserves the right to appropriate any of the deposits or other
properties belonging to the Customer, duly held with the Bank, towards the satisfaction of the Customer’s
liability towards the Bank. (Applicable for those customers with discounting of export bills facilities)

The Customer shall furnish the Bank with stock report and list of debtors on monthly baslis not later than
the fifteenth (15%) day of the following month. These reports shal! be signed by an authorized officer of
the Customer’s company. Inspection of the hypothecated stocks may be conducted by the Bank at the
discretion of the Bank without prior notice to Customer. All expenses, costs and charges including the fees
of any agent whom the Bank may appoint to undertake the said inspection shall be charged to the
Customer and the Bank shall have the right, power and authority to make any deductions from the
Customer’s accounts in this respect. In the event of deterioration in the value of the assets hypothecated,
by the Customer in favor of the Bank, or any other securities relating to the Facility/Facilities, the Bank
reserves the right to either demand additional securities or alternatively reduce the Facility to restore the
margin required from time to time. .

The Customer shall prominently display a board, containing the Bank’s name, clearly indicating its
lien/pledge/charge on any pledged/hypothecated stocks at the godown/warehouse, where such
pledged/hypothecated stocks are stored.

The Customer shall bear all costs and expenses and shall reimburse the amount paid by the Bank
forthwith after receiving the Banks' demand for payment. In addition, the Customer shall also be
responsible for all costs and expenses (including litigation costs and lawyer's fees) incurred by the Bank

in recovering any amount from the Customer, through litigation or otherwise or in enforcing the
Customer’s cbligations to the Bank.

All costs, expenses, charges including but not limited to, legal and valuation fees and incidental costs,
incurred by the Bank in relation to the granting of the facilities and the taking, registering and enforcing, -
if necessary, of securities relating thereto; along with any penalties attributable to the customer’s
conduct shall be charged to the Customer and the Customer shall duly liquidate the same, as and when
demanded by the Bank.

The Customer shall not amend and/or alter any of the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association, Laws/Partnership Deed/ or other constitutive documents (as the case may be in a manner
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which may have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Customer to perform its obligations under
the Facility/Facilities, and in any case shall inform the Bank immediately of all such
amendments/alterations. In the event the Bank determines that such amendments/alterations may have
a material bearing on the Customer or affect its credit standing, the Bank remains entitled to require the
Customer to affect a prepayment of the Facility/Facilities including all accrued Mark-Up, commission,
charges, fees and all moneyl{ies) arising from the Facility/Facilities by acceleration.

3.7.  The Customer shall provide the Bank with a duly certified true copy of its audited annual balance sheet
prepared by its external auditors in accordance with standard applicable accounting principles as in force
in Pakistan, together with its profit and loss statements and a detailed list of its debtors and creditors,
immediately after its issuance, but in any case no later than the four {04} menths after the close of its

financial year. (Quarterly account of public limited companies should be obtained within forty five {45)
days from the quarter end.)

38 The Customer shall undertake to:

(a). Pay all taxes, duties and levies as may be required to be paid by the Customer or the Bank on the
Facility/Facilities herein advised and on the sale of the goods/ assets to the Bank or on the repurchase of
the goods/ assets from the Bank. Such taxes, duties and levies shall include all taxes payable by the Bank
pursuant to any law, enactment, order or rule {excluding tax on the corporate income of the Bank), on an

amount of the purchase price/ mark-up price outstanding against the Customer or on the Facility/Facilities
herein advised.

{b). Tao pay/ reimburse the Bank any and all taxes, duties and levies (exclu_'ding tax on the corporate income of
the Bank) as may be imposed or levied upon the Bank in any manner arising from any finance/mark-up
agreement which may be executed or from the Facility/Facilities herein advised or from or in respect of
any amounts payable by the Customer to the Bank. For such taxes, duties and levies, the Bank shall be
entitled and empowered to debit the Customer’s account with the Bank for such payments, irrespective
of any dispute regarding such payment between the Customer and the Bank. Furthermore, the Customer
shall gross-up its payments in case any deductions or withholding is required to be made by the Customer
under any applicable law for the time being so as to ensure that the Bank receives and retains a sum equal

to the net amount that the Bank may have received in case such deduction or withholding was not
required to be made in ferms hereof.

3.9.  The Customer shall not without the prior written consent/approval of the Bank conduct any additional
borrowing, in the form of borrowing any money/monies or avalling any other finance or mark-up Facility
from any other banks/financial institutions or any other person, on the same executed securities. In the
event the Customer fails to fulfill its contractual obligations under the Facility/Facilities, constituting a
default, such an event shall entitle the Bank to proceed against them in accordance with the law for
recovery of all outstanding amounts along with additional mark-up/liquidated damages.

3.10. The availability and/or utilization of credit line shall be subject to the State Bank of Pakistan’s Credit/
Exchange Contrel, Prudential Regulations and Clear/Clean CIB Report, and any oth etavant policy,

L ,(‘D':¥w
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3.11.

3.12,

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

regulation or rule which may be affected from time to time, by any competent authority and/ or
regulatory body, as determined by the Bank.

The Customer undertakes that the Facility/Facilities shal be utilized $olely for the purpase specified
herein. Additionally, the Customer undertakes and confirms that if the Facility/Facilities are used for any
other purpose(s) other than the approved, or are deviated by the Customer in any manner whatsoever
without the approval of the Bank, the Bank remains at liberty to proceed in a manner it considers
appropriate, including but not limited to forthwith cancel/suspend the Facility/Facilities, rendering the '
Customer responsible for any consequences thereof.

The utilization of the Facility/Facilities shall be subject to the prior completion of necessary formalities
including fresh documentation {if so required by the bank) and securities in consultation with the legal
advisor of the Bank to its satisfaction; and shall contain the requisite agreements, deeds, documents,
representations, warranties, covenants, etc. as may be required by the Bank. This shall be in addition to

any and all previously executed documentation and securitization which shall continue and subsist in full
force and effect.

Upon acceptance of this letter, the Customer hereby agrees that the payment of the Principal and Mark-
Up amounts shall be executed on the specified due dates without any delays whatsoever, For Markup
Servicing within 30 days of the Due Date: KIBOR of the relevant period plus Bank’s spread, as specified in
the approved Credit Package shall be applicable. |

For Markup Servicing bevond 30 Days after Due Date: KIBOR of the relevant period plus Bank’s spread as
specified in the approved Credit Package shall be charged.

Subject to the furnishing/execution of fresh agreements and documents and any necessary amendments
which the Bank may In its sole discretion decide to incorporate, all the terms and conditions of the
agreements/arrangements governing the Facility/Facilities previously granted to the Customer shall
continue hereto, and the Customer shall be liable to pay the total outstanding amounts(s) together with

all applicable mark-up, costs, commissions, charges and expenses and any other levies that the Bank may
impose from time to time.

Any disbursement by the Bank under the Facility/Facilities shall be subject to the calculation of the
Drawing Power Limit of the Customer, based on the security/securities held and the stock reports
submitted by the Muccadam appointed by the Bank. The Facility/Facilities are subject to the periodic
review by the Bank and in this regard, the Customer shall furnish with the Bank all securities as the Bank
may require from time to time, and to further fulfill all documentation{s) and other formalities required
for perfecting the security/collateral/ credit support in favour of the Bank.’

The Custemer shall not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, undertake any action and/or
omission that may result in any encumbrances being created on or against the securities / collateral /
credit support or any of them provided to the Bank, wheraby the securities / collateral / credit support
available with the Bank are or may in any way become adversely affected.
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3.17. The Customer shall furnish all such information, as the Bank may require at any time relating to the
position of the security, collateral, credit support, goods and pecuniary liabilities.

3.18. The Customer shall:

(a}. Keep the security and/or collateral granted to the Bank duly insured at all times covering all usual risks as
the Bank may deem appropriate, including but not limited to theft, burglary, fire, damage from water etc.

with an insurance company acceptable to the Bank, for a sum not less than the amount of the outstanding
Facility/Facilities.

P {b). In the event the Customer fails to renew the insurance policy three (03) days prior to its expiration, if the
. Bank deems suitable, it may undertake to immediately arrange a renewal from the same insurance
policy/consortium, as the case may be, by debiting the Customer’s account or even creating excess over

limit. In this regard, the Customer shall be liable to settie the same along with any costs, expenses, the
Bank may incur thereon.

3.19. The Customer shall keep, maintain and protect the interest of the Bank in any and all securities provided
to the Bank and the Customer shall not undertake any act of commission or omission by which the
payment of any amount payable to the Bank or any of the Securities are in any manner adversely affected.

3.20. The Customer shall give 2 times reciprocity business by way of export/import documents pass through
the Bank’s counters, calculated against the funded facilities with the Bank.

3.21. The Bank reserves the right to conduct due diligence of the contractual arrangements, regulatow
approvals, corporate approvals, financing/business plan progress thereon under the Facility/Facilities

and/or any terms and conditions of this Facility Offer Letter (the “FOL"), to its entire satisfaction and to
the extent required.

3.22. The Bank has irrevocable right to engage outside consuitants for appraising and evaluating the operating
performance or any other aspect of the customer, at any time during the currency of the loan agreement,
. . as deemed appropriate. The fees of consultants for such studies shall be borne by the Customer.

3.23  Inthe normal course you may rely upon the above facillty till 30.11.2023 but you will appreciate that in
accordance with normal banking practice, the facility is repayable on demand and we reserve to ourselves

the right to vary the terms and condition and/or ask for repayment if circumstances arise which in our
opinion justify our daing so.

3.24. In the normat course of business, the above Facility/Facilities are:

(a). Valid up to and repayable on 30.11.2023 at which time it shall be reviewed and renewed at Bank’s sole
discretion. However, Bank reserves the right to terminate the Facility/Facilities at Its discretion
whereupon all outstanding’s with the Bank shall be repay_able immaediately.
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(b). The contents of the Banking FOL states some of the indicative terms and conditions on the basis of which
the Facility/Facilities, duly requested by the Customer Is/are granted by the Bank. However, this FOL is
valid for acceptance by the Customer for a pericd of seven {07} days'from the date hereof, after which it
shall be solely up to the Bank to decide whether such terms remain valid. The Bank further reserves the
right to modify/cancel the terms and conditions upon which the Facility/Facilities shall be granted, and/or
to revoke the same. Further, nothing in this FOL shali be construed as a legally binding commitment on
part of the Bank to grant the requested Facility/Facilities.

(c). Upon acceptance by the Customer, the terms and cenditions of this FOL shall continue to apply and shall

remain valid and binding on the Customer, till the event the Customer continues to avail the
Facility/Facilities.

The Bank reserves the right to modify, amend, alter, add, withdraw or cancel any of the terms and
conditions of this Facility Cffer Letter

Kindly confirm your agreement and acceptance of the aforementioned terms and conditions by signing and

affixing your Company’s stamp on the duplicate of this letter and thereafter return the same to the Bank for its
record.

We trust that the above shall be to your satisfaction.

Yours sincerely,

T, a" o
Kasuri Tower Lahorn~

ead RCAD-BOP
herized Signatory)

Q50

Relationship Manager (RM)
(Authorized Signatory)
FAISAL ASHRAF
. Sr. Relatlonshte Manager %
- Carparate Banking Centra .
THE BANK OF PUNJAB
Avenue M.M. Alam Road, LHR.

Maple Leaf Power Limited r(( ‘
hereby accepts and agrees to the above terms and conditions.

Witnesses
1 Mz‘ég/\Q M ' 2. -/: >

Name \ Name G_Mazﬁ\\'l\-l.\ ) -
Y Add 57, § TR v
nidess Ch MepL. Avews

N.LC.No.  [Lat-WRIST195- 9
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MAPLE LEAF POWER LTD.

SHORT TERM FINANCES
FUNDED & NON FUNDED FACILITIES Rupees In Million
As On 31.05.2023
Ty . L 1l Funded I Non Funded Total [§] di [¢] di Current Assels Fixed Assets
l S JL Financial Institution " Nature I Sub ||} Main I Sub || Main Facilities Funded NonFunded 1st JPP Ranking 1st Pari Passu ] Ranking
(million) (mitlion) (illion)
1 TheBank of Punjab FATR 500 - 667 667
SLC (500) -
Shipping Guarantee (500) -
500 - 500 - -
2 MCB Islamic Bank Limited SLC 400 - 601 601
Murabaha (350) -
Bank Guarantee {30} -
LC Services (25)
400 400 - B
3 MCB Bank Limited SLC - 500 667 667
FATR 120 Days (500)
Bank Guarantee {50) 10
Shipping Guarantee (200)
500 500 - L0
5 Askari Bank Limited LG 5 5 | 160% Margin
LG 100 10 | 100% Margin
LCS (40
SG {40)
- 105 105 - 15
TOTAL — | 500 [T | 1,005 [| 1,505 ][ || 25 2,869 2,868




42- Lawrence Road,
Lahore, Pakistan

. . Tel: 92-042-36302261
Maple Leaf Power Limited F:x: 92-42-36368721

Net Worth, Total Equity & Debt As At June 30", 2022

1. Net Worth:
Total Assets = Rs. 7,491,058,000/-

Total Liabilities = Rs. 689,974,000/-

Net Worth = Rs. 6,801,084,000/-

2. Total Equity & Debt:
Total Equity = Rs. 6,801,084,000/-

Total Det = Nil

The above figures are based on the audited financial statements of Maple
Leaf Power Limited for the year ended June 30%, 2022

Jalal Tarig Shah
Manger Finance
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Lahore, (Pakistan)
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Maple Leaf Power Limited  Foxoz0s366s721

PROFILE OF CEO

MR. SAYEED TARIQ SAIGOL
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER / DIRECTOR)

OTHER ENGAGEMENTS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE / DIRECTOR
Maple Leaf Power Limited

DIRECTOR
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited
Maple Leaf Capital Limited

Mr. Sayeed Tarig Saigol is the Chief Executive of Maple Leaf Cement and Maple Leaf Power
Ltd. He graduated from McGill University with a degree in management. Mr. Sayeed Saigol
also has several years of work experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining Maple Leaf
Cement, he was involved in setting up and managing an apparel dyeing company. He is a

member of the Board of Governors of the Lahore University of Management Sciences.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Map]e Leaf Power Limited = 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause 3{4)(d)(vii} regarding employment records of engineering
and technical staff of the applicant proposed to be employed is not applicable.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause 3{4){d)(viii) regarding profile of sub-contractors, if any,
along with expressions of interest of such sub-contractors is not applicable.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited o °%23%¢7!

With reference to the requirement as per clause 3(4)(d)(ix) regarding verifiable references in respect of
the experience of the applicant and its proposed sub-contractors is not applicable.
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1 Technical Feasibility

1.1 Site Conditions:

The following tasks were carried out:
+ Global Horizontal Irradiation, annual and inter-annual variation was assessed.
* Near shading objects were taken into account for the placement of PV modules.

e Area required for selected module technology was calculated. Keeping in view available area and
minimum inter-row shading, tilt angle, and appropriate spacing was calculated from near-shading
objects.

1.2 Site locations

The project site is the ground of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd. The exact coordinates of the project
Site-1 are Latitude: 32°54'9.57"N & longitude: 71°36'15.98"E. And Site-2 are Latitude: 32°54'14.50"N &
longitude: 71°35'23.13"E

Site-1 (10MW):

T 32se 57N 71 36 15.08°E
“Solar 10MW

gTUﬁneI Entry (K-4)




1.3. Plant characteristics

Generation Voltage: 6.3kV three phase three-wire system
Power Factor at rated power: 1
Frequency: 50Hz

Generation characteristic: Inverter has built-in features of controllable active power ramp following
grid disturbance or normal connection, voltage regulation, and frequency response. There are no
additional control metering and instrumentations.



1.3.1 Technology selection

Sr. Document/

No. | Specifications (Model & Technology) Drawing
1 Type of Module Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV
2 Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
3 Dimensions of Each Module 2278x1134x30 mm
4 Weight 32 kg
5 No of Modules 17416 Nos.
6 Total Ground Area Used 28 Acre
7 Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy
8 Nominal Max. Power (P max) 575 Wp (0.40% Annual Degradation)
9 Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp) 4244V
10 Opt. Operating Current (Imp) 13.55 A
11 | Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 51.27 V
12 Short Circuit Current (Isc) 14.31A
13 Module Efficiency 23.37%
14 Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
15 Max. System Voltage 1500 vDC
16 Quality Management System 1509001:2015
17 Environment Management System 1S014001:2015
18 Occupational health and safety management system | 15045001:2018

Sr. No | Specification of Strings Data
1 No of Strings 622
2 Modules in each Strings 28

PV Capacity

Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Plant Rated Capacity (W) 10014200
2 Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 Module Efficiency 23.37%

Inverters:

Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer Huawei
2 Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 No. of Inverters 32
4 Rated Power 275,000 W at 45 °C and above temperature
5 Max Input Voltage 1,500V
6 Max output Current 240.3 A
7 Efficiency 299.0%




Transformers:

Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer PEL
2 Rating (KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 4
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 Rated MV Voltage 6300V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 Temperature Rating 50°C
8 No Load Losses 2.9 kw
9 Impedance (%) 6%
Switchgears:
Sr.No | ltem Brand Description
] Tariq & Co/ Bilal
1 LV Swtichgear Engineering 20004, 800VAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to LV
2 Panels) ABB MCCB TP 320A 50Hz Icu=25KA @ 1150 VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB Fixed
3 Transformers) ABB Icu=lcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB- i/p (Transformers to MV
4 Busbar) Siemens 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
5 LBS- o/p (MV Panel Outgoing) | Siemens 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
Control & Monitoring
Sr.No | Item Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring System RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
RIKA Module Temperature with RS485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make: Phoenix
2 Power Meter Empro Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




Sr. Document/
No. | Specifications {Model & Technology) Drawing
1 Type of Module Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV
2 Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
3 Dimensions of Each Module 2278x1134%x30 mm
4 Weight 32 kg
5 No of Modules 26096 Nos
6 Total Ground Area Used 42 Acre
7 Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy
8 Nominal Max. Power (P max) 575 Wp (0.40% Annual Degradation)
9 Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp) 4244V
10 | Opt. Operating Current {Imp) 13.55A
11 | Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 51.27V
12 | Short Circuit Current {Isc) 14.31A
13 Module Efficiency 23.37%
14 QOperating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
15 Max. System Voltage 1500 vDC
16 Quality Management System 1S09001:2015
17 Environment Management System 1S014001:2015
18 Cccupational health and safety management system | 15045001:2018
Sr. No | Specification of Strings Data
1 No of Strings 932
2 Modules in each Strings 28
PV Capacity:
Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Plant Rated Capacity (W) 15005200
2 Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 Module Efficiency 23.37%
Inverters:
Sr. No | Specification | Data
1 Manufacturer Huawei
2 Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 No. of Inverters 48
4 Rated Power 275,000 W at 45 °C and above temperature
5 Max Input Voltage 1,500V
6 Max cutput Current 2403 A
7 Efficiency 299.0%




Transformers:

Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer PEL
2 Rating (KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 6
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 Rated MV Voltage 6300 V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 Temperature Rating 50°C
8 No Load Losses 2.9 kw
9 Impedance (%) 6%
Switchgears:
Sr. No | Item Brand Description
Tariq & Co/ Bilal
. 1 LV Swtichgear Engineering 2000A, BOOVAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to LV
2 Panels) ABB MCCB TP 320A 50Hz lcu=25KA @ 1150 VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB Fixed
3 Transformers) ABB Icu=lcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB- i/p (Transformers to MV
4 Busbar) Siemens 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
5 LBS- o/p (MV Panel Qutgoing) | Siemens 3AHAAAB-2, 12504, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
Control & Monitoring
Sr. No | Item Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring System RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
RIKA Module Temperature with RS485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
. Model: EEMMA7Z770-2907945, Make: Phoenix
2 Power Meter Empro Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




1.4. Design Parameters:

The following tasks were carried out for PV layout and shading:

* Assessment of shading (horizon and any nearby shading)

* Qutline layout of area suitable for PV development

* Designing row spacing to reduce inter-row shading and associated shading losses.

* Designing the layout to minimize cable runs and associated electrical losses.

* Creating access routes and sufficient space to allow movement for maintenance purposes

* Choasing a tilt angie that optimizes the annual energy yield according to the Iatitude of the site and
the annual distribution of solar resources.

* Water Source at Site: Bore water will be stored in underground tanks, fresh water for maintenance.
Utility supply will be from MLPL.

* Simulating the annual energy losses associated with various configurations of tilt angle,
orientation, and row spacing. The optimized configuration and simulation results are given in section
“Energy Yield Prediction".



1.5 Layout

PV layouts of the site are given in the following section.

1) Layout of the ground Site-1, MLPL 10MW Solar Power Plant




2) Layout of the ground Site-1, MLPL 10MW Solar Power Plant

Acresy”

W
RActy

inverter
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1.6 Elect Design (Single Line Diagram}

The electrical system comprises the following components:
» Array(s) of PV modules

» DC/Cabling (module, string, and main cable)

* Transformers

* DC connectors (plugs and sockets)

* Protection devices e.g. beakers

* Energy Metering

* Earthing

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram includes the
protection devices that will be used for the safe and smooth operation of the system.
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Protections DC Side: String Fuses, DC Isclator Switches, and Surge Protective Device (all built in inverter)
Protections AC-Side: MCCB, ACB, VCB

Single Line Diagram Site-1 (10 MW Solar):

Single Line Diagram - 10 MWp Solar PV Plant

f

Notes: e
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Single Line Diagram Site-2 (15 MW Solar}):

Single Line Diagram - 15 MWp Solar PV Plant
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1.7 Energy Yield Estimation
The energy yield prediction provides the basis for calculating project revenues. The aim is to predict the
average annual energy output for the lifetime of the proposed power plant,

To estimate accurately the energy produced from a PV pawer plant, information is needed on

the solar resource and temperature conditions of the site. Also required are the layout and technical
specifications of the plant components.

A number of solar energy yield prediction software packages are available in the market. These
packages use time step simulation to mode! the performance of a project over the course of a

year. PVsyst software has been used for energy yield prediction for this site and its results are given
below

For Site-1 (10MW Solar): 16353418.9 KWh (Specific Generation=1633 kWH/kWp/Year)

For Site-2 (15MW Solar): 24503836.7 KWh (Specific Generation = 1633 kWH/kWp/Year)

12



2 Financial Proposal
2.1 The Project will be finance through 40% MLPL own generated fund (Equity) and 60% Debit.

21 The Capital cost shall include the cost borne by applicant Company on feasibility studies, pianning,
designing, material, construction and installation of the generation facility.

2.2 The Cost of land in this regarded is not required because the Solar plant will be constructed on
BPC Land.

2.3 The MLPL will supply 16,353,418.9 KWh from 10 MW Solar Plant and 24,503,836.7 KWh from 15
MW to its BPC {Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd).

2.4 The expected cost of the project has been estimated to be Rs. 3.34 billion {11.517 million USD,
PKR/USD rate of 290} and Rs 133.6/Watt (USD 0.4605/Watt).

2.5 The project is technically and financial viable based on the study conducted and BPC future power
demand.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY
"Applications for seeking Eiectric Power Supply License Regarding Solar Project”
ON BEHALF OF

Maple Leaf Power Limited
AFFIDAVIT

I, Sohail Sadigq S/o Ch. Sadiq Hussain, holding CNIC No. 35202-2852436-7, Executive
Director (Finance) of Maple Leaf Power Limited, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that
Maple Power Limited has been issued Supply License since 20 December 2016 by

NEPRA.
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Sohail Sadiq
Executive Director {Finance)

Maple Leaf Power Limited

Dated: 20-06-2023 AT
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42-Lawrence Road,
Maple Leaf Power Limited et 09 ki)

Fax: 0092-42-36368721

RESOLUTION BY CIRCULATION DATED JUNE 15, 2023
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

Whereas, the management of Maple Leaf Power Limited, having its Registered Office at
42-Lawrence Road, Lahore (the “Company”} is desirous to apply to the National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (“NEPRA™) for grant of electric power supply license
regarding Solar Project pursuant to Regulations of Generation, Transmission and
Distribution of Electric Power (Amendment) Act, 2018 under Section 23 of the NEPRA
Act for supplying / selling electricity to Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) i.e. Maple Leaf
Cement Factory Limited.

And whereas it is expedient to appoint the authorized Attorney for and on behalf of the
Company in order to execute, sign and deliver any document or documents including any
agreement for the said purpose.

Therefore, it is hereby Resolved that approval of the Board of Directors is hereby
accorded to Maple Leaf Power Limited (the “Company”) to apply to the National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (“NEPRA™) for grant of electric power supply license under
the aforesaid Act and Regulations of NEPRA for supplying / selling electricity to Bulk
Power Consumer (BPC) i.e. Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL), the holding
company.

Resolved further that Mr. Sohail Sadiq, Executive Director (Finance) of the Company,
is hereby authorized and empowered to file an application to NEPRA for the grant of
electric power supply license to the Company, execute, sign severally the application,
negotiate, deposit fees and submit documents to NEPRA and any documentation ancillary
thereto, in the matter of supplying electricity to BPC i.e. MLCFL.

Resolved further that any and all actions of the authorized representative officer in
pursuant to, or in furtherance of the intent and purposes of the foregoing resolution, are
hereby in all respects adopted, approved, confirmed and ratified as the valid and
subsisting acts of this Company.

Resolved further that Mr. Sohail Sadiq, Executive Director (Finance) is authorized to
engage or appoint any legal counsel and issue Power of Attorney in his favour for his
appearance and representation of the Company in the said Case and to file any
Application or take back any documents, to instruct the Advocate, ratify all acts done by
him and pay all fees, expenses and other legal payments.

Resolved further that a certified true copy of this resolution be communicated to
NEPRA and shall remain in force until notice in writing to the contrary be given.

sk e ok o ko ok ok . )
Ceriified Plug Cagnv

For Manle Ledt Jower Cimiiad
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Director (Finance) of Maple Leaf Power Limited, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that

Maple Leaf Power Limited has not been refused grant of license under the Act by NEPRA.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY

i
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|, Sohail Sadiq S/o Ch. Sadig Hussain, holding CNIC No. 35202-2852436-7, Executive
Director (Finance) of Maple Leaf Power Limited, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that
the contents of the accompanying Application for Supply License {the "License")
regarding Solar Project is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and
that the nothing material has been concealed there from. | also affirm that all further
documentation and information to be provided by me in connection with the
accompanying application for Supply License will also be true to the best of my

knowledge and belief.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 023637

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3{4)(a)(A)(e) 3(i} *, Location
(location maps, site map, land) “it is to inform you that the project site is the ground of Maple Leaf Cement
Factory Ltd. The exact coordinates of the project Site-1 are Latitude: 32°54'9.57"N & longitude:
71°36'15.98"E. And Site-2 is Latitude: 32°54'14.50"N & longitude: 71°35'23.13"E.

Site-1 (10MW):

32°549.57'N  71°3615.98°E
“Solar 10MW

l.‘;-;T’unnel Entry {K-4)




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

M%Ele Leaf Power Limited P 9204236368721

Site-2 (1SMW):

JSolar JISNVY

32°54'14.57"N
71°35°23.17"E




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MaP]e Leaf Power Limited F 9%042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule I!l {Regulation 3(4){a){A){e) 3(ii) Technology,
size of the plant, number of units is tableted below.

10MV:
Sr. Document/
No. Specifications (Model & Technology) Drawing
1 Type of Module Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV
2 Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
3 Dimensions of Each Module 2278x1134x30 mm
4 Weight 32kg
5 No of Modules 17416 Nos.
6 Total Ground Area Used 28 Acre
7 Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy
575 Wp (0.40% Annual
8 Nominal Max. Power (P max) Degradation)
9 Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp) 42.44V
10 | Opt. Operating Current (Imp) 13.55 A
11 | Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 5127V
12 | Short Circuit Current (Isc) 14.31A
13 | Module Efficiency 23.37%
14 | Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
15 | Max. System Voltage 1500 VDC
16 | Quality Management System ISO%001:2015
17 | Environment Management System ISO14001:2015
18 | Occupational health and safety management IS0O45001:2018
system




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maﬁle Leaf Power Limited Fex 9204236368721

Sr. Data

No | Specification of Strings
1 | No of Strings 622
2 | Modules in each Strings 28

PV Capacity

Sr.

No | Specification Data
1 | Plant Rated Capacity (W) 10014200
2 | Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 | Module Efficiency 23.37%

Inverters:

Sr.

No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer Huawei
2 | Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 | No. of Inverters 32

275,000 W at 45 °C and above

4 | Rated Power temperature
5 | Max Input Voltage 1,500 V
6 | Max output Current 2403 A
7 | Efficiency >99.0%




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Map]e Leaf Power Limited Fax 9204236368721

Transformers:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Manufacturer PEL
2 | Rating {KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 4
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 Rated MV Voltage 6300V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 | Temperature Rating 50°C
8 | No Load Losses 2.9 kw
g Impedance (%) 6%
Switchgears:
Sr.
No | Item Brand Description
Tariq & Co/
Bilal 2000A, 800VAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor
1 LV Swtichgear Engineering Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to MCCB TP 320A 50Hz Icu=25KA @ 1150
2 LV Panels) ABB VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB
3 | Transformers) ABB Fixed lcu=lcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB- i/p (Transformers 3AHAAAG-2, 12504, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
4 | to MV Busbar) Siemens Tested
LBS- o/p (MV Panel 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
5 | Outgoing) Siemens Tested




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 20256671

Control & Monitoring
Sr.
No |ltem Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
System RIKA Module Temperature with RS485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make:
2 Power Meter Empro Phoenix Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MaEle Leaf Power Limited e 204236368721

Specifications (Model & Technology)

Document/
Drawing

Type of Module

Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV

Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
Dimensions of Each Module 2278x1134x30 mm
Weight 32kg

No of Modules 26096 Nos

Total Ground Area Used 42 Acre

Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy

Nominal Max. Power (P max)

575 Wp (0.40% Annual Degradation)}

Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp)

4244V

Q
5:'5\ooo~qc\m-hwt\)~gf-f 5

Opt. Operating Current (Imp) 13.55 A
Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 5127V
Short Circuit Current (Isc) 14.31A

13 | Module Efficiency 23.37%
Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
Max. System Voltage 1500 VvDC

Quality Management System

ISO9001:2015

Environment Management System

1SO14001:2015

e et Bl Kl
e || ||~

Occupational health and safety management
system

ISO45001:2018




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 357!

Sr. Data
No | Specification of Strings
1 | No of Strings 932
2 | Modules in each Strings 28
PV Capacity:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Plant Rated Capacity (W) 15005200
2 | Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 | Module Efficiency 23.37%
Inverters:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Manufacturer Huawei
2 { Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 | No. of Inverters 48
f 275,000 W at 45 °C and above
4 | Rated Power temperature
5 | Max Input Voltage 1,500 V
6 | Max output Current 2403 A
7 | Efficiency >99.0%




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 023671

Transformers:
Sr. Data
No | Specification
1 | Manufacturer PEL
2 | Rating (KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 6
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 | Rated MV Voltage 6300 V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 Temperature Rating 50°C
8 No Load Losses 2.9 kW
9 Impedance (%) 6%
Switchgears:
Sr.
No | Item Brand Description
Tariq & Co/
Bilal 2000A, 800VAC, IP-54, Indoor, Fioor
1 LV Swtichgear Engineering Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to MCCB TP 320A 50Hz lcu=25KA @ 1150
2 LV Panels) ABB VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to £2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB
3 Transformers} ABB Fixed Icu=lcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB-i/p (Transformers 3AHAAAB-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
4 to MV Busbar) Siemens Tested
LBS- o/p {MV Panel 3AHAAAG-2, 12504, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
5 Outgoing) Siemens Tested




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leat Power Limited <2356

Control & Monitoring

Sr.
No | ltem Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
System RIKA Module Temperature with R$485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make:
2 Power Meter Empro Phoenix Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 023667

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule ill (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 3(iii) *Water
source at site for maintenance “it is to inform that Bore water will be stored in underground tanks, fresh
water for maintenance and utility supply will be from MLPL.”




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 202357

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3{4)(a)(A)(e) 3(iv) *
Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities are already established.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Map'e Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule lll (Regulation 3{4}(a){A){e) 3{v) *. It
is to inform that 10 MW and 15 MW Solar Power Plants project commencement and completion
schedules with milestones are attached.
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With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 3{vi) * Safety
plans, emergency plans” is attached.




# MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
. Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
n
Title Emergency Response Pla 24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015
SOP Revision Histo
+ /Author - | bate | - Description - | ofchange .
Delete point related to attendance
under 2.2. Heading 2.4 change with
Mr. Irffan | In—charge HSE | 21-06-2016 1.0 | “shift Engineer” and add 2" CR # 0119
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Change in 2.1, 2.6, 2.7, 3.1, 3.4.2.1
{Manual System) & 3.4.2.2
Mr, Irfan | In - charge HSE | 18-Jan-2018 2.0 | (Automated Response System). CR # 235
i Delete 3.2.3.2 (Earthquake) &
- 3.2.3.3 (Hurricanes)
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In — charge HSE | 23-Nov-2020 | 4.0 | bullet under 2,1, 2.6, 3.1.1.1 & | CR # 0482
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% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Title Emergency Response Plan

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

SECTION 1 SCOPE AND PURPOSE

1.1,

1.2.

Scope

This SOP shall apply to a broad range of emergencies which are included but not limited
to Fires, Diseases, Earthquake, Terrorism, Flood, and Hurricane or any other natural
calamities at Maple Leaf Cement Factory.

Purpose

This SOP is aimed at establishing a comprehensive procedure to deal with any disastrous
event mentioned in the scope for reporting, evacuating, controlling and roles &
responsibilities of HSE staff including training of MLCFL employees.

SECTION 2 RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1.

2.2,

In - charge HSE
In — charge HSE shall be responsible to:

e Ensure that emergency response plan i.e SOP is distributed and understood by
MLCFL employees

e Coordinate with Head RCM, Head A&IR and concerned HOD

¢ Monitor Plant emergency response plan on behalf of Plant management/designated
officers

e Manage emergency drills and evaluations on regular basis at Plant site.

HSE area Managers

HSE Area Managers must be familiar with all aspects of Emergency Response and
Evacuation Plan and assist to employees in all emergencies that may occur at MLCFL.
HSE area manager shall:

+ Know all buildings layouts and various escape routes
Know the location of, and how to operate available fire extinguishers, in the
buildings.

» Know the hazardous areas to be avoided during the evacuation

« In case of any person is missing or trapped, Emergency Response Team shzll rescue
the person in a safe way by using all available equipments and with the support of
medical unit team/local rescue service

¢ Maintain discipline and control the panic situation during the evacuation process

© 2015- MLCFL Page 2 of 22
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
. Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
Title Emergency Response Plan 24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

2.3. First Responder

First Responders shall be the individual who first comes across or is aware of the
emergency and shall:

» Quickly assess the scene and immediately communicate with CCR/help line operator

» In the case of fire emergency, raise the alarm to warn all persons present in the area

e Make area safe for the casualty(s), if possible for him/her otherwise move casualty(s)
to safe location (if safe to do so)

o Provide First Aid Care, if trained for it

» Handover to designated First Aider, communicate information on injuries, action
taken and cause of injury (if known)

2.4. Shift Engineers

The shift Engineers, shall be the first point of contact for the first responder and shall be
responsible for:

o Notify first aiders in Trauma Center to mobilize. Ref. Annexure A
» Swap through the respective building to make sure everyone has evacuated
« Notify emergency response team and Head HSE. Ref, Annexure A

2.5. First Aiders
The responsibilities of first aiders shall be:

» To assess the scene and condition of casualty
» To provide initial first aid care and stabilize patient(s)
» To remain with patient(s) and wait for ambulance

2.6. Maple Health Care Medical Unit Team (Paramedic Staff/Ambulance Drivers)

Ambulance shall proceed to the location as soon as possible with revolving light/siren in
“"ON” condition. All other vehicles shall give way to ambulance. Paramedical staff shall
accompany the ambulance.

» Provide care to stabilize / treat patient(s) before transferring to hospital

e Communicate Medical evacuation requirements when appropriate to the
Head HSE

» First Aider must accompany patient(s) to the hospital (if required)

'© 2015- MLCFL Page 3 of 22
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% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

Title Emergency Response Plan

2.7. Emergency Response Team (ERT)

Emergency response team shall be responsible to extinguish the fire, provide first aid to
injured person(s) if trained, and help in evacuation and damage control by all possible
available means. ERT shall shutdown the equipment by using the emergency switches
and after that they shall inform the CCR operator. Fire truck shall proceed to the location
as soon as possible with revolving light/siren in “ON” condition. All other vehicles shall
give way to fire truck and duty security staff shall ensure the route clearance. After
completion of all actions ERT team is responsible to:

o Ensure that fire is completely extinguished
e Submit a comprehensive Emergency Report to Head HSE

SECTION 3 PROCEDURES:
3.1. Fire Emergencies:

In the case of fire emergency, first responder shall raise the alarm to warn all persons
present in the area. First responder shall warn all persons present in area by repeatedly
shouting “Fire, Fire, Fire”, “Emergency, Emergency, Emergency”. After incident
communication on “Emergency Number 2299 (Ext.), he/she along with designated
firefighting team of each area shall try to extinguish the fire with appropriate installed
equipments i.e. water, sand, suitable fire extinguishers and fire hydrants etc. (ONLY IF
he/they are trained to do so).

Firefighting team shall immediately inform the concerned department to cut of the fuel,
electric, and gas supply and inform emergency response team about the event. Those in
vicinity having heard the voice alarm shall rush to the allocated assembly points.
Firefighting team shall:

¢ Organize and control the fire extinguishing efforts at initial stage

¢ Secure and prevent wounded persons if possible by not risking their own lives

¢ Remove sensitive / precious pieces of equipment to a safe place if possible while not
risking their own lives

3.1.1, Medical Emergencies:
3.1.1.1, Medical Unit
Paramedic staff at the Maple Health Care Center (MHCC) shall manage the

medical emergencies as per HSE SOP MLCFL/HSE/S-003. Medical emergencies
at Plant to be treated in MHCC for stabilizing before referring to Hospital.

© 2015- MLCFL o . i ) Page 4 of 22
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!g MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan RZe;"_' gg?.;?;g: Ap[f 2?22&2%31’(; :

3.1.1.2. Ambulance

Injured person(s) at Plant site shall be transported to hospital using ambulance
as per HSE SOP MLCFL/HSE/S-003.

3.1.1.3. Severe Weather & Natural Disasters:

Severe weather and natural disasters are often unforeseen, in case of severe
weather and natural disasters following procedure shall be adopted:

3.1.1.4. Earthquake:

o Employee shall remain calm and await instructions from the Head HSE or the
designated HSE officer.

e Employees shall be evacuated as per instructions of HSE area manager
and/or the designated HSE officer.

e Employees shall keep themselves away from overhead fixtures, windows,
filing cabinets, and electrical power.

o Employees shall assist handicap personnel in finding a safe place

3.2, Bomb/terrorism threats:

All bomby/ terrorism threats received shall be treated as a serious threat. It is essential
that whoever receives the call pays attention and record the required following
information:

Detail about the explosive device

Detail of the caller’s voice and demeanor — e.g. accent, level of calmness etc.
Any background noise from the callers end — e.g. machinery, traffic, animals etc.
The recipient of the call shall immediately inform head S&GS

3.3. Evacuation procedure:
A standard building evacuation system comprises of following three components:
3.3.1. The circulation path:
» Circulation path is a continuous and unobstructed route for evacuation leading to

the assembly area (rooms, corridors, doors, stairs, smoke proof enclosures,
horizontal exits, ramps, exit passageways, moving walkways etc.).

© 2015- MLCFL Page 5 of 22
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ﬂ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
" Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
Title
Emergency Response Plan 24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

3.3.2. Notification System(S):

e Notifications could be manual or automated.

3.3.2.1. Manual System:

First responder shall warn all persons present in area by raising the
emergency alarm

Dial 2299 to report the incident and inform them about nature and location of
the incident. The first responder shall notify details of the building.

3.3.2.2. Automated Response System (Smoke/Heat Sensors):

On detection of smoke or heat by the automated sensors, sound alarm shall
blow to alert building occupants regarding fire on a specific floor/building.
Occupants shall proceed towards assembly area and remain there until “All
Clear” announcement is given by Emergency Response Team after
extinguishing fire through fire extinguishers or hydrants. In case, heat or
smoke is not detected by the sensors but bserved by any individual (first
responder), he/she has to activate alarm by pushing alarm switch provided in
all buildings.

3.3.2.3. Emergency Assembly Points:

EMERGENCY ASSEMBLY POINTS AT GCD

© 2015- MLCFL
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Title Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
o | 24-Dec-2020 | 11-Feb-2015
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$ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

EMERGENCY ASSEMBLY POINTS AT HO

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan %ngg_?;ztg: Applicable Date:

11-Feb-2015
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% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure {(SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan Rze:;_i ggg_?;ztg: Apfllifggﬁz%i?:

3.3.2.4. Evacuation Routes:

Evacuation routes at management house GCD are shown in following maps.

Evacuation Routes Management House GCD

Cestrol Rgom

Lperat]

Evacuation Routes CCR Building GCD First Floor

‘© 2015- MLCFL
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Evacuation Routes HO Building First Floor
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\
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EVACUATION PLAN FOR L-III

3.3.2.5. Signage (Urdu/English)

Employees to evacuate the building in following sequence observing safety
signs.

Proceed to the nearest emergency exit in an orderly manner using stairs.
Do not use the elevators.

e Assist anyone who is having difficulty during evacuation process.
e Listen for any additional instructions from safety officer.
¢ Assemble in designated area.
e Ensure that safety officer is aware of your presence. Notify safety officer
about anyone who is still missing. Wait for instructions until it is safe to return.
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Title Emergency Response Plan
3.4. Drills (Fire & Medical)

All employees are required to participate in periodic drills both at plant site and Head
office. The purpose of these drills is to ensure that all employees have become familiar
with emergency response plan, evacuate their respective areas, familiar with emergency
exits and their orderly use. During the drill building employees shall follow the procedure
set forth in this document.

HSE Department shall be responsible for maintaining the schedule and record log for the

emergency drills. The time required for each drill shall be about 10 minutes, followed by
a short discussion on the outcome of the drill.

First responde
r ™ ( ™
Emergency
First Aider |l+—Nedical Emergency HELP Line T—_ Response Team
e S o .

— — Fire Emergency r
l—— e~ — ~

3.5. Communication Chart

Fire Truck , Investigation of

Accident
-

Safety Area
Manager

&

Admin & IR 1‘ GM Works
Department J

Communication Chart
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Title
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Emergency Response Plan 24-Dec-2020 |  11-Feb-2015

3.6. Program Evaluation

In — charge HSE, Head A&IR and Head RCM shall review and evaluate the Emergency
Response plan on yearly basis or as and when required.

3.6.1. Trainings

All

employees engaged in plant operations shall be trained by HSE in coordination

with HR department as per approved annual training plan. The training shall mainly

incl

ude the following topics:

Fire Emergencies Response

Medical Emergencies Response

Natural Disaster Response

Terrorism Response

Atleast one drill in a year shall be carried out after the completion of trainings.
Record of such drills shall be maintained by HSE Department
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 023667

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4){a){(A)(e} 3{vii) *Plant
characteristics (generation voltage, frequency etc.) are as follows;

Generation Voltage: 6.3kV three phase three-wire system
Power Factor at rated power: 1
Frequency: 50Hz

Generation characteristic: Inverter has built-in features of controllabie active power ramp following
grid disturbance or normal connection, voltage regulation, and frequency response. There are no
additional control metering and instrumentations.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf POWEI‘ Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4){a)(A){e) 3{viii) *Control,
metering, instrumentation and protection “it is to inform that there are no additional control metering
and instrumentations.”
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"‘"’h




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MEP]B Leaf Power Limited o 2042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill {Regulation 3(4)(a){A){e) 3(ix} *Estimated
Capacity Factor at site is 18.60.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited o506

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a)}{A){e)3(x) *Degradation
Factor is 0.40% p.a.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, "Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a)D)1. It is to
inform that MLPL total 10 MW and 15 MW load to a single BPC consumer Maple Leaf Cement
. Factory Limited through 05 feeders and single line diagram is attached.
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Single Line Diagram - 15 MWp Solar PV Plant
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited e 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, "Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a){D) 2. Consumer
class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and voltage level" it is to inform that

Maple leaf Power Limited is supply electricity to its single Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) Maple

Leaf Cement Factory Limited his parent Company with voltage level 6.3 KV.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)

Maple Leaf Power Limite Tel: 92-042-36302261

& 36302262
Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule li (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)3 Tariff categories
of consumer classes to be served” it is to inform that Maple Leaf Power is supplying power to its Parent
Company “Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd” as Bulk Power Consumer.

The Tariff for Electricity billing is mutually agreed between Maple Leaf Power Ltd and its Parent Company
“Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd” BPC.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MaEle Leaf Power Limited Fax:92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, Schedule Il (Regulation. 3(4)(a)(D)4* Demand and
consumption pattern on different time periods. The Average demand and consumption pattern of Load
in KWH of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited is given in below table from July 2022 to June 2023.

Demand & Consumption Pattern of Load (KW) in different time
period of a Year

Month Plant-| Plant-ll Plant-lll Plant-1V| \T[?;l:- Totarlwl:ec;an d Tot:;::ply
Jul-22 | 2,234.8 {18,299.3 | 14,512.0 0.0 4,366.7 39,412.8 17,480.4
Aug-22 | 1,189.0 | 12,657.7 | 14,456.8 0.0 4,260.7 32,564.2 13,164.8
Sep-22 | 3,178.4 | 20,058.8 | 20,967.3 0.0 4,285.1 48,489.6 24,450.3
Oct-22 | 3,661.5 | 19,752.1 | 21,992.8 0.0 3,110.9 48,517.3 25,269.6
Nov-22 | 6,349.2 | 23,083.6 | 8,389.7 | 3,2389 | 4,428.2 45,489.6 30,868.7
Dec-22 | 4,948.1 | 20,526.3 | 24,643.6 | 1,885.6 | 4,202.0 56,205.6 33,119.0
Jan-23 | 1,975.4 | 10,951.5 | 27,279.8 | 4,595.8 | 2,234.8 47,037.2 14,200.6
Feb-23 | 2,323.4 | 25,080.0 | 26,121.0 | 5,306.1 | 3,233.3 62,063.7 26,243.2
Mar-23 | 1,348.0 | 16,544.2 | 11,983.4 | 11,631.8 | 4,459.3 45,966.7 13,526.3
Apr-23 | 5012.8 | 4,317.9 | 18,362.5 | 15,585.7 | 2,977.7 46,256.5 10,568.8
May-23 | 1,175.1 | 15,1144 | 25,302.7 | 5,734.6 | 2,763.4 50,090.3 15,011.6
Jun-23 728.0 3,653.3 | 25,799.6 | 10,992.1 | 4,696.8 45,869.8 22,477.0




42-Lawrence Road,
tahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3{4)(a)(D)5. * Procurement
Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation and/or long term and short-term PPAs, as the
case may be)” based on the annual load requirements Maple Leaf Power Limited will supply up to
288,787.2 MW (CFPP), 16,353.4 MW from 10 MW (Solar Plant) and 24,503.837 MW from its 15 MW (Solar
Plant) to its Bulk Power Consumer. It is not applicable to Maple Leaf Power Limited as power from FESCO
is purchased by Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited not Maple Leaf power plant,




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)

Maple Leaf Power Limited £e2:6932(;)§622-36302261
Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)6.* 12-month
projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected sale of units for each consumer
category “. It is already informed in above provisions that MLPL has only one BPC Maple Leaf Cement
Factory Limited. MLPL will supply average hourly load in kwh from its 10 MW Solar Power Plant and 15
MW Solar Power Plant in following months to its BPC;

Avg. Hourl
S:NO | Month Loagd (KWH\;
1 Jul 5,099
2 Aug 4,878
3 Sep 5,336
4 Oct 4,686
5 Nov 4,354
6 Dec 3,790
7 Jan 3,653
8 Feb 3,673
9 Mar 4,451
10 Apr 5,218
11 May 5,404
12 Jun 5,390




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fa«9+042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D),7 5-year Investment
Plan indicating schemes/models/framework for undertaking supply of electric power (including
frameworks for providing non-discriminatory services and acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service
territories)”. It is to inform that MLPL is currently investing in 10MW and 15 MW Solar Power Plant for
which the application is made for generation and supply license for supply of electricity to MLCF and no
further investment is being plan. Py




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 042266572

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4 (a)(D)8 Training and
development procedures and manuals” is attached. e
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: ! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

o

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#1.0 Annexure A
Title Training and Development Revision Date: { Applicable Date:
29-Jul-2015 14-Jan-2015
Mandatory Management Trainings
Title/Position Trainings
Assistant Manager/ » Team Building (In-house)
Deputy Manager » Emotional Intelligence & Seven Habits (In-house)
e Effective Communication Skills (PIMs or equivalent)

®

Basics of Business English (PIM or equivalent)

Finance For Non-Financial Managers (CEQ’s discretion on
need basis)

Civil Defense (On need basis)

Manager

Problem Solving & Decision Making Skills (In-house)
Forecasting Techniques for Managers (PIM or equivalent)
Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEQ's discretion on need basis)

Finance For Non-Financial Managers (CEQ's discretion on
need basis)

Civil Defense (On need basis)

g. Manager

Finance For Non-Financial Managers (In house)

Enhancing Leadership Skills (PIM or equivalent Institution)
Effective Communication in the Business World (LUMS)

Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEQ’s discretion on need basis)

Civil Defense (On need basis)

© 2015 - MLCFL
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i! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

+| MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#1.0 Annexure A
Title Training and Development Revision Date; | Applicable Date:
29-Jul-2015 14-Jan-2015
Dy. General Manager » Building High Performance Team (LUMS)

* Management Development Program (LUMS)

» Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEQ's discretion on need basis)

General Manager » Corporate Business Strategy (Articles based on Michael Porter's
Business Strategy)

+ Selective Advanced Courses & Degrees (The selection of course /
degree will be done by CEO on need basis)

d‘ » Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEQ's discretion on need basis)

Staff (Non-Management) » Plant Housekeeping (On need basis)

» Security SOPs awareness (Outsourced Security Staff)

Prepared By: Reviewed By: Approved By:

Manager HR Head HR CEO

© 2015 - MLCFL ‘-MLCFLIHRIP027-A Page 3 of 3

s/

/@ s



MLCF/HR/P-027

S ———————————

Company Polcy Rev #: 0.0 Annexyre 8
Titse Training ang Developmant Ravision Date: Apphcable Date:
— \$2en:2018
Anacxure Ravision History
‘Author Rev ¥ Dascription Fationale of Change

© 2015- MICFL

CONTROLLED COPY

QETF




— e
- MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
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-

.

Rev30.0 Annexure B
Revision Date: Appiicable Date:
Tite Traiaing sad Development - 14-330-2015
L Anpual Training Plan (Year ----)
{tn-house) / Target Estimated Cost . Training Trainer /
1l .
 Training Title {External) e No. of Participants (Rs) Month Duration Location " Fad Remarks
Total Estimated Cost 0
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o MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

T ——
MLCF/HR/P-027

Company Policy Rev #: 0.0 Annexyre €
Revisicn Date: Applicable Date:
Title Training and Development - 14-Jan-2015
Participants List
Sr # Department Name Designation Remarks
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r| MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure D
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
--- 14-Jan-2015
Annexure Revision History
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ig MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure D
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
- 14-Jan-2015
Program Title:
Date:
Venue:
Facilitator:
le of th
Time Activity Description
“ Start time ~ End time | Participants Arrival
Start time - End time | .. \wajcome Address
Start time — End time & Session 1
Start time — End time & Session 2
Starttime - End ime | .. 1a3 Break / tunch Break
Start time — End time & Session 3
Start time - End time | ,, osing Remarks
Start time — End time < Certificate Distribution
Start time — End time + Group Picture
© 2015 - ML.CF MLCFL/HR/P027-D Page 2 of 2
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L MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HRIP-027 Company Policy Rev #: 1.0 Annexure E
Revision Date: Applicable Date:
- Tite Tralning and Development 1.3 MAR 2018 |4-20-2015
Training Arrangemants Checkliist
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! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure H
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
14-Jan-2015
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i! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

T| MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure H
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
— 14-Jan-2015
Training Souvenir
! (Training
l Image)
® Presented to
Name of Participant
For Participating In
Training Name
Dated
® @&ﬁc@
MAPLEYLEAF CEMENT
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! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure H
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
-—- 14-Jan-2015
MAPLEXLEAF CEMENT
® Presented to
Name of Participant
For Participating In
Benchmarking Session
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This is to certify that

Participant Name

has attended

Training Name

Date

Training Facilitator
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i ! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#1.0 Annexure [

Title Training and Development Rf \{l'S'UO&%%% : Aple‘ll-gaaglzgla;e:
| Employee Brief Profile:
Employee # Name
Grade Designation
Department Location
| Trainings Detail:
Training Courses require to be attended as per Training Policy
1. 2.
3. 4,
5 6.
ﬂinlng Courses already attended (to be waived off)
1. 2.
4,
. 6.
Training Courses need to be attended (remaining) as per Training Policy
1. 2.
4,
5. 6.

Head HR: Remarks (if any):

Signature Date
CEO: Remarks (if any):
Signature Date
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 03567

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulfation 3(4)(a)(D)10 i. * Proposed
Service Territory”. it is to inform that MLPL will supply power to Maple Leaf Cement Limited {MLCL) within

its territory at iskanderAbad near Daud Khel, District Mianwali, Punjab.

nt Factoy Ltd:

A




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Map]e Leaf Power Limited [ 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule III (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)10 ii. * Billing and
collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering)™. It is to inform that following billing and
collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering) will follow;

a)

b)

f)

g}

The Company shall, within five (5) working days from the issuance of FESCO tariff in each
month following the Supply Date, prepare and issue an invoice for the previous month
containing the amounts due from the Power Purchaser to the Company for the Energy
purchased during the previous month.

The invoice shall be prepared for Energy for the preceding month in accordance with the
readings of the Metering System located at the Interconnection Facility.

The Power Purchaser shall pay all amounts shown in the invoice within ten (10) working days
of the date of the invoice (“Due Date”).

If the Power Purchaser fails to pay the invoiced amounts on the Due Date, such failure shall
attract liguidated damages calculated at the Delayed Payment Rate.

The Power Purchaser shall make all payments by wire transfer or any other banking mode
into the account designated by the Company from time to time.

Both Parties shall pay, if applicable, their respective taxes as applicable on them (if any) as
per the prevailing law.

All disputes relating to payments made under this Agreement shall be settled in accordance
with Article 14,




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Fax: 92-042-36368721

Maple Leat Power Limited

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule III (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)10 iii. * Ability to
access consumer metering systems and other services/equipment”. It is to inform that MLCF and MCPL
Acknowledge and agree that:

MLPL will install meters on the outgoing feeder switchgears for metering and charging the
electricity consumption of its Bulk Power Consumer (BPC).




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MaPle Leaf Power Limited Fex 9204236368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ifl (Regulation 3(4){a){D)10 IV. * Emergency

provisions and protecols as attached,




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited "= ®23¢2

With reference to the requirement as per clause, "Schedule ill (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D) 10 v. Basis of
common services for commercial and residential consumers and their allocation thereof”, it is to inform
that this clause is not applicable on MLPL by supplying electricity to its Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) Maple
Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL).




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-42-36302261 & 36302262

_ Szaz 1
Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-42-3636872

Ref: No.MLPL/S.Licence/2023
December 20, 2023

The Registrar,
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA)
NEPRA Tower, G-5/1, Islamabad

Subject: - Application of Maple Leaf Power Limited for the Grant of Power Supply Licence

Dear Sir,

This is in continuation to your letter No. NEPRA/R/LAS-100/37827, dated December 04,
2023 wherein it has been informed that the Federal Government has notified the eligibility criteria
rules for the Supplier Licence on September 09, 2023. In view of the said, it has been directed

that we are required to submit the certain information/documents in respect of our subject
application.

2. In consideration of the above, we will like to clarify that we are setting up a Solar based
generation facility of 25.00 MW which will supplying specifically to a designated consumer/Bulk
Power Consumer (BPC) in the name of Maple Leaf Cement Limited (MLCL). In this regard, it is
pertinent to mention that the said generation facility will be supplying at 11 kV voltage through
dedicated feeders to the cement plant. Further to the said, we have reviewed to the various
provisions of the high level design and detailed design of the CTBCM, National Electricity
Policy/Plan and the provisions of the Eligibility Criteria Rules that the Federal Government has
prescribed for the supplier licence. In this regard, it is submitted that all the requirements
enshrined in the notified rules pertains to a generating company/facility being in central dispatch
operated by a Systermn Operator and supplying to a distinctly located BPC through wheeting using
the network of NTDC or DISCO as the case may be.

3. In view of the above, it is submitted that the requirements of the Eligibility Criteria Rules .
are not applicable in our case. In order to have more clarity we have tabulated the requirements
communicated and our observations in the matter the review of the same will strengthen our
position in this regard. In view of the above, it is submitted that processing of our pending
application be expedite.

Your's faithfully,
For Maple Leaf Power Limitec

{Sohail Sadiq)
Executive Director (Finance)

v


Abdul Zaki
Rectangle


Requirements of the Eligibility Criteria Rules and Observations of Maple Leaf Power Limited

Sr. No.

Communicated Requirement

Our Observation

(1).

Certificate of incorporation with SECP. As per proviso of Rule
3(a) of the Rules a generation company as an applicant for the
supply licence shall be registered with the SECP exclusively for
its generation as well as supply of electric power business and
in such case shall maintain separate accounts for its each
business.

We have already provided a certified copy of certificate of
incorporation that SECP has issued. The Memorandum of
Association clearly indicates the objectives of the
company which include generation and supply
businesses. We also undertake to keep separate accounts
for the each business which normally the Authority also
requires as in the case of K Electric Limited even before
the eligibility criteria rules.

{2).

Information regarding Minimum Solvency Requirement as
provided in Scheduie-| of the Eligibility Criteria Rules.

The Schedule-l of the Eligibility Criteria Rules clearly
stipulates its applicability on competitive supplier through
CTBCM or Supplier of Last Resort which is not our case
as explained in the covering letter

(3).

Strategic Business Plan for the three years duly certified by CEO
or CEO or Company Secretary, demonstrating its capability to
undertake electric power supply business

In view of the supply arrangement explained this provision
is not applicable to us being a fixed supply arrangement
out of the scope of CTBCM '

(4).

Minimum Human Resource Requirement as provided in
Schedule-Il to meet all of its service-level commitments.

-Do-

(5).

an affidavit substantially in the form attached herewith in
Schedule-Ill by its duly authorized officer solemnly declaring
and affirming therein that it shall always fulfill the obligations
imposed on it under the National Electricity Policy and the
National Electricity Plan made under section 14A of the Act.

-Do-

(6).

Information regarding ability to ensure prompt and effective
coordination with the system operation, market operator and
relevant distribution licensees to comply with the provisions of
grid code, distribution code, commercial code and other relevant
legal instruments as applicable

Not applicable as explained that the arrangement does not
involve any coordination with system operator, market
operator or distribution company. Further, we also do not
require compiiance of any of the mentioned codes being
not connected to the grid.

(7).

Information regarding ability to discharge public service
obligations (a). Quality of electric power supply service by;

(i). Automated systems of software tools for billing and
collection.  (ii). Exchange system for communication and
transaction with the system operation, market operator and

The review of the requirements clearly stipulates that
these requirements are for a generation company
dispatched by the system operator and supplying to a BPC
through infrastructure of NTDC or DISCO which is not in
our case therefore, the requirement is not applicable.

Page 1 of 2



Requirements of the Eligibility Criteria Rules and Observations of Maple Leaf Power Limited

Sr. No.

Communicated Requirement

Qur Observation

relevant distribution licensees, and other relevant entities.
(iif).Complying with the performance standards and any codes
specified by the Authority for provision of electric power
services, particularly, effective and timely billing and collection
of charges. customer support services and resolution of
consumer complaints. (iv). Ensuring timely dissemination of
reporting requirements. (v). Maintaining the complete and
accurate records and data in respect of all aspects of

electric power supply business, Alf such records and data shall,
unless provided otherwise under the law, be maintained for a
period of five years after the creation of such record or data. (b).
information regarding transparency of transaction by: (i).
compliance with the accounting standards and uniform sysiem
of accounts as specified by the Authority: and in addition to that
ensure compliance with international financial reporting
standards (IFRS) as applicable in Pakistan; (ii). Sharing the
necessary information and data through website or portal as
required by any

legai instrument. (iii). information required by the Authority for
the purpose of monitoring (c¢). Collection and deposit of following
charges, as may be determined by the Authority, in a timely
manner, including but not limited to (i). Transmission use of
system charges; (ii). Distribution use of system charges

(iii). Market and system operator fee. (iv). Any other charges as
provided in Rules 5 of the Rules. (d). Collection and deposit of
any and all surcharges as may be imposed by the Federal
Government and applicable taxes in a timely and effective
manner.

(8).

Information/documents required under Rule 6 of the Supply
Eligibility Criteria Rules: (i). At the time of submission of an
application, the applicant shall submit a sworn and verified
affidavit to the Authority that it fuffills all the requirements of
these rules for grant of the licence.

Not applicable as explained above.
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